Operation Homefront May 11, 2023
P.O. Box 650052
Sterling, VA 20165

Dear Brig Gen John I. Pray Jr. at Operation Homefront,

Hello, My name is Cannon Hritz, and | am a 21 year old, third-year college
student at the University of Colorado-Colorado Springs. | am writing to express
my interest in securing funding for your organization: Operation Homefront.

The reason | picked your agency for this grant proposal is because of my
grandfather. He was a part of the Air Force during World War 11, and he was
always someone | looked up to before he passed. This prodded me and my friends
to create a non-profit called Serving Servicemen which helps local veterans with
day to day activities including but not limited to, landscaping, painting, and event
help. As | am making a impact in my hometown of Saint Louis, Missouri, | wanted
to make an impact in the country as well.

As you are well aware, Operation Homefront has been at the forefront of
helping change veterans lives for the past 20 years. This work has been recognized
by multiple big-name corporations like Home Depot and Walmart and has made a
relevant impact in the community. However, | want to help expand Operation
Homefront’s reach and enhance the impact, and to do that, Operation Homefront
needs additional resources towards key programs including the Critical Assistance
program and housing programs. This is where your funder that | have chosen,
Veterans United Foundation (VUF), comes into play. VUF is a key part of
Missouri’s veteran help program and has surpassed 100 million in donations
towards the veteran community. These programs can be considered a win-win for
both you and the funder, because of the fact that you both support housing projects
and financial aid for veterans.

Thank you for everything you do, and | hope you can agree that this funder
is the right fit for the organization.

Sincerely,
Cannon Hritz
chritz@uccs.edu



mailto:chritz@uccs.edu

May 11, 2023
Dear Veterans United Foundation,

On behalf of Operation Homefront, I am writing to submit our proposal for
funding consideration. We are grateful for the opportunity to apply for support
from Veterans United Foundation as we share a common goal of serving military
families and veterans.

Operation Homefront is a national nonprofit organization that provides
emergency financial assistance, transitional and permanent housing, caregiver
support, and other critical services to military families and wounded warriors. Our
programs are designed to address the unique challenges that military families face,
including frequent moves, deployments, and the physical and emotional toll of
service inside the military.

We are seeking funding from Veterans United Foundation to support our
Critical Financial Assistance program as well as our housing programs. The
Critical Financial Assistance program provides emergency financial assistance to
military families in need. The program assists with expenses such as rent, utilities,
vehicle repair, and other essential costs that can be difficult to manage on a
military salary. Last year, our assistance program provided over $5 million in
financial assistance to more than 3,600 military families.

Operation Homefront believes that our programs align with the mission of
Veterans United Foundation and would greatly benefit from your support. We look
forward to the opportunity to discuss our proposal further and answer any
questions that you may have. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
Operation Homefront.
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Legal Name of Organization:

Operation Homefront

DBA (if applicable):

Mailing Address (and Physical Address if it is different and not confidential):

1355 Central Parkway S Suite 100
San Antonio, TX 78232

Phone: | (210) 659-7756 Fax: | (210) 566-7544 EIN: | 32-0033325

Website: | https://operationhomefront.org/

Organization Email Address: | info@operationhomefront.org

Name of CEO or Executive Director: | John Pray

Phone: | (210) 659-7756 Email: | jpray@operationhomefront.net

Application Contact & Title (if not the CEO or Executive Director):

Phone: Email:

Organization Information

Year Founded: | 2002
Mission Statement:

Build strong, stable, and secure military families so they can thrive—not simply struggle to get by—
in the communities that they’ve worked so hard to protect. A key aspect of our mission is to ensure
that military families have access to the support and resources they need to stay strong, stable, and
secure in the face of adversity. As a military family support organization, we strive to provide
respect and understanding to our military families while ensuring that all families in need of
assistance receive it.

Geographic Area Served (specific to this proposal):

Operation Homefront serves the entire country of the United States, with its main/major
contributions being in Texas, Missouri, and Florida.

Tax Exemption Status:



501(c)(3)

] %

Name of fiscal agent/sponsor:

Using a fiscal agent/fiscal sponsor

[ Other than 501(c)(3), describe:

Number of Employees: Full-time:

200-250

Part-time:

500+

Grant Request Information

Type of Grant Requested (select one):

% General Operating Support

U Program or Project Support
Name of Program or Project:

Amount of Request:

$100,000 (over 1
year)

[ Capital Request (Check with the grantmaker as to whether they prefer the CGA-Capital)

U Other

Describe what the grant will be used for:

The grant will be put towards the projects that Operation Homefront supervises. Most notably, the
housing and critical financial aid programs.

Financial Information Budget numbers should match the numbers presented in Attachments 1(a) & (b).

Organization’s Current Budget for Fiscal Year Ending:

Income: | 46M

AND, if other than a general operating request,

Expenses:

12/31/2021

44.4M

Program or Project Budget: | $100,000

Income:

EXxpenses:

Dates: from:

711/2023

to: | 7/1/2024

By signing below, I certify that the information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of my

knowledge.

CEO/Executive Director

Date




Narrative

1. Organization Background

Operation Homefront is a national nonprofit organization that provides financial assistance,
transitional housing, and other essential support to military families and wounded warriors. The
organization was founded in 2002 by military spouses who wanted to support the families of
deployed service members during the post-9/11 era. Over the years, Operation Homefront has
expanded its mission to serve the broader military community, including veterans and their
families. Today, the organization operates in all 50 states and has provided over $30 million in
assistance to more than 20,000 military families.

One of the key programs of Operation Homefront is its Emergency Assistance Program,
which provides financial assistance to military families in crisis. This program can help with a
range of expenses, from rent and utilities to car repairs and emergency travel. In addition,
Operation Homefront operates transitional housing programs for military families who are
experiencing homelessness or at risk of becoming homeless. These programs provide temporary
housing and support services to help families get back on their feet. In general, Operation
Homefront is committed to serving those who have served our country and ensuring that military
families have the support they need to thrive.

2. Goals

The primary goal of Operation Homefront is to provide critical assistance and support to
military families and wounded warriors. The organization recognizes the unique challenges faced
by military families, including frequent deployments, relocations, and financial strain. Operation
Homefront aims to alleviate some of these burdens by providing financial assistance, transitional

housing, and other support services. The organization also seeks to raise awareness of the



challenges faced by military families and to advocate for policies that support the military
community.

Another important goal of Operation Homefront is to build strong, resilient military families.
The organization offers a range of programs and resources designed to help military families
flourish, including financial education, career counseling, and mentorship programs. By
providing these services, Operation Homefront aims to empower military families to achieve
their goals and to build a bright future for themselves and their communities. Overall, the
organization is committed to strengthening the military community and ensuring that military
families receive the support they need to succeed.

3. Current Programs

Operation Homefront offers a range of programs and services to support military families
and wounded warriors. One of the organization's primary programs is its Emergency Assistance
Program, which provides financial assistance to military families in crisis. This program can help
with a variety of expenses, including rent, utilities, car repairs, emergency travel, and more.
Operation Homefront also operates transitional housing programs for military families who are
experiencing homelessness or at risk of becoming homeless. These programs provide temporary
housing and support services to help families get back on their feet.

In addition to its emergency and housing programs, Operation Homefront offers a variety of
other services to support military families. The organization's Hearts of Valor program provides
support to caregivers of wounded warriors, including emotional support, resources, and peer-to-
peer networking. Operation Homefront also offers financial education and counseling services to
help military families achieve financial stability. Finally, the organization operates a variety of

morale-boosting programs, such as holiday toy distributions and back-to-school supply drives, to



help military families feel appreciated and supported. Overall, Operation Homefront is dedicated
to providing a wide range of programs and services to help military families overcome
challenges and build strong, resilient lives.

5. Evaluation

Operation Homefront has a rigorous approach to program evaluation that is designed to
measure the impact of its programs and services on the military community. The organization
uses a combination of quantitative and qualitative methods to collect data on program outcomes
and to gather feedback from program participants and other stakeholders.

One of the ways that Operation Homefront measures impact is by setting specific,
measurable goals for each of its programs. The organization tracks progress toward these goals
over time, and it uses this data to evaluate the effectiveness of its programs and to identify areas
for improvement. Additionally, Operation Homefront collects qualitative data on program impact
through surveys, focus groups, and other feedback mechanisms. This data is used to gain a better
understanding of how the organization's programs are affecting the lives of military families and
wounded warriors.

Some key evaluation results from Operation Homefront's programs include:

e The organization's Critical Financial Assistance program provided over $5 million in

financial assistance to more than 3,600 military families in 2020.

e Operation Homefront's Homes on the Homefront program has helped more than 700

military families achieve the dream of homeownership since its inception in 2012.

e The Hearts of Valor program, which provides support to caregivers of wounded warriors,

has served more than 5,000 individuals since its launch in 2010.



Overall, Operation Homefront's approach to evaluation is designed to ensure that its
programs and services are making a meaningful impact on the lives of military families and
wounded warriors. The organization is committed to using data and feedback to continuously
improve its programs and to ensure that it is meeting the evolving needs of the military
community.

6. Collaboration

Operation Homefront has a long history of collaborating with other organizations to support
military families and wounded warriors. One notable partnership is with the National Military
Family Association, which helps to fund Operation Homefront's Critical Financial Assistance
Program. This program provides emergency financial assistance to military families facing
unexpected expenses. Operation Homefront has also worked closely with the Gary Sinise
Foundation, which provides support to military families and first responders. The two
organizations have collaborated on a variety of initiatives, including providing custom-built
smart homes to severely wounded veterans.

In addition to these partnerships, Operation Homefront has also engaged in a variety of
efforts to support the military community. One remarkable example is the organization's annual
Back-to-School Brigade program, which provides backpacks and school supplies to military
children. Operation Homefront partners with a variety of organizations, including Dollar Tree
and other corporate sponsors, to collect and distribute these supplies to military families across
the country. Another important effort is the Homes on the Homefront program, which provides
mortgage-free homes to veterans and their families. Through this program, Operation Homefront

has partnered with numerous organizations, including JPMorgan Chase, to donate homes to



deserving veterans. Overall, Operation Homefront's partnerships and collaborations have been

instrumental in supporting military families and wounded warriors across the country.

7. Inclusiveness

Operation Homefront strives for inclusiveness within their workplace. Operation
Homefront’s website states that it is committed to "promoting a culture of inclusion, diversity,
and equity where everyone is valued and respected.” Operation Homefront recognizes that the
military community is diverse and that military families come from all backgrounds and walks of
life. The organization is committed to providing equal opportunities and support to all military
families, regardless of race, ethnicity, gender identity, sexual orientation, or any other
characteristic.

In addition to its commitment to inclusiveness, Operation Homefront also strives to
provide culturally competent services to the military community. The organization's staff and
volunteers receive training on cultural competency and diversity issues, which helps them to
better understand and serve the diverse needs of military families. Overall, Operation Homefront
IS committed to ensuring that all military families feel welcome and supported, and to promoting

a culture of inclusiveness and respect.

8. Board/Governance

The board of directors plays a critical role in advancing the mission of Operation Homefront.
The board provides oversight and guidance to the organization's leadership team, sets strategic
priorities, and ensures that the organization is fulfilling its mission and meeting the needs of the
military community. The board is also responsible for ensuring that the organization is

financially sound and that its resources are being used effectively.

10



Key issues related to board effectiveness that Operation Homefront is addressing this
year include improving communication and collaboration between the board and the
organization's leadership team, enhancing board member engagement and involvement, and
ensuring that the board is fully representative of the military community that the organization
Serves.

Operation Homefront has a policy of rotating board terms to ensure that there is turnover
and fresh perspectives on the board. Board members serve three-year terms, and they can be re-
elected for up to three consecutive terms before being required to take a one-year break before
being considered for re-election.

Finally, Operation Homefront reports that 100% of its board members make financial
contributions to the organization. This demonstrates the board's commitment to the
organization's mission and helps to set an example for other donors and

Supporters.

9. Volunteers

Operation Homefront relies heavily on the support of volunteers and unpaid personnel to
carry out its mission. According to the organization's website, it typically involves thousands of
volunteers in its programs and services each year. The number of volunteers and hours worked
varies from year to year, depending on the needs of the organization and the availability of
volunteers.

Operation Homefront's volunteers and unpaid personnel come from a variety of

backgrounds and include military veterans, military spouses, and civilians who are passionate
about supporting the military community. These individuals serve in a variety of roles, including

event coordinators, fundraising volunteers, program assistants, and administrative support staff.

11



The organization tracks volunteer hours and reports that volunteers contributed over
290,000 hours in support of Operation Homefront's mission in 2020 alone. These hours were
valued at over $7 million dollars in in-kind contributions. The organization also recognizes its
volunteers through various awards programs and honors them for their contributions to the
military community. Overall, Operation Homefront relies on the dedication and commitment of
its volunteers and unpaid personnel to support military families and wounded warriors across the
country.

10. Planning

Operation Homefront faces several challenges and opportunities in the next three to five
years. One of the biggest challenges is the ongoing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, which
has affected the economy and created additional hardships for many military families. The
organization will need to continue to adapt and innovate to meet the changing needs of the
military community in this challenging environment.

Another challenge facing Operation Homefront is the ongoing need for funding and
resources to support its programs and services. As a nonprofit organization, Operation
Homefront relies heavily on donations from individuals, corporations, and foundations to carry
out its mission. The organization will need to continue to develop innovative fundraising
strategies to maintain its level of support for military families and wounded warriors.

At the same time, Operation Homefront also has many opportunities to expand its reach
and impact in the coming years. The organization has a strong reputation and a track record of
success in supporting the military community, and it is well-positioned to take advantage of new

opportunities to serve military families and wounded warriors. For example, Operation

12



Homefront could explore new partnerships with corporations or government agencies to expand
its reach and impact.

To address these challenges and opportunities, Operation Homefront engages in strategic
planning to guide its efforts and ensure that it is meeting the evolving needs of the military
community. The organization's strategic planning process involves input from a variety of
stakeholders, including staff, volunteers, donors, and military families. The focus of the
organization's current planning efforts is on enhancing its programs and services to better meet
the needs of military families and wounded warriors, while also exploring new opportunities to

expand its impact.

13
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Form 990

** PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY **

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax Ol s B
Form 990 Under section 501(c), 527, or 447(a)(1) of the Internal R Code (excopt private foundations) 0
P Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public, o
’ Inspection
A For the 2021 calendar year, or tax year beginning and ending
B chear  |C Name of organization D Employer identification number
[)555° | _OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC.
[ 1%2% | _Doing tusinessas  OPERATION HOMEFRONT 32-0033325
m Number and stroet (or P.0, box if mail is not deltvered 10 street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
CE 1355 CENTRAL PKWY S. 100 210-549-4629
e City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code [ 41,408,481,
[CVam™’| SAN ANTONIO, TX 178232 Hi{a) Is this a group retum
382" ['¥ Name ana address of principal oftcer- JOEN 1. PRAY, JR. for subordnates?  [_Yes [X]No
"% | SAME AS C ABOVE H(b) Jen at st vates chiond? [ Yos || No
| Taxex status: 501(c)(3) 501(c < (insert po 4947(2)( 1) ee 527 If *No," attach a st. See instructions
J Website: pr WAW . OPERATIONHOMEFRONT . ORG Hie) Group exemption numbor B>
Kfumodotglmiwlx“mmw [ TTrest || Associaten || Other B> |t Year of teemation: 200 2] M State of tagal domicie: AZ
mmary
1 Briefly describe the organization's 1 or most significant OPERATION HOMEFRONT BUILDS
STRONG, STABLE, AND SECURE NILITARY FAMILIES.
2 Check this box P l l-lNMUhondmnmuowumuokumm25%dnsnotw.¢s.
3 Number of vating members of the governing body (Part VI, Ine 1) 3 19
Q| 4 Number of indopendent voting members of the goveming body (Part V1, ine 1b) 4 18
5 Total number of individuals emplayed in calendar year 2021 (Part V, line 2a) 5 146
g 6 Total number of voluniteers festimate if necessary) 6 4000
3 7 a Total unrelated business revenue froen Part VIIl, column (C), ine 12 ‘ 7a 0.
__| b Netunrelated business taxable income from Form 80T, Part |, line 11 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
8 Contributions and grants (Part VIIL Ine 1h) o i 39,166,556.] 40,951,152,
9 Program service reverue (Part VIlI, ine 2g) ‘ 0. 9,630.
10 Investment income (Part VIll, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7¢) -115,820. 3,430.
11 Other revenue (Part VIIl, colurnn (A), lines 5, 6d, B¢, 9, 10c, and 110} 206,786. -103,173.
12 _Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIl colurnn (A), line 12) 39 257,522.| 40,861,039.
13 Grants and serdlar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), Ines 1.3) ,258,003.] 24,346,447.
14 Benefis pald 1o or for members (Part 1X, column (A), ine 4) 0. 0.
15 Salaries, other compensation, empioyes benefits Part IX, column (A}, Enes 510} 9,276,712, 8,804,442.
16a Professicnal fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11¢) 0. 2,029,803.
b Total fundraising expenses Part IX, column ), ine25) P _ 3,538,667,
17 Othor expensos (Part IX, column (A), fnes 112116, 11£24e) 5,804,992, 4,096,240,
18 Total expenses. Add lines 1317 (must equal Part X, column (A), line 25) _ 39,339,707.] 39,276,932,
__1 19 _Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 froe fine 12 -82,185. 1,584,107,
Beginning of Correat Year End of Year
28,828,570.| 30,804,944.
1,740,636, 2,131,972,
27,087,934.] 28,672,972,

tru,correc, and PP Qetion o mun&dMlﬂMummmnmp’waMW ‘
S W G W I M
sign Dat

¥ I. PRAY, (JR,/PRBSIDBNT & CEQ

Prin/Type preparer’s name Preparer's signature Date Ous [ P
Paid MICHAELA J. CROMAR, CPA ICHAELA J. CROMAR, I05/05/22|.sesne P00BI5728
Preparer |Fimsrame p CLIFTONLARSONALLEN LLP Firm's EINp 41-0746749
Use Only | Fiemr's address p, 801 CHERRY ST, SUITE 1400
FORT WORTH, TX 76102 Phecenc.{ 817) 877-5000
May the IRS discuss this retumn with the shown abave? See instructions

12501 10921 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 890 2021)



m : OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325  page2
[Part it | Statoment of Program Service Accomplishments

Check it Schedule O contains a response or note to any ine in this Part Bl 1

1 Brefly the orgar V'S N
OPERATION HOMEFRONT BUILDS STRONG, STABLE, AND SECURE MILITARY
FAMILIES SO THEY CAN THRIVE - NOT SIMPLY STRUGGLE TO GET BY - IN THE
COMMUNITIES THEY HAVE WORKED SO HARD TO PROTECT.

2 D the organization undertake any Significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

It *Yes," gescrive these new services on Schadule O.
3 D« the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it Conducts, any program senices? DYn [Xluo

If *Yes," descrive these changes on Schedule O.
4  Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)3) and 501(c)4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and

____tevenus, It any, for each program servica reported.
48 (cose ) {Experes $ 33,801,858, icuangosnos 24,346,447, ) (nevewns 9,630. )

OPERATION HOMEFRONT ASSISTS MILITARY FAMILIES COPING WITH A VARIETY OF
FINANCIAL CHALLENGES. THE MOST COMMON TYPES OF NEED ARE FOR SHORT-TERM
RELIEF CONSISTING OF RENT/MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE, HOME/CAR REPAIRS, FOOD,
UTILITIES, AND TRANSITIONAL HOUSING; LONG TERM RESILIENCY CONSISTING OF
PERMANENT MORTGAGE-FREE HOMES AND CAREGIVER SUPPORT; AND RECURRING
FAMILY SUPPORT CONSISTING OF HOLIDAY MEALS, HOLIDAY TOYS,
BACK-TO-SCHOOL ITEMS, BABY SHOWER AND HOMEFRONT CELEBRATIONS THAT ARE
DESIGNED TO SUSTAIN, UPLIFT, AND TRANSFORM.

4  (com ) {tpernes 3 chudieg gants of § ) (Revenn s )

4c  (Cooe ) (EBxperaes § nchsdng gants of § ) (Revenue s )

4d  Other program services (Descrite on Schedule O)

(Expernes $ nchdng gants of § ) {Povecas )
4e_Total program service expenses > 33,801,858,
Form 990 (2021)
1232002 120021
2
14290505 131839 058-033730 2021.03040 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 058-0331
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325  page3
iﬁﬁimmammsﬂm

1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)3) or 4947(a)1) (other than a private foundation)?
¥ *Yes,* compiete Schedule A . ) ) 1
2 Is the organization required to complete Scf e“ of Contributors? Soe Instructions 2
3 wmommmnmammmmmmwuunmmmb
public office? If *Yes,* compiete Schedule C, Part | 3
4 mmemwmmmwmhmmwmaam-mmwmnm
during the tax year? Iif *Yes,* complete Schede C, Part il . . by e A b ol e oS Mb AL 4
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)4), 501(ciS), or 501(c)8) organization that rship dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 88-197 Jf *Yes,* complete Schedule C, Part I 5
6 Did the organization maintain any donce advised funds or ary simiar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the dstribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? ¥ “yas, * complete Schedule O, Part! |6
7 Did the organization receive or hold a consarvation , Incluging 15 10 Preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or Ns1oric structures? | “Yas, * complete Schedule D, Part i ; 7
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? )t *vas * complete
Schedule D, Part W . - 8
9 Dldm.ormmmmonmmnmx.wzl WWWMMIM muambr
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit g, Gebt 0 credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If *Yes, " comploto Schedule D, Part IV . PRI B 1 B
10 mnwmuwamwwmnmmm
OF in quasi endowmens? If *Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part V
11 i the organization’s answer o any of the following questions is "Yes,* than complete Schedule D, MVIVIIVIHX.O'X.
a&s applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, bulidings, and equipment in Part X, ine 107 1f *Yes, * complete Schedule D,
Patvi
b Did the crganization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total
assets repocted In Part X, line 167 If *Yes, " complete Scheckule D, Part Vil ...
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, n‘&mn%amdmw
assats reported In Part X, line 167 i *Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part VI ...
d Did the orgar report an —‘lovaanxnu.mamamdntoumwn
Part X, line 167 Jf *Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX ) S —
e mmwwmmbmmnpmx ih.?ﬁ? n-y”, mwo p.nx
1 Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's kabiity for uncertain tax posttions under FIN 48 (ASC 74007 I *Yes, * complete Schedule D, Part X
12a Did the orgar obtain sap independent audited financial statements for the tax year? it *Yes, " complete
Schedule D, Parts Xi and Xi o ; x & y :
b Was the organization included in lidated, independent aucited financial statements for the tax year?
I “Yes,* and if the arganization answered "No* 1o line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XIi is optional
Is the organization a school described in section 1700N1NANH? 1 *Yes,* complate Schedule £
Did the organization mantain an office, employ or agents ido of the United States? ;
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, MW\g um
investment, and program senvice activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? If *Yes,* complete Schedule F, Parts land IV . "
wmwmmmmmwnammuoooofmammwawm
foreign organzation? if *yas, * compiete Schadule F, Parts il and IV
memmmmmmh&mm%owolwmmmmm
or for foreign | duais? If "Yes,* plete Schedule F, Parts Itf and V .
Dumoummoﬂamammﬁsmoawmwmummmmm
column (A), ines 6 and 1187 i *yes, * complete Schedule G, Part . See instructions
oumowmmonnmvmasooowawwummmwmmwummwms
1c and 8a7 )f *Yes,* complete Schedide G, Part .. ..
Wmoorgmnpoﬂmwﬂsooodmmmmwmmumw Inoﬁa’l Af'Yq
complete Schedule G, Part il : S
thmmmwmwm? rr'Vcs. oamsmnn N
u‘v.;’wnzoaouwwmmm:cowmmmwwmwmmm
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
—domestic government on Part IX, column (A), Iine 17 Jf "Yas * compisle Schadide | Parts [and Il 21 & .
122003 42-09-2% 3 Form 990 (2021)
14290505 131839 058-033730 2021,03040 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 058-0331
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3 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 paged
[Fart V| Checkiitof Reauired Schedules contruea)

22 Did the organization report mare than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic indnviduals on
Part IX, column (A}, line 27 if *Yes, * complete Schedwe I, Parts | and It
23 D the organization answer “Yes® to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, wwo«mmmaw

and former officers, s, trustees, key employees, and highest vsated employeas?  if “Yes,* complate
24a D the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 ¥ *Yes,* Kinos 24b through 24d and ok
Schedwe K. if "No," go to kne 25a . » i
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-axempt bonds beyond a tempx ypanod ption?
c wmmmwwmmmmmmum\gmmmmmmmmdm
any tax-exempt bonds?
d D« the organizaton act as an mwwmummammmwm
25a Section 501(c)3), 501(c)4), and 504c)29) organizations. Did the organi gage n an benefit

with a disqualfied person during the year? [f “Yes, * complete Schadufe L, Part |

b Iammmmmnwmmmmmmamm;\awm and

that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 980-EZ? If *Yas, * complete

Schedwe L, Part |
26 Mmmmmonwmmmx.msuzzbrmm«mymwww
or former officer, o , key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlied entity or famiy member of any of these parsons? If *Yes, * complede Schadule L, Part i ‘
27 mwmmmnmammmmWamm key employ
creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant sel '.mmawamm

entty (Including an empioyee thereof) or family member of any of these parsons? f *Yes, * complete Schedule L, Part If .
28 Was the organization a party 10 a business transaction with one of the following parties (see the Schedule L, Part IV,
Instructions for applicable fling thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

Yes | No
22| X
|23 | X |
240 X
| 24b
| 24
- |24
| 258 X
255 X
| 26 X
- X

a Acurent or former officer, drector, trustee, key employ or founder, or substantial contributor? ¥
“Yes,* complete Schedule L, Part IV ; : | 28a X
b A family member of any individul in line 2847 Jf *vas, * compiete Schedula L. Part IV ... 280 X
© A35% controlied entity of ona or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 2807 Jf
“Yes,* complate Schedwe L, PartIV | 28¢ X
29 MWWMMMM&SMnWM n-y“, wwsmu 20 | X |
30 Dud the orgar butions of art, hi  treas, or other simiar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? If *Yes,* complete Scheckie M . e R o I T NS S | 30 X
31 Dud the organization iquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? i *Yas, * complete Schedule N, Part | 3 X
32 Dud the organization sell, exchange, tispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? ) *Yes, * complete
Schedule N, Part It | 32 X
3 Mmmmmw1mmmmdmmmumsmmmmw
sections 301.7701:2 and 301770137 If *Yes,* complote Schedule A, Part| .. B - X
34 Was the organzation related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? # *Yes, * WMSMRPMHMuNw
PartV, Gne 1 .. 34 X
35a wmmnmmacmmuymmmmawmzmmm | 35a X
b If "Yes® 10 Ine 353, did the crganization receive any payment from or engage in any ion with a cor entity
within the meaning of section S12(b){13)? If *Yes, " complete Schedule R, Part V. ine 2 . | 350
36 mwﬂcmmwmmammwmwmmmmmawmm
If *Yes," compiete Schadule R, Part V, ine 2 ... | 36 X
7 mmmmmmmsudnmmmmmmumamwm
and that is treated s a partnership for federal | tax purposes? If *Yes,* complete Schecule R Part VI | 37 X
38 mmmmmmommwmwoumw ines 11b and 197
: s | X
mnmomamammawmnmmv ]
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0 if not applicable ) 1a 60
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on fine 1a. Enter 0. if not applicable : 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to and reportable gaming
—{gambling) winnings to prize winners? fo | X
132004 120021 Form 990 (2021)
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: OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325  page§

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (cantinued)

Yes ! No

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisretum 146
b If at loast one is reported on line 23, did the organization file all required federal employment tax retums?
Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required 10 a-file. See instructions.
3a Did the organization have unrelated busness gross ncome of $1,000 or more during the year?
b If “Yes,” has it fiked a Form 880-T for this yea? ¥ “No* to ine 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in 3 foreign country isuch as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?
b If *Yes," enter the name of the foreign country P>
See instructions for filng requirements for FNCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
Sa Was the organization a party 10 a prohibited tax sheter transaction at any time during the tax year?
b Did any taxable party notify the crganization that & was or is a party 10 & prohibited tax shelter transaction?
c
6a

If “Yes® to ine 5a or 5b, di! the organization file Form B8836-T7

Does the organization have annual gross that are ity g than $100,000, and did the organization sokct

any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? X
b If *Yes," did the crganization include with every soli an expy that such contributions or gifts

were not tax deductible?

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of 75 made partly as a contribetion and partly for goods and services provided 1o the payoe?
b If "Yes," cid the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or sanvicas provided?

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required

Bl B [l 2 bk P
[[>

SOMSPOMRIBERT ..t o s i AT s i bttt pviidcaimscsrimt: | E28 -1 X
d It "Yes," ndicate the number of Forms 8282 fled duringtheyear  |7a] 2
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or ndrrectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? Te X
t  Did the organization, during the year, pay pramums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? : 7 X
g [f the organization recesved a contribution of qualffied intellectual property, cid the organization file Form 8899 as required? 7a
h I the organization receved a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1008C7 | 7h | X

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund mantaned by the
5ponsonng organization have excess business holdings atany time dwring the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a D the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49687
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution 10 8 donor, Jonor acvisor, Or related pearson?
10 Section 501(c)7) organizations. Enter.
a Infiation fees and captal contributions Included on Part Vil ine 12 g
b Gross receipts, iIncluded on Form 980, Part VI, line 12, for publc use of club fachties 1
11 Section 501(c){12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross ncome from members or shareholders on i L |11a
b Gross ncome from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received from them.) ; . .
12a Section 4847(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. 1s the organzation Ming Form 960 in beu of Form 10417
b If "Yes,* enter the amount of tax Pt interast d oraccrued duingtheyear 1
13 Section 501(c)29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a |5 the orgar ! d to Issue qualdied health plans in more than one state? o
Note: See the instructions for additional Information the organization must report on Schedule O,
b Enter the amount of reserves the orgar 1 s required to by the states in which the
organization is icensad 10 issue quakfiad haalth plans tg
¢ Enter the amount of reserves on hand
143 Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services dunng the tax year?
b If *Yes," has it fied a Form 720 to report these pay ? If *No," pr an exp on S | - SRR RS
15 |5 the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on paymentis) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
If "Yes,* see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the saction 4968 excise tax on net investment income?
If *Yes,* complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
17  Section 501(c)21) organizations, Did the trust, any dsqualified person, of Mine operator engage in any

1

5

G

kil Bk

activities that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under saction 4951, 4852 or 49537 NPRPPPOIIPRTRSIIN L | ;
If *Yes.* complete Form 6089.
133008 120021 5 Form 990 (2021)
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m OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 Page 6
|§§E§iim Management, and Disclosure. ru pach *Yos* response to fines 2 through 7b below, and for a *No® response
fo iine 8a, 8b, or 100 below, the IMSLANCes, o or changes on Schedule O, See nstructions.

it Part Vi X
Section A. Governing Body and Management
| No

Yes

1a Enter the rumber of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year 1a 19

It there are material dflerences in voting rights amang members of the governing body, or if the governing

body delegated broad asthority 10 an executive committee or similr committee, explain on Schedule 0,
b Enter the number of voting members inciuded on line 1a, above, who are indepencent 1b 18
2 wwmmvmamnywmnvmmmuammmwm

officer, drector, trustee, or key empioyee? : R S L i
3 oamoommaanum 'over- agement duties & ily performed by or under the direct supervision

of officers, d s, or key employees to a 0 pany or other person?
“ mwmmmmqmmmmmmmmwmmm“ﬁm
5 Did the organization bacome aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?
6 D the organization have s of stoch ?
7a wmmmmmumaaanmmmmwmamuma

more members of the governing body? o PR i
bm:mpmmdwmmmm(u bject to appeoval by) bers, stockholders, or

persons other than the goveming body?
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the foliowing:
3 The governing body?
b Each committes with authorty to act on behall of the governing body?
9 Is there any officer, director, ovlwy ploy mnmwmammummm

B lu x'ululu »

© ]3]2 g B |owlele v
B

Yes |

g| e |

10a D« the organization have local chapters, branches, or affikates? v R T 22
b If “Yes* mmwmmmmmmmtm Ctivit dwChu_,. atfikates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organzation's exempt purposes?
11a mmmmuomawnmmwammmwummmmmmmowwmm
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, usad by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? ) “No,* gotomus

b 3

e
o
=

b Were officers, drectors, or es, and key employees required %o d mmsmwwnmnm
© Dxf the organization regularty and Y and enforca complanca with the policy? If *Yes, * describe
on Schedule O how this was done .. ¥ R AT B SN NG BT X AT
13 Did the orgar have a policy?
14 mmwm:mmmmmw L
15 D the p for d ing P of the folk g persons inchud lmbwmdwuym
persons, comparabilty data, and contemporanecus substantiation of the deliberation and decsion?
a The ocrganization's CEO, Executive D , Or 10D 0 offcial
b Other officers or key employees of the organization )
If *Yes' to ine 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. &omtmcm
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in 2 joint venture or similar amangement with a
taxable entity during the year?
b It "Yes* umwmammammmwmmumm
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization's
e XOMOE tatus with respect to such amangements?
Section C. Disclosure -
17 Ust the states with which a copy of this Form 990 Is required to be filed PSEE _SCHEDULE O
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024.A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)(3)s only) availabie
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
[X] ownwebsite [ Ancther's website [X] upon request [ other faxpiain on Scheduie 0)
19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and If 50, how) tha organization made its governing documents, confict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public dunng the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of tha person who possesses the organization's books and records P
ANDRE HAWKINS - 210-243-6146
1355 CENTRAL PKWY, SAN ANTONIO, TX 78232
132000 120821 Form 990 (2021)
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1 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325  page?
[Part Vil] Gompensation of Officers, Directors, Trustess; Key Employees, Fighest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors

Mnmomawamwmmnmmﬂw —1

ummmmuummwuww P lotu*‘ dar year ending with or within the organcation's tax year,
® List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardiess of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compansation was paid.
® List all of the organization's uey \ployees, if any. See the instructions for definition of “key employee
© List the organization's fve curr wated L (other than an officer, diroctor, trustee, or key empioyee) who received report.
atle compensation (box S of Form W-2, rammulsamwmtotrammm«m-msimtmmammmm-umwm
® List all of the crganization’s former officers, key amployees, and highest P g employees who recelved more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
® List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that recaived, in the capacity as a former drector or trustee of the organzation,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to kst the persons above.

Check this box # neither the izaticn noe any related . ed any current officer, director, ortrustee.
A 8) (€) (L] (E) La]
Narne and title Average | oo, Dosltion Reportable Reportable Estimated
NOWS per | bow, usiess person is bom an L= on compensat amount of
wedk® | onsrens Suris trom from related other
(list any g the gani - pensats
hours for 4 I organization (W2/1099MISC/ from the
reated g i { (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099NEC) organzation
lorganizations ; 5 1099-NEC) and related
below | 2 ,‘. 14 organizations
ey [S|F[8 iél §
{1) JOMN I. PRAY, JR. 40.00
PRESIDENT/CEO X| |X 495,720. 0.| 10,907.
{2) MARGUERITE KIRST 40.00
CHIEF REVENUE OFPICER X 266,797. 0. 9,038.
(3) ROBERT THOMAS 40.00
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER X 242,008, 0. 7,617.
(4) ANDRE HAMKINS 40.00
CHIEF PINANCIAL OFFICER X 171,144. 0.] 29,792.
{5) JILL ESXIN-SNITH 40.00
VP OF CORPORATE & POUNDATION PARTNER X 168,620. 0. 6,485.
(6] TROY KASBARIAN 40.00
VP OF IT, LOGISTICS & PACILITIES X 154,503. 0.] 13,233.
(7) KAREN SMITHHART 40.00
SR VP, HUMAN RESOURCES X 145,054. 0.] 12,629.
{8) WALTER STERBERG 40.00
VP OF MARKETING, OUTGOING X 139,377. 0. 4,655,
191 JACOB ADAMS 40.00
SR MGR, SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT X 131,478. 0. 5,664.
(10) GRACELYNNE BROLL 40.00
VP OF TRANSITIONAL & PERMANENT HOUSI X 127,432, 0. 8,874.
(11) ANGELO LOMBARDI 0.00
CHATRMAN X| [X 0. 0. 0.
(12) ULI CORREA 0.00
VICE CHAIR X X 0. 0. 0.
{13) DIANNA JAFFIN 0.00
SECRETARY X X 0. 0. 0.
(14) JK MUEY 0.00
TREASURER X| |X 0. 0. 0.
(15) OREG HAM 0.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(16) ROD ESSIG 0.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{17) LAURA PREDRICKS 0.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
133007 120021 Form 990 (2021)
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Form 990 2021) OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 pae®

F)
Eatimated
amount of
other
listary | 3 the organizations compansation
hoursfor | & v CEAiEaton -2 0B-MISCF Troem the
miated | | & = [W-211099-MISCS 1099-MEC) arganization
ferganazations| | H E i‘_ 1088-MEC) and related
below i 1" gi-ﬂi onganizations
fins) HEARED
(18] BOB MOGOWAN 0.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. g,
1191 ANTHONY WILLIAMS 0.00 |
DIRECTOR X 0. 1] ]
(20} ROB GIAKNETTA 0.00
DIRBCTOR X 0. 0 0
{21} FRANE PARAS 0.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0
[22) MARTY HAUSER 0.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{21} STEVE MAHON 0.00
DIRECTOR X 4] 0. 0
{34} LINDA MEDLER 0,00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
[25) STEVE ADKIMSON 0.00
DIRECTOR X Q. 0. 0.
[26) DEREX BLAKE 0.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
18 Subtotal | 2,042,133, 0./108,894.
¢ Tolal fram continuation sheets to Part VIL Section A - 0. 0. 0.
| 2,042,133, 0.) 108,894,
3 Total numiber of individuals fincluding but not limited to those listed above) wha received mons than $100,000 of reportable
compensation fom the organization = 14
Yeu | No
3 Did the arganization list arry former officer, dirsctor, tnsstes, key employes, or highest compensated employes on
lirss 187 I *Yas, " complate Schedue J fov such indnidual | S
4 Fu-ran-,:mmumuummuumaummmmmmmmmmmmm
and related organizations greater than $150,0007 1 *yas, * comphete Schodule J for such indiidusl 4 | X
& Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated crganization or individual for services
rendared to the grganization? If *Vas, * complens Schechie o 10F SUCH DOMSAN -.o.oooceseevicsseeees oo | B S
Saction B. Independent Contraciors
1 Complets this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that recefeed more than 5100000 of compensation from
—the oganization. Report compengation for the calendar year ending with or within the oganization’s tax year,
() B) 1]
Marne and busiress address. Description of senvices Ceenpensation
MARFETEARM, LLC, 1200 ABERNATHY RD NE STE DIRECT
1600, ATLATMA, GA 30328 RESPONSE,/PRINTING 2,029,803,
DATA AXLE
PO BOX 959819, ST LOUIS, MO 63195 DIRECT MAIL SERVICES 163,393,
CDW
PO BOX 75723 , CHICAGO, IL 60675 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 137,529,
AEGIS PROCESSING SOLUTIONS, INC
240 SE MADISON ST, TOPEKEA, KS 66607 DIRECT RESPOMSE 124,653,
IPFS CORPORATION INSURANCE FIMANCING
PO BOX 730223 , DALLAS, TX 75373 EERVICES 108,659,
2 meuWMrmwmmmnmmmm-mmwmmm
100,000 of compensation from the
SEE PART VII, SECTION h CONTINUATION SHEETS Ferrn 980 2021)

112008 R2-08-21
B
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32-0033325

it Compensated Employees rontinund)
=] (E) Fl
Reportable Repartable Estimated
COMpenaation compsansation amount of
from frcem redated ather
o ® the OIgANIZARnE COMpEREaton
listany | § i organizzbon (W2 98- MISC) froen the
howrstor | = 2 (W2A089-MISC) organization
related | % | 2 i and related
lorganizations| £ E i E organizations
e i 3 5|8
e) (2| E|E|Z i‘ -
[27) LAURIE GALLO 0.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
[28) WOODY WOODYARD 0.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
Tostal to Part V|, Section A_line 16
13330
DEpe
9
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32-0033325 pPage8

Eﬁ ﬁq OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC.
ment of a

Check il Sehedule O containg a responss or nots to any lins i this Part VI

Total reveriss

iB]
Ralated or axampt
PUmCHON revenues

(=]
Unredatesd
DLSSINess reventLe

[Revenme excluded
from fae under
Dactions 512 - 514

Faderated campaigns 1a

Membarshep dues ib

336,

778,

Related organizations 1d

&m&ﬂﬂuﬂtfﬁﬁu{tﬁﬂﬂhﬁ:ﬁﬂ il

Al piher comtribuons, gifts, grants, and

simiar amounts nol included above i

40 614,

34,

honemh combbotom noiuded n e Ta-™
Total. Add lines 1a-1f

E
g
E

1 14,452,123,

| = 40,551,152,

Bisinass

Code

531394

8 &30,

9 830,

Total Add lifes 2421

9 810,

ather simiar amounts)

Irnvesrmend income (including dridends, inferest, and

Incoimas from investment of tax-sasmgt bond proceads

31,2712,

3,272,

rYywy |¥

[} Feeal

(i) Perscnal

Gross rents

Lesss: rérital expenises

Rlzle

Rental income or oss)

d Nat rental income of (lss)

Gross amount from sales of 1) Securities

(i) Caher

assets other than imventory 324,880,

Lesss: &oat of other Bisis

and sabes expensas 334,702,

il

Gain or (loss) 158

L]

Te

d Mt gain or oss)

1538,

158,

Gross income from fundraising events (not
including § 336,778, of
contributions reported on ling 1c), See
Part IV, e 18

Other Revenue

| 8a

46,

106,

122,

740,

& Met income o (loss) from fundraising events

176, 634,

| 2

176, 634,

Gross income fom gaming aclivites. See

Part IV, ling 19 EZ]

Lass: dingct axpanses

|96

Mat income o (leks) from gaming acthities

Groas sales of Fvertory, less retums
and alkvwances
Less: cost of goods sald

¢ Mot income or (ics) rom ales of inventory

|3

11 a MISC REIMBURSEMENTS

Businass Cods

500001

73,461,

73,461,

b

(=)

i d Al other revenwe
& Tetal Add lnes 118-11d

Th_akl,

— 12 Totil vevenye, See insiructons

»>
> 40 861 039,

9 610,

[TIIER

122009 120831
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F«mm%‘li OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 page 10
u ona

Section 507(ch3) and 501k onganimtions must compdete all colurmns. Al aifwar organizations must compiehe column (4]

Cheek if Seheduls O eontains 3 respanss or nabe b any ine in this Part 1] [
Do nod include amaunts reporfed on flives b, Toagl ﬂ}m pm{amlm Mmm{q & and Fmélr:}m
7b, 80, 90, and 100 of Part VI experses generil expenses expenses

1 Grants and oiher assistance fo domeslic or ganizations
and domestic govermments. See Part IV, ling 21
2 Grants and other asgistance 1o domsagts
indvicuals, Sea Partiv, nezz | 24, 346,447.| 24,346,447,
3 Grants and other assistance 10 foreign
onganizations, foreign govemments, and forsign
individuats. See Part IV, lines 15and 16
Benafits paid to or for members. .
5 Wmolmﬂmm
trustess, and key employess ) 1,408,128, 606,129, 359,896, 442,103,
& Compensation not included shove 3 SSquaitied
persons (35 defined under section 4958(1) 1)) and
persons described in section 4958( ci 3)(B)

7 Other salaries and wages 5,911,612.| 4,530,681. 646,962, 733,969,
8 Pension plan accruals and contribitions (include
section 401k} and 405 emplayer ) 198, 764. 151,527. 21,787. 25,450.
8  (Mher employes benefls. 654 ,849. 472,641, 74,246. 107,962.
10 Payroll taxes 631,089, 444,822, 85,158, 101,109,
11 Faeas for 5ervices (nonsmiplcyees):
bolegal . 41,502, 41,502,
e Aecountng 66,500, 66,500,
d Lebbying
& Prolesionl hndraising senvices. Ses Pat v, line 17 | 2,029, B03. 2,029,803,
I Irvestment mansgement fees 150. 150.
g Other. (It ing 117 amount excseds 10% of line 25,
polumn (A, amoung, kst line 115 epersss on Sen 0y 1, 365, 377 . 1,109,572, 255,705,
12 Adventising and promotion 548,978. 536,769. 12,209.
13 mmm 299,095. 23?;9&5- ‘5,151- 15;9‘3-
14 Informationtechnology
18 Occupancy ... 788,163, 589,187. 197,795. 1,181.
17 Travel 43,286, 22,534, 5,849, 14,903,

18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for ary federal, stale, or local pubkc officials

18 Conterences, conventions, and meatings 15,880. 12,113. 3,263, 504.
20 Imbeest B,749. 8,745.

2 Paymentstoaffliates .
22 Depreciation, depietion, and amortization 535,006. 506,856. 23,393, 4,757.
I3 Insurance

a4 mmnmuawmmmﬂ

above. (List miscellaneous mpenses on line 24e. H
line 24 amound expieds 10% of ling 25, aalemn (A),
amound, st ling 24e expenses on Sehedule 0.)

» BAD DEBT EXP 95,287. 95,287.

b BANK & CC FEES 78,334, 43,031, 15,851, 19,452,

¢ INVENTORY OBSOLETION 51,298, 51,298,

4 MEMBERSHIF DUES 33,343, 22,580. 2,546. 8,217.

e Al ather axpenses 125,392, 73,686. 18,397, 33,308,
T i _Adi ines 1 thiough 24e | 39,276 ,932,] 33,801,858, 1,936,407, 3,538,667,

28 Joint coste. Complete this ling oy if the organization
repanted in column (B) jeint costs fram a combined
prlucational campaign and Tundrasing sobcition.
Checs vers [ ]| i borwing 505 56-3 ASC 3887201 2,434,497, 1,022,489, 0 1,412,008,

1AM E2-00Et Form 990 2021}
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1) OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC.
Sheet

art lance
[ & n X D
(A) ®)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash- non-interestbearing 4,989,244.] 1 4,510,464.
2 Savings and temporary cash if 159,007.] 2 439,459.
3 Piedges and grants receivable, net 3,334,142.| 3 7,563,181,
4 Accounts receivable, net WSROI 4 816.742_-
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, deector,
trustee, key employee, creator o founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlied entity or family member of any of these persons y 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
under section 4958(f(1}), and persons described in section 4958(cHINB) 6
7 Notes and loans receivable, nat 7
; 8 Inventories for sale or use 8
9 Prepaid expanses and ceferred charges 313,718.] o 289,343,
10a Land, buikdings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Compiete Part VI of Schedule D 8,332,828.
b Less: accumuiated depreciation 106 2,205,510. 4,422,096.) 10¢ 6,127,318.
11 Investmeants - publicly traded securities 2,005,317.( 11 2,005,520.
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments - program-related, See Part IV, lne 11 13
14 Intangibie assets ) 14 .
15  Other assets. Soo Part IV, line 11 B 13,605,046.] 15 9,052,917.
B Add ines 1 15 fine 28,828,570.] 6| 30,804,944.
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,272,729.] 17 1,529,701.
18 Grants payabie 18
19 Oeferedrevenve 19
20 Tacexemptbond labiities 20
21 Escrow o custodial account abiity. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 467,5907.] 21 441,439.
22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officar, director,
; trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
g cortrolled entity or family member of any of thesa perscas 2
23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to urvelated third parties 23
24  Unsecured notes and loans payabie to unrelated third parties 24 160,832.
25  Other kabilities (inchucing federal Income tax, payables to redated thrd
parties, and other labiities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D N 25 R
| 26 Total lisbiities. Add Ines 17 through 25 1,740,636. 2,131,972,
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here B [ X1
and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
27 Net assets without donor restrictions 21,534,410.] 27| 19,957,548,
28 Net assets with donor restrictions 5,553,524.) 28 | 8,715,424,

Net Assets or Fund Balances |

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here B ||
and complete lines 29 through 33.

29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 2
30 Paicin or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 30
31 R QAMINgGs, or t, ac sated . ©r other funds " s 31
32 Totalnetassetsorfundibalances ; 27,087,934./ 32| 28,672,972,
33 Total liabiities and nat assets/fund balances 28,828,570.({ 3 30,804,944,
Farm 990 (2021)
123200 20921
12
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MMF) OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 pxei2

Reconciliation of Net Assets
it Schedule O a or note to any ling in this Part XI

-

Total reverwe (must equal Part Vill, column (A), ine 12)

40,861,039,

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)

39,276,932.

Revenue less expenses. Subtract ine 2 from ne 1

1,584,107.

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A}

27,087,934,

Net urvealized gains (10sses) on investments

931.

Donated services and use of faciities

Investment expenses

Pnorpunodaqm

OLNCGOHN-Q

0.

SooNaOs LN

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. WMSWQM.@PmX‘W& o

=

28,672,972,

[ﬁ%ﬁ%mww
Check if Schedule O contans a response or note to any line in this Part XiI

R |

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form200: || Cash  [X] Acerua  [_] Other

Yes | No

i the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked *Other,* explain on Schadule O.
28 Were the organization's financial statements compied or reviewed by an independent accountant?
M "Yes," check a box below 10 indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consoldated bass, or both:
[) separatevasis [ Consoldated basis [ Both consoliciated and separate basis
b Were the organization's financial statements aucded by an mdependent accountant?

¥ "Yes* Mammtommunhwudummummmmmamnm.

consoiidated basis, or both:
€ M "Yes" 1o line 2a or 20, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibilty for aversight of the audit,
review, o compilation of its financial staternents and selection of an independent accountant?
M the organization changed either its ight pr or on pr during the tax year, explain on Schedule O.
38 As aresult of 3 federal award, was the organzation required 10 UNdergo an audt or audits as set forth in the Single Audit
Act and OMB Circular A-1337
b If "Yes' amwmmmmamluwwmmmmm

020w o
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- OV No. 1545 0047
DAMDAEA Public Charity Status and Public Support
Formony Complete if the organization Is a section 501(c)3) organization or a section 2021
4947(a)( 1) nonexempt charitable trust.

Deparvrent of e Treaswry P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
e Sekte P Go to www.irs.gov/Form@90 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325

[PartT | Feason for Public Charity Status. (Al organiaions mast compiete Fis part) See maucions

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, chack only ona box.)
1 C] A church, convention of churches, or assocation of churches descrited n  section 170{bX 1AXi).
2 [] Aschoot described in section 170{b) 1§AXi). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)

3 [:] A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organzath cribed n tion 170(0) 1AXii).

4 [ ] Amedical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b) IANIIL. Enter the hospial's name,
city, and state:

5 [ ] Anceganization cperated for the beneft of a college or university owned or operated by a g ttal unit din

section 170(b) INAXiv). (Complete Part I1)
6 [ Atederal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170X 1INAKY).
7 [X] An oeganization that noemally receives a substantial pant of its support from a govemmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b){1NAKvI). (Complete Part II)
8 || Acommunity trust described in section 170(b)Y TNAXvi). (Compiete Part II.)
9 [ Anagricuttural research organization described in section 170{b)1§A)ix) operated in conunction with a tand-grant college
or university or a non-dand grant college of agnculture (see instructions). Enter the name, City, and state of the college or
university:
10 ] An organization that nomally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from
activities toits ot i bject to in exceptions. and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its from gross i ant
and L o taxabie Income (less section 511 tax) rom businesses acquired by the ceganization after Juna 30, 1975,
See section 509(a)(2). (Compiete Part 1l )
11 ] An ceganization ceganzed and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 500(a)(4).
12 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or 1o carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations describad in section 509(a)1) o section 509(a)2). See section 509(a)3). Check the box on
nes 12a theough 12d that describes the type of supporting organzation and complete lines 12e, 121, and 129,
a [_] Type L A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlied by Rs supported organzation(s), typically by ghing

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majorty of the or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b [_] Type i A supporting organization supervised or cor ne ) with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must wplete Part IV, Secti Aand C.

e [ Type il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization|s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d ] Type ll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organizationis)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisty a distribution requiremeant and an attentiveness
requrement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [ ] Cneckthis box it tha organization received a written determination from tha IRS that #t is a Type |, Type Il, Type il
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

{ Enter the number of supported organizations - i :

MWL
1) Name of supported WEN W) Type of organization | 1% 5 1e teases WIE | (v) Amount of monetary (W) Amount of other
crganizaton (Cescribed on lnes 110 L0 Gx samngs tcsman |
Bbove [se nstructions])

Yes No Spport (see instructions) | suppont (see nNstructons)

Total
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 202 010422 Schedule A (Form 990) 2021




OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32 0033325

{Compiete only if you checked the box on ine 5, 7, aammu«dmmmfdﬂtnmmmm HNW
fails to qualify uncer the tests listed balow, please complate Part lil)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year bagianing in) P {8) 2017 (b)2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 {e) 2021 (f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
inchude any *unusual grants.*) 39815536.45825491.48573242.39166556.40951152.1214331977

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization's beneft and either paid o
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or faciities
fumished by a governmantal unit to
the organization without charge " "

4 Total. Acd ines 1 through 3 [39815536.45825491.148573242.39166556.40951152.214331977

§ The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported crganaation) iIncluded
on Ine 1 that axceeds 2% of the
amount shown on kne 11,
column (f) oy 80370589.

Bt e s et 223561388

Calendar year (or fiscal year begiasing in) > 2017 2018 2019 (d) 2020 I (e) 2021 (1) Total
7 Amounts from line 4 9815536.45825491.148573242.39166556.40951152.214331977

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
Securties loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources 23,842.| 37,159.| 42,763.| 26,976. 3,272./134,012.

9 Net ncome from unrelated business

activities, whether or not the

business is regularty carried on
10 Other income. Do not include gan

or loss from the sae of capital

assets (Explain n PartV1) 41,795.| 48,473.| 80,006. 6,529.] 73,461.| 250,264.
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 14716253
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. {see nstructions) 12| 2,506,380.
13 ms"mllnForthsbrtmumshstmMm«!ﬁhmmsamwikm
e QrQaNization, check this box and stop here p 1
&cﬂwC.CompuhﬂonofMlcSmpoannugo
14 Public support percentage for 2021 (lne 6, column {f), dvided by line 11, column (1) ) 14 62.39 %
15 Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part Il, ine 14 |15 62.04 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2021, Hhagmczhonodnoldlwkmbwonlmla mdlm14|3331msorm check this box and

stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization » X

b 33 1/3% support test - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on kne 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or mare, check this box

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization J »
17a 10% -facts-and-cir test - 2021, i the organization did not check a box on ine 13, 163, or 18D, winouslu%orm

and if the organization meets the facts-andcircumstances test, check this box and  stop here. Explain in Part Vi how the organization

meets the facts-and wces test. The organi quaifies as a publicly supported orgas » ]

b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on ine 13, 16a. 18b, or 172, and foe 15 is 10% o

more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and  stop here. Explain in Part Vi how the

Wmmmmm Mawmmmmnamwwmwm » ]

MAFWMM‘I
132092 00422
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OPERATION HDI-!IEFRDNT INC. i 32-0033325

(Complete only il you chechid the box on line 10 of Part | or if the crganization tailed to quality under Part 11, If the organization fails to

under the tests ksfed below, & e Part 1)
ﬁEf %iﬁ mﬂ

Calendar year {or fiscal year bagisaing in) I fa) 2017 (b} 2018 fe) 209 [} 2020 [o) M0 [f) Total
1 Gafts. grants. comributons, and
memibership fees received. (Do not
inchade any "unusual grants.”)
2 GMSs receipts fnom admissEns,
marchandise sold o Serices per-
formed, o EatiBlies furmdhed in
arvy activity that is retated to the
arganization's tax-exempt purpose
3 Gross receipts from activities that
ane not an unrelated trade or bus-
in@ss under section 513
4 Tax reverues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefl and either paid 1o
or expended on its behalf
5 The value of services or facilities
fumnished by a governmental unif to
the organization withcut charge
& Total. Add lines 1 through 5§
Ta Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 recaived from gequalilied persons
Iy Arrarurds cuded o= lines. 2 and 3 recened
ST e T SRR [ RO TR

anooed tha graater of 55,000 o 1% ol e
w11 A e year

© Add ines Ta and Th

Calendar yeur {or fiscal year baginsing in) = | [a) 5017 {b) 2018 ie] 2018 {d] 2020 e} 2021 if) Total
8 Amounts from line &

secunities loans, rems, royalties,
and inCome from similar SOUrCes
b Unrelated business tucable income
(less Section 511 Goes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1875
& A Bres 108 and 106

11 Met income from wnrelated business
activities nol included on Bne 10D,
wihether or not the butiness &

12 Ciher income. Do-mqnnm-aqm
or loss from the sale of capital
assets [Explain in PartVi) -

13 Tetal suppor. (add bres 8 %c. 11, and 12}

14 First 5 years. H the Form 990 is Tor the organization's first, second, third, fousth, or fifth tax year &5 A secton S01ic)3) crganization,

el
rtPimlmngl

15 Public support percentage for 2021 (line 8, column {f), divided by line 13, column ) |18 %
16 Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part 1il, ne 15 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 kwesiment income percentage for J021 (e 10, column (), divided by ke 13, column i LIT H
18 Invesiment income percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part Il line 17 18 H
18a 33 1/3% support tests - 2021, Hﬂuthn:mdnlmtcl‘mkﬂwbuxmlmid am.w-‘l.'}nmhﬁ;!h‘.‘!‘% and line 17 is not

mane than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization I

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2020, If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or lne 18a, -ﬂhrnlﬂ-nrrmﬂm:!ﬂhﬂ%.iru

ﬁrﬂ184nﬁmﬂm3&immmlnmw lhnhui.mem;mlmmhﬁaauanﬂrdyaummmm [
AT 0904337 m.ﬁ.fﬁ'm S50y 201
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Schedule A (Form 1 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 pages
{Compiete only if you checked a box in ine 12 on Part 1. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A

and B. ¥ you checked box 120, Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you chacked box 12¢, Part |, compiete

s.amg,o,we.n%mwtz_g,Pmu,mmAmo,wMme
pporting

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? if *No,* describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, axplain, 1

2 Dt the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
mmsomxno:m? ¥ *Yes,* expiain in Part VI how the organization defermined that the supported

ar was bed in on 50a)(1) or (24

3a Dud the orgar have a supported organtzation described in section 501(cH4), (5), or #8)7 If *Yes,* answer
lines 3b and 3¢ below.

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization quakfied under section 501(cHi4). (5), o (6) and
satisfied the public SupPOn tests under section SONaN2I7 I *Yas, * describe in Part VI when and how the
ovganization made the o

c Did the orgar ensure that all support to such org was used exclusiely for section 170(cN2)(B)
purposes? i *Yes, " explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place (o ensure such use.

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? i
*Yes,* and If you checked box 12a or 120 in Part |, answer ines 4b and 4¢ below.

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether 1o make grants 10 the foreign
supponed organization? Jf *Yes, * describe in Part VI how the arganization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised Dy or in cannection with its supparted organatons.

¢ Dud the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)3) and S0a)1) or (2)7 N‘Yas, explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
1o ensure that all support 1o the foreign supp G was usad exclusively for section 170 N2)(B)
purposes.

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or any supp o 18 during the tax year? f *yag, *
answer Mnes 5b and 5¢ below (if appécable). Also, provide detal in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organzations added, substituted, or removed, (V) the reasons for each such action;
() the authonty under the cvganization's organiing document authorizing such action; and {iv) how the action
was accompiished (such as by armendment fo the organizing document).

b Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

gnated In the organization's organizing document?

¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

6 Dxi the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of senvices or faciitias) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (ii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing crganzation's supported organizations? ¥ *Yes, * provide detal in
Part V1. 6

7  Dif the organization provide & grant, ioan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as cefinad in section 4958(c)3XC)). a tamily member of a substantial contridutor, or a 35% controlied entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? 1 *Yes, * complete Part I of Schedule L. (Form 990). 7

8 Dui the organization make a loan to a dsqualdfied person (as defined In 4958) not onine 7?
I *Yes," complete Part | of Schedie L (Form $90). 8

9a Was the crganization controlied directly or indeectly at any time dunng the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4846 (other than foundation Managers and OrGanizations descrived
in section 509{al(1) or {2)J? If *Yes, " provide detad in Part V1.

b Did one or more disqualified p {as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting crganization had an interest? If *Yes, * provide detad in Part VI,

¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined on ine 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derve any personal beneftt
from, assats in which the supporting organization aiso had an interest? i *Yes, * provide detall in Part VL

103 Was the crganization subject to the B holdings rules of saction 4943 because of section
4943() (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated

g Orgar =7 if *Yes,* Ane 100 balow,
b wmwmmmmmnmmm (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

e o e b

s

5

T

I A N

—slecniue etettier e OMSTRIOD b e XEINGSS Holging e
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11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following perscns?
@ A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons descrited on Iines 11b and
11c below, the g 19 body of 8 Supp: organization?
b A family member of a person dascribed on line 11a above?
¢ A 35% controled entity of a parson described on kne 113 or 110 above? ¥ *Yes* to Ane 11a, 115, or 11¢, provide

Yes | No

11b

t1e

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organzations have the power 10 reguiarty appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's officers,
directors, or trustees at a/l times duning the tax year? if *No, " describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
MW!WUW“W!M'“MMMMMWW
organization, describe how the powers 10 appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or were g the
supported organizations and whal conditions or restri ¥ any, appled 1o such po during the tax year.

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlied the supporting organization? Jf *Yes, * explain in
Pmmmmmwwmmwumwwmm

Yes | No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year 350 a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organzation's supported organization(s)? ¥ *No,* describe in Part VI how control
or management of the SUPPOrTNG OYpanzation was vested in the same p that controlled o¢ ped

Yoo | No

Section b. All Type il Supporting Organizations

1 Ok the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, () a written notica describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was mast recentfy filed as of the cate of notification, and (W) copies of the
orgar 1's governing d in etfect on the date of notification, to the extent not proviously provided?

2 Were any of the organzation’s officers, diroctors, or trustees either () appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organzation? If *"No, * expiain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the orgar 's supported organ havea
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
mam;nummmmym If “Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's

Yes | No

1 mmmmmmwmmwmmmmwm Test duning the year (see instructions).

a [_] T™he organization satisfied the Actities Test. Compiate line 2 below.
b [ ™e organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

¢ [_] T™he organization supported a go entity. Descnba in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructionsl,

2 Actmtios Test, Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

a Did substantialy all of the crganzation’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organczation(s) to which the crganization was responsive? | *Yes, * then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how Mhese actvities divectly furtherad thesr examp! pUposeas,
how the Organizabion was responsive 10 those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activiies constituted substantially all of is activilies.

b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement,
ona or more of the organization's supported crganzation(s) would have been engaged N? I *Yes, * expiain in
Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that is supported organization(s) would have engaged in
these activities but for the organization's involvernent,

3 Parent of Supported Organizatons, Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

a Did the organization have the power 10 regularly appont or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organzations? ¥ *Yas" or “No" provide details in Part VI

b Did the or uxma-’” | of drection over the ' and actwities of each

Yes | No

r&

3

122025 010422 Schedule A (Form 990) 2021
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A 1 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC.
|%H [ Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Su

32-0033325 Pages

pporting Organizations

1 I:MmifhmhﬂﬂiﬂmlhwpﬁTﬂta:mﬂmmﬂmNm.Bﬂ.igTOlmhF-{W.Sﬂhﬂﬂmﬂu-.
Al Type Il non- [ i i st K

Section A - Adjusted Net Incoms

A hE.

(A) Price ear

(B Current Year
loptional)

1 Met short-tenm capital gain

2 Pecoveries of prioryear distributions

3 Other gross incoms (ses instructions)

4 Ao ines 1 through 3.

_5 _ Depreciation and depletion

T (R I B

& Portion of oparating expenses pakd or incumed for production o
collection of gross income o for management, conservation, or

mantenance of proparty held for production of | Ise8 instructions)

T Other pxpenses [See instnactions)

-

Ad) | and 7 linas 4)

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount

(A Pricr ' esar

I:B]I:w_wu'ﬂ‘l'w

1 Aggregate tair rmarket value of all non-exermpluss aSsels (see
instructians for Short tax ysar or assets beld for part of year):

a_ Average monthily valus ol securities

b Average monthly cash balances

—¢_Fair market vgiug of other non-guempturse SFSetE

g

—d_Total [ackd tines 1a, 16, and 1c)

e Discount claimed fior blockage or other factors
leplain i et i Part W)

2 ion indebiedness icable to non S st

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

L]

4 Cash deamed held for exermpt use. Enter 0015 of line 3 (for greater amount,

S i P iructions)

5 Net value of non-axempl uss sesels [sublract line 4 from ne 3]

6 Multiply line 5 by 0,035

7 Recoveries of pricr-year distributions

8 Minimum Asset Amount [dd line 7 1o lirs 6

LETRE. Y

Section C - Distributalile Amount

Current Year

1 Adusted net incoma for prioe year ffrom Secton A Ine 8, column A)

2 Enber 0.85 of line 1.

E Mmmmﬂtmhm' Emsmﬂlmicd.lmﬂ

4 Enter greater of ling 2 or line 3.

5 Income lax impogsed in prion yedar

L AT ) Y

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract ne 5 from line 4, unless subject to
rechction instnuction

L]

7 [ Check here if the curent year is the organization’s first s & non-uncticnally integrated Type il SLEONing onganization (see

AN 070822

13

Schedule A (Form 2990) 2021
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32-0033325 paga7

1 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. _
im v I Type Ill Non-Funchionally Integrated 509(a)[3) Supporting Organizalions (-onpnued)

Section O - Distributions

Current Year

1 Amounts paid 1o su sl izations to accom

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations., in excess of income from actity

= I | (RS

—_loovice detais in Part VI) Ses instructions.

9 Dastributabls armount for 2029 from Section G, line 6

A0 Line 8 amaunt divided By line B amount

10

Saction E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions

Pro-2021

Armpunt for 2021

1 Distributabbe armownt for 2029 from Section G, line 8

2 Underdistributions, il any, for years pror o 2027 (reason-
Al CRUISE red - P Gl indiraclions.

—2 _Ewpegs ciptribertions comyover, if any, tp 2021

From 201§

From 217

Firom 2018

From 2019

O |0 (o7 |

Firam 2020

|

g Appled to underdistributions o pror years.

h_Applied to 2021 gestributable amourt

i from 2016 not e

| PRemainder. Subtract lines 39 3h, and 3i fnom line 3.

4  Distributions for 2021 from Section D,
ling 7; H

a_Applied to underdistributions of pror years

b Applad to 2021 destributable amount

& Rsmainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior 1o 2021, #
arty. Subbract ines 3g and da from ne 2. For result greater

than 7er0, ayodsr it Pt ¥, Ses instructions.

8  Remaining undardistributions for 2021. Subiract lines 3h
and 4% from ling 1. For result greater than 2ee0, awpiain in
Part V1. See nstructions.

7 Excess distribubions carryowver to 2022, Add lines 3
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of s T

@ Excess from 2017

b Excess from 2018

c_Ewcess from 3019

d Excess from 2020

& Excess from 2021

1RMCT O8-04-3F

20
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Schedule A [Form 990 2021

2021.03040 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 058-0331

34



4 QOPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 pages
i% ﬁ' I Suppiemental Information. Provide the explanations requined by Part 11, line 10; Part 1|, ine 178 or 178; Part 1ll, ina 12;

Part I¥, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4¢, 54, 6, 9a, Bb, 8¢, 114, 11b, and 11c; Pai IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
ine 1, Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3, Part IV, Section E, lines 1¢, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V., ine 1; Part V, Section B, ine Tec Part V,

Section D, nes 5, B, and B; and Pad V, Section E, Ines 2, 5, and 8. Alss complebé this part for arry additional information.
&i‘ﬂrﬂ:ﬁu‘uﬁ

PART II LINE 10

HMISCELLANEQUS INCOME

2017 AMOUNT: 40,815,

2018 AMOUNT: 47,628,

§
§
2019 AMOUNT: § 79,536.
§
§

2020 AMOUNT: & 6,269,

2021 AMOUNT: 73,461

LATE FEES

2017 AMOUNT: % 980.

2018 AMOUNT: § 845.

2019 AMOUNT: § 470.

2020 AMOUNT: § 260.

2021 AMOUNT: $§ 230

r———— Sehadule A (Form 000) 2021
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** PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY **

Schedule B Schedule of Contributors OMB No 15450047
(Form 990) P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-PF,
Depurimen of o Treansy P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 2021
Ietarrd Roverue Service
Name of the organization Employer identification number
OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325

Organization type (check onej:
Filers of: Section:
Form 990 or 9902 [X] s01ici 3 )ienter numben organization

[] 4947(a)(1) nonexempt chartable trust not d as a private fo

| 8| §27 poiitical organization
Form 990-PF [ 501(ck3) exempt peivate toundation

[ asamia)1) nonexempt chartable trust treated as a private foundation

[ 501(ck3) taxabie private foundation

Check # your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Spoecial Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

B | For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5.000 or more (in money or
property) from arny one contributor. Compiete Parts | and I See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

Xxa For an organization described in section 501(c)3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the reguiations under
sections S50a)1) and 17000)(1)(ANW), that checked Schedule A (Form 990), Part Il, line 13, 18a, or 16b, and that received from any cne
contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIll, line 1h;
or (§) Form 990-EZ, kne 1. Complete Parts 1 and 11,

[] For an organization described in section 501(c)7), (8), or (10) ing Form 990 or 990-EZ that recesved from any ona
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientfic,
Iterary, or educational purpoases, or for the prevention of crueity to children or animats. Complete Parts | {entering
"N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), Il, and lIL

[ For an organization described in saction 501(c)7), (B), or {10} fiing Form 990 or 890-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, contributions gxclusively for relgious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box
Is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an gxciusively relgious, charitable, etc.,
purpose. Don't complete any of the parts uniess the General Rule apples to this organization because it receved panexciusively
religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year |

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990), but it must
answer “No* on Part IV, Ine 2, of its Form 960; or check the box on Ine H of its Form S90-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, ine 2, to certify
that it doesnt meet the fiing requiremants of Schedule B (Form 990),

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, $90-EZ, or 990-PF, Scheckte B (Form 990) (2021)

123451 e




Scheguls B (Form 990) 2021) F'lﬁa:

Marme of organization Emplayer idemtification number
OFERATION HOMEFROMT, INC. 32-0033325
Partl Contributors see instructions). Use duplicabe coples of Part | i ar space s neaded
[a) ] el L]
Ma. Mame, address, and ZIP + 4 Taotal contributions Tyt af contribation
1 Person %]
Payrall |
$__ 3,000,000, | Nencash []
{Comphite Part Il Tor
noncash contributions. )
[a) (=) 19 i)
Mo. Mame, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Th:.nfnmlh'h.lhn
2 Parson  [R]
Payrall ]
3 2,100,000, Noncash [ ]
{Compilete Part il for
noncash comributons. |
[a) ] el id)
Na. Mame, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Typa of contribution
3 Person  [X ]
Payroll [
- 1,750,000, Mencash [ ]
{Compilgte Part N for
NONCash comributhons )
(=) (&) el id)
Ma. Maime, address, and ZIP + 4 Tatal contributions Tyt of eontribiution
4 Person | A |
Payrall |
i 2,000,000. Mencash [
{Compileta Par N Tor
noncash contributions.)
[m) (b} el o)
Ma. Mame, address, and ZIP + 4 Tatal contributions Typee of contribution
5 Person (kA
Payrol |
$_ 10,530,915. | Noncash [X]
{Compilete Part 0 for
noncash contributons. |
[a) () el )
Mo. Mame, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributi Type of i
[ Person [ X]
Payrall  []
3 923,000. Moncash  [X]
{Compiete Part Il for
noncash contributions )
1B 110020 Schedule B [Form S00) (2021)
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Schedule B [Form S80) (2021) Pags 3
Mame of crganization Employer identification number
OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325
Partll Moncash Property (see instnections). Uise duplicate coples of Part Il if additional space is needed
(a)
"""" ) m[urmmml b i
P:rt\'ll Description of nancash property given (Seein ) Date received
GIFT CARDS
4
] 400,000. 12/31/21
o) )
e ) FMV [or estimate) o
m Description of noncash property given (Seein ) Date received
ECHOOL SUPRPLIES AND TOYS
5
¢ 10,021,682, 12/31/21
[E1] el
Ne. ) FMV [or estimats) 1]
::n“ Description of noncash property given [See intnuctions ) Date receved
HOMES
[
2 423,000. 12/31/21
{a) fe)
No. ) FMV (o estimate) 1
;l:ﬂ'lﬂ Description of noncash property given iSee 1 Date received
5
(=) o
He. &) i)
FMV [or astimate)
:.mﬂ Description of noncash property given . 1 Dabe received
5
) fe)
Ne. ] FMV [or estimats) 1)
:'m Description of nancash proparty given Soe 3 Date recoved
3
123480 181031 Schacules B [Form 900) (2021)
25
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Schedule B (Form $80) 2021)

Page 4

Nama of organization

QPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC.

Employer identifi b

32-0033325

Exchusivoly religious, charitadle, sic., ‘Gescribed in section S[CKTL (5], of (10) that tolal more than 51,000 for the year
froem any one contributor, mmmmmmmmmnuMq Far organizations
completing Part B srser the intal of sachabely refigioes. charfabls. sic | contrbations of $9,000 or less & the e |huwﬂ:u||."'
Use cupbcate coples of Part Il # additional @ b5 npaded,
(] Mo,
;':"IHI (b} Purpose of gift [g) Usa of gift {d) Description of how gift is held
{e) Transfer of gift
| Trensferss's name, sddress snd JIP+ 4 Reiationship of transferce to ransteres
(a] Mo,
;rml {b] Purpase of gift [€) Use af gift {d) Description of haw gift is held
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferse's nams, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationthip of fransferor o ransferee
{a) No.
fmml {b) Purpase of gift [€) Use af gift {d) Description of haw gift is held

L Translerpe's name, address, and ZIP + 4

(&) Transfer of gift

() Mo,
FF-E‘FI (b) Purpsase of gift [e] Use of gitt |d) Description of how gift is held
() Transfer of gift
Tranglerss's name, address, and ZIF + 4 Ralationship of transiercs o ransleres
LT R LR Schedule B [Form S060) (202 1)

14250505 131839 058-033730
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Supplemental Financial Statements OMB No. 15450047

SCHEDULED
(Form 300 s ket st s S M 2021
| 3 to Form 990, Open to Public
Name of the organization Employ ath smb
OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325
rganizations g unds or Other Similar FUNAs or ACCOUNTS. Complate if the
organization answered *Yes* on Form 990, Part IV, ine 6,
{a) Donor advised funds {b] Funds and other accounts
1  Totainumber at end of year
2 wmamm(wmm
3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
4 Aggregate vaiue at end of year
§ Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets heid in doncr advised funds
are the organization’s property, subject 0 the organization’s exclusive legal control? [COves [Ine

6 wm«mmummmmommusnmmmmcsmuwmy
for charitable purposes and not 1or the benefit of the donor or doONor advisor, Or for any other purpose conferting
ate beneft? [ dves [ Iwo
cmmnmem’ ion answered "Yes® on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.
1 Purposels) of conservation easements hekd by the organization (check all that apply).
[] Preservation of land for public use tfor example, recreation or education) || Preservation of a historically important land area
[] protection of natural hateeat [ Presecvation of a certified historic structure
[:]Prmmoiopmspam
Complete Ines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the foem of a on
day of the tax year, Haeld at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements
Ymmmidedbymmmn o abd
wummmnmmmmmnw 2c
dewmmnu}mmm7mmmwammm
listed in the National Register .
3 Number of conservation easements modified, sferred, rol extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year b
4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located P>
5 mwmmammwmmmmmmm
i rent of the conservation easements & holds? I Clves [Tlne
6 Mwmmmwmmmmmwmmmwmmm
» __
7  Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspacting, handing of vickations, and enforcing consanvation easements during the year
s
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2{d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170 4)BX)
and section 170MKANB)I? ‘ . [dves [Ino
9 hmmmmmwmwmunuushnammmmm
balance sheet, and inchude, If appicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the
's for conservation

L-SL - A

easements.
g of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complate If the organization answered "Yes* on Form 990, Part IV, line 8,

1a | the organization elected, as permitted under FASE ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other smilar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
sandoe, provide in Part Xl the text of the footnote 1o its financial statements that describes thess items.

b f the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its st and bak sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assats held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenus included on Form 990, Pant VIl line 1 |

() Assets included in Form 900, Pant X |

2 it the organzation received or held works of art, histoncal treasures, ummmummgmm
the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIll, fine 1 > : i A > s

b _Assets inchuded in Form 990, Part X > s
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2021
132061 02821
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 page?2
m%mm'&)—‘mmﬁommmmscammm Historical Treasures, or Other Similar ASSets corunueq)

3 Using the orgar 1's 30Q accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items {check all that apply):

a Dmm d DL&namhﬂmm&n

b [ Schotarty research e [ other

¢ [ Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part Xl
5 Dumﬂnywaduugmmwlcnorm of art, tre: or other smilar assets

3 5 rat ) 23 D3 tion's collection? Dvg D&_
meutlmookummm'vu on Form 990, Part IV, line §, or

reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, ine 21,

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
on Form 980, Part X? : Clves [Xlno
b If “Yes* npummmmmnmxmwmummm

Amount
d AGHIONS AUANG the YEAr || L. _1d
e Distributions during the year | e
1 Ending balance Ry 1 .
2a mmommmmmmmmm Part X, line 21, brmummmmm Xlves [ _Ino

It "Yes the in Part XIll. Check here If the ion has been provided on Part X
II%W |Msﬁf plete i the orgar ed "Yes* on Form 990, Part [V, line 10.

(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Thres years back | (e) Four years back

1a Begnning of year balance
Contributions

s

b .

€ Net investment earnings, gains, and losses
d

°

Granmts or scholarships

Other expenditures for taciites
Administrative expenses

g End of year balance

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g. column (aj) held as:

a Board desiy or quasiend > %

b P 1t er it %

¢ Term er > %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ shouk! equal 100%.

3a Avre there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and i d for the organization
by: Yes | No
(W) Retated organizations ; ; ; ;

b If "Yes® on Ine 3afi), mummmmmocutmonmm

4__Describe in Part Xill the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.

gs,
Compilete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, ine 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10
Description of propesty {a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (¢) Accumulated {d) Book value
basis (investiment) basis (other) depreciation

1a Lang 819,387. 819,387.
b Bulkengs 4,656,186, 191,723.| 4,464,463,

¢ Leasehoki mprovements
d Equipment 1,010,403. 828,394. 182,009.
e Other 1,846,852.] 1,185,393. 661,459.
— s 28 s Lo o b B , » | 6.127,318.
Schedule D (Form 990) 2021

132052 10-28.21
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le O (Foern 1 QPERATION HOMEFROMT, INC. 32—00-33335 Page d
stments - i .
Compilate if the ongantzation answared “Yes® on Form 590, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 590, Part X, ine 12,
[a) Description of $ecurity Of CAIBQINY jneistng sares of secuity (b} Book vake {g) Mathod of valuaton: Cost or end-ol-year market value
(1) Financial derivatives
[2) Closely held equity irterests
[3) Cther
]
— 1By
[
1]
— I
[Fl
&)
{H)
Total, (Col. (b} must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) kna 12.)
e = ram
Caomplete if the organization answared “Yes® on Form 290, Parl IV, line 11¢. See Farm 990, Part X, line 13
(&) Deamorigtion of imsestment ) Bk vakes {2} Mathod of vahsaton: Cos of end-al-paar markst value
11
12
i3
1%
5]
16}
[
18}
19

Caomplata if the organization answened “Yes® on Form 880, Part IV, line 114, See Form 880, Par X, line 15,

{n) Deacription (b Book value
(1} CONTRIBUTED HOUSES INVENTORY 7,973,279,
[F] COMTRIBUTED GOODS IMNVENTORY 1,077,935,
__ {3 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 1,703.
141
18
18}
7]
__IB}
18
Total. ot Foern Part ¥ col (B e 15) = 9,052,917,
er Lial
Complate if the organtzation answared “Yes® on Foem B90, Part IV, kne 118 or 111 Sea Form 990, Part X, ke 25,
1. {8 Description of kakility (b) Book value
[1] Fesheral income taxes
red]
3]
(4]
5
8
m
(8
— =
olal. [Folame i must socsd A, me 25 | | 3
2. Liability for uncertain tax in Part XIil, provide the Text of the foatnate ta the organization’s financial statements that reports the

organization’s liabilty for uncartain tax positions under FASE ASE 740, Gheck hers if the text of the fooincte has been provided in Part s [X]

1Az -5t

14290505 131839 058-033730

Schedule D (Form 000) 2021

29
2021.03040 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 058-0331

42



Schedule D (Form 960) 2021 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 paged
[I:m_. Rm\duﬁmdﬂomwwmmmwmmWmeﬂm
Complete if the organization answered *Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, ine 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements R B % 1 | 46,001,674.
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 960, Part VIIl, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (<sses) on Investments . 2a 931.

b Donated services and usa of faciities | 4,420,350.

¢ Recoveries of peior year grants | 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XiL) _2d 814,791.

8 AD on OUGIY B L i b e e i o) B5236,073,
3 Subtractling 2efrominet I e e a3 | 40,765,602,
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VI, ine 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIl line 7b  4a 150.

b Other (Describe in Part X8} ; _ab 95,287.

€ Add lines 4a and 4 | 4c | 95,437.

avenyue 3 9 s | 40,861,039,
lements With Expenses per Return.
Compiete if the organizat d "Yes® on Form 990, Part IV, fne 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial s 1 | 44,416,636,
2 Ammnsnamnonhnluwmmaﬂbmgwlhnm|maa

a Donated services and use of faciities ' 2s| 4,420,350.

b Price year adjustments 2

© Other losses | 2¢

d Other (Describe in Part X8) 814,791,

© Add lines 2a through 2d SRS R A B RO % i |20l 5,235,141,
3 Subtract line 2e from ine 1 3 | 39,181,495,
4 Amounts included on Form 980, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

8 Investmant expensas not included on Form 920, Part VIIl, line 7b 4a 150.

4 95,287.
4c 95,437.
s | 39,276,932,

Provide the descriptions required for Part I, knes 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, ines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XJ,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, ines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART IV, LINE 2B:

THROUGH AN AGREEMENT WITH OPERATION HOMEFRONT, HENDRICKS PROPERTY

MANAGEMENT LLC COLLECTS SECURITY DEPOSITS FROM CLIENTS PARTICIPATING IN

THE PERMANENT HOMES FOR VETERANS PROGRAM. HENDRICKS ALSO COLLECTS FUNDS

FROM THE CLIENTS EACH MONTH IN ORDER TO PAY PROPERTY TAXES AND INSURANCE

COSTS WHILE THE CLIENTS ARE OCCUPYING THE HOMES, BUT BEFORE THEY ARE

DEEDED TO THE CLIENT. HENDRICKS REIMBURSES THE CLIENTS FOR SECURITY

DEPOSITS AND OPERATION HOMEFRONT FOR PROPERTY TAXES AND OTHER COSTS PAID.

THESE SECURITY DEPOSITS AND ESCROW ACCOUNTS ARE MAINTAINED BY OPERATION

HOMEFRONT. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 12/31/2021, THEIR BALANCES WERE $26,500 AND

$414,939 RESPECTIVELY.

133084 10.28.21 Schedule D (Form 990) 2021
30
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la D (F e 900} 2001 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, THMNC.

32-0033325 pages

Part XIll | Supplemental INformation (co e

PART X, LINE 2:

OPERATION HOMEFRONT IS A TAX-EXEMPT ORGANIZATICH UNDER INTERNAL REVENUE

SERVICE CODE SECTION 501(C)(3). IN ADDITION, THE ORGANIZATION IS NOT A

"PRIVATE FOUNDATION" WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION

509({a) OF THE INTERNAL

REVENUE CODE. DONORS OF MOMWEY AND/OR PROPERTY ARE ENTITLED TO THE MAXTMUM

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTION DEDUCTION ALLOWED BY LAW. THE ORGANIZATION IS NOT

SUBJECT TO TEXAS MARGIN TAX. MANAGEMENT IS HOT AWARE OF ANY TAX POSITIONS

THAT WOULD HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON ITS FIMNANCIAL POSITION. ITS

FEDERAL TAX RETURNS FOR THE LAST FOUR YEARS REMAIN

SUBJECT TO EXAMIMATION.

PART XI, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

EMFLOYEE RETENTIOWN CREDIT 814,791,
PART XI, LINE 4B - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:
BAD DEBT PROVISION 95,287,
PART XII, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:
EMPLOYEE RETENTION CREDIT 814,791.
PART XII, LINE 4B - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:
BAD DEBT PROVISION 95,287,

e S B

i

Schedule D (Form 950) 2021
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SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities OMB Ho. 1 5a5-004T
(Form 990) Complets if the arganication answered "Yes® on Form 290, Part IV, Ene 17, 18, or 19, or if the
crganization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line Ba. :![]:!_|
Departrent of e Treamury = Attach to Form 990 or Form SS0-EZ. Open to Public
intereal Paveeus Bervice B o o wwnwirsgow/Form@00 for instructions and the latest information. ]
Mame ¢ (he arganization Employer identrication number
OPERATION HOMEFROMT, INC. 32-0033325

[Partl] Fundraising Activities. comglate i the organization answerad “Yes* on Form 990, Part IV, lina 17. Form 990-EZ fers are nat
required 1o compiets this part.
1 indicate whethar the srganization raised furds threugh any of the fellowing acthities. Cheek all that apply.
o [E] Mail sokeitations o (X Salicitation of non-gevemment graris
b [E] imtemat and amail soscaations 1 [X] solicitation of government grants
¢ [ Phone solictations 8 [X] Special fundraising events
d X ] inpersen solicitations
2 a Did the organization have a writhen or oral agreement with ary individual (incheding officers, directors, trustess, or
ki amphoyess it in Form 980, Part Vi) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? [X] Yas [ Ika
b If “Yes * kst the 10 highest paid individuals o ertities [fJundraisers) pursuart 15 sgreernents under which the furdraiser is to be

compansated at least 55000 by the organizaton.

I "
052 | ) Groms receipts | &' fr retamedt ) 349 Amoumt s
undraise arganization

{ip Hame and address of indeidual .
or entity (fundraiser) (W) Activity = corel of from activity
Contrution? listed incod. ()
MARKETEAM - 1200 ABERMATHY Yes | Mo
ROAD HE, STE 1600, ATLANTA, DIRECT RESPONSE/PRINTIRG X 4, B80T 4Bz, 2, 02% 803, 2,777 479,

[ 4,007 &Nz, 2 029 w03, 1,777,479,

3 List all states in which the organzation is registensd or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it s exempl iom registraton

kansng.
AL, AK, AZ AR, Ch,CO,CT, DE,FL,GA,HI, 1D,IL,IN, 1A K5 KY LA ME, MD,MA MI, MN, M5, NO
MT,NE NV, NH, NJ, NM,NY NC,ND,OH,OK, OR,PA, RI,SC,SD, TN, TX ,UT,VT, VA WA, WV, WI, WY

k]

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Scheduls G (Form 990} 2021

SEE PART IV FOR CONTINUATIONS

21 -

058-0331
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Schedule G (Form 9905 201

OFPEEATION HOMEFRONT,

INC.

32-0033325 Page2

Partll| Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered “Yes® on Form 980, Part IV, line 18, ar reported more than $15,000
of fundraising ewent contributions and gross income on Form S90-EZ, nes 1 and Bb. List events with gross receipts greater than £5,000.
(8] Event #1 (b) Event #2 €] Cthr avents —
FSAC GOLF - eyine
TOURNAMENT _MCOY 1 ook (cl)
fevent type) fevertt type) fiotal numben
E 1 Gross receipts 163,750, 131,000. BE,134. il , B64.
2 Less Contrbutons 140,618. 131,000. 65,160. 336,778.
3 Gross income (line 1 minus ling 2} 33.132- 22,974- 45,105-
4 Cash prizes 0. 80 ,000. B0 ,000.
8 Moncash prizes 429, 1,390. 263. 2,082.
Es Fentfacditycosts 17,318, 0. 9,700, 27,0118.
g 7 Food and beverages 11,974. 0. 3,761. 15,735.
# Entertainment 0. 0.
9 Other direct expanses 32,522, 0. 4,982, 37,504,
0 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d) | 3 162,339,
11_MNet income summary. Subtract ine 10frombne 3, colwnn fd) o -116,233.
m Gaming. Complete if the crganization answered “Yes" on Form 280, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than
$15,000 on Form B90-E2, Ine 6a.
i b Pull tabs/instant ) {d) Tatal gaming (add
g (n) Binge bingo/progressive bingg | 16 OO Qaming | (a) through cal. fell
w| 2 Cash prizes
8
&a honcash prizes
g 4 Retfacitycosts
8 Other direct eop
[ 1oves s Ives_____ | lvea______ =
6 Vountesr labar [ Ime [ ] o [ me

@ Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:

T Direct axpanse summany. Add lines 2 thiough 5 in column (d)

¥ from line 1 min

& I the srpanization lisersed to condut] Gaming SEthities in each of theas slatesT [Ives [ Ima
b M "Mo,” explain:
W0a Ware any of the organization's gaming koenses revoked, suspenced, or terminated durng thetaxyesr? [ ves [_INo
b H “Yas," axplain;
rasea W Sehedule G (Form 900) 2021
33
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14290505 131839 058-033730

Schedule G (Form $00) 3021 OPERATICM HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 Pagea

11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmesmbers?
12 s the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustes of a trust, or a membaer of a partnership or other entity formed
o administer charftable gaming®
13 indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducied in;
a The onganizaton's faclity
b A outsacke taciity
44 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the onganization's gaming/special events books and reconds:

HNama

COv¥es [lneo
[dves [ IHa

13a %%
13k k]

Muddress e

158 Does the onganization have a contract with a thind party from whom the crganization receives gaming revenue?
b W "Yes." enter the amount of gaming revenus received by the organization = § and the amaount
of gaming revenus retained by the thind party = §
© H *Yes." enter name and address of the third party:

Hama b

L Ives [_Ima

Address e

¥ Gaming manager informatagn;

M e

Gaming manager compensation e 5

Descriptson of services provided

17 Mandatory destributions:
a ks tha organization required under state law 1o make chastable detributions from the gaming proceeds i
b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or spent in the
grganization's cwn exempt activities during the tax year = §

C [ves [Ine

[Part IV] Supplemental Information. Provida the explanations reguired by Part |, ine 2b, columns (i) and h; and Fart I, lines 9, 96, 105,

15b, 15¢, 186, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information. See instructions.

SCHEDULE G, PART I, LINE 2B, LIST OF TEN HIGHEST PAID FUNDRAISERS:

{I) HAME OF FUMDRAISER: MAREETEAM

{I}) ADDRESS OF FUNDRAISER:

1200 ABERNATHY ROAD WE, STE 1600, ATLANTA, GA 30328

HAN0RY WEEE Schadule G (Form 900) 2021

34
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 paged
|ﬁﬁ| Supplemental INFormation (..

123084 111820

14290505 131839 058-033730

Sehadula G (Form 990§
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to izations, A e
Form 290) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2['21
Complete il Bw or ganicstion andwered "Yes® on Form 00, Part IV, liee 21 or 22
o o W By B Aniish e Fosm S0, ‘Dpen o Public
i oy Wi B G0 1w Foor e bt e Tation. Inzpechon

UV O LTl 0 (e LY |
OPERATION HOMEFRONT, IMNC.

desrirfication, ramber
32-0033325

Pari | I Oerrer sl Informatesn on O aots and Aaslilance

1 hhwmmmmummhmumﬁmwhnwﬁm.uﬁ“

AR sia] 10 B T YIS ¥ ASSATICET Elves Tlwe
Dniciariboan i Pk [ tha 'l H’ T i o i et ) B Licdtec] Shile

Grants and Cther in and D G = i i y “yas can Form (3, Pan i, e 21, o any

secipiart Brat recetved maons Man $2,000, Part I an e Guplcried f sdional sosce i nesced
1 [a] Farmg are acicnans. of orpanison b )P section | g} Amcnt ot | o) Amounn ot | TTESoa & T gy pemcrption of 4 Purpose of gram

[ m— 1 mppicabin) b g norcash PN i, | -
assimtance po ity
2 Enier totad numites of section S0TICKT and goesmment crganaatons Esed in the ine 1 table >

3 mumwﬂmwmnmw1m

LHA  For Papsrsork Reduction Aot Notoe. se the Instrsctiees far Foarm 900

B

6

Suohebidui | [Farm 030) 201
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1 1 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 Page 3
ff vt el Other B o D 1 Compiets il he pFpanEIlon insesnsd “Yes" on Form 900, Part IV, ee 22

Part B 2 b CupSCaned RO S o N,

[0 Types of grank o assistarce o Mmber of | e demount of | D demont of noe gﬂw“m 1) Description of Foncash assistarce
[ry s gram LA e PRIV, il oiae’y

poan ToTE, FURNITURE,
FEHFUTERE AND COMPUTER
EQUIFHENT, CLOTHING,

ASBISTANCE T0 CLIESTE seakt] s baewsx| e 99s 495, v PECORATIVE ITENS, scEGAL

| Partpr | supp Prircate e o roguirend i Prart |, i 2 Pt 18, cohrme [, ared iy offse sdotarl tonmiton.

PART I, LINE 2:

WITH THE ENCEPTICM OF GIFT CARDE PROVIDED FOR HOLIDAY MEALS, FUMDS ARE WOT

PAID TO THE CLIENTS DIRECTLY. THEY ARE PAID TO THE LENDINMG

INSTITUTION/LESSOR/CREDITOR UEPON REVIEW OF THE BILLS AND FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS .

AND COMPUTER EQUIPMENT, CLOTHING, DECORATIVE ITEMS, SCHOOL SUPPLIES, GIFT

I e Schecule | [Form 90| 2031
SEE PART IV FOR COLUMM (F)} DESCRIPTIONS

50



32-0033325 pagez

hecule | [Farm QOFPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC.
[Bar N SupplementalTnformation

CARDS, VEHICLES, AND CONCERT/SPORTS TICKETS.

o o B
-3

38
14230505 131839 058-033730

Schedule | (Form 000}

2021.03040 OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 058-0331

51



SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OMB Mo 1545-0047
(Form 990) r«mmm: o Key Employees, and Highest 2021

» Complete If the organization answered “Yes® on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.
Departrent of he Treasiry P Attach to Form 990, Open to Public
Iteiral Pevarue Service to www.irs. for instructions and the Latest Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325
[Part1 | Questions Regarding Compensation

Yes | No

10 Check the appropriate box(es) f the organzation provided any of the 'g 10 or for @ p listed on Form 980,
Part Vil, S 1A, Ine 1a. Compiete Part Il to provide any relevant Information regarding these flems.

[7] First-class or charter travel [ Housing allowance or resksence for personal use
[:]Tradfuoonpmiom DWMWmamm
[ Tax indemnification and grossup payments ] Heaith or social club dues or initiation fees

DWMW Dmmwammm

b i any of the boxes on ine 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
resmbursament or provision of all of the expenses described above? If *No," complete Part 1l to explain

2 Did the orgar 1 require sub 1 prior 10 reimbursing or allowing exp incurred by all drectors,
trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the #ems checked on Ine 127

3 indicate which, if any, of the following the arganization used to establish the compeansation of the organization's
CEQ/Executive Diractor. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods usad by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part Il

DConchm (X written employment contract
[:] t pensation consalt: muﬂmwum
Dmmamw mwwmwuwmu

4 During the year, did any parson listed on Form 900, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:

@ Receive a severance payment or change-otcontrol payment?

b Pmonovmmmiomnwwwmm7

¢ Participate in or receive paymant from an equity-based compensation arrangement?
M *Yes® to any of Ines 4ac, lumwmmmmmmahwmnmm

Only section 501(cX3), 501(c)4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.

§ For parsons ksted on Form 990, Part ViI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay of acCrue any compensation
contingant on the revenues of.

a The organization?

b Any related organization?
i *Yes® on line 5a or 5b, deabonpm-

6 For persons ksted on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net eamings of.

a The organization?

b Any related organzation?
i *Yes" on line 63 or 6b, describe n Part il

7 For persons ksted on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments
not descrbed on ines 5 and 67 if *Yes,* describe in Past Il Bk 50

8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, memovwmmmmmacotmwmmmu
initial contract on d ibed in Regutats section 53 .4058-4(a)3)7 M "Yes," describe in Part Il

9 M Yes® on line 8, did the organizabon also follow the rebuttable presumpbion procedure described n

—Beguigtions section 53,4908 6(C17

5 "

[s |2 |2
> N'N

e b

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2021

232 noea

39
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AATION : HE. 12-0033128 P
: Eratipeoes. asa Co d Ergborptns. Ui Ouoiane Coets § a0 eyl SDI0H 15 Fabdied
Fow ity i TR bl reportad o Bofui J, Fpon COMpdraanon IS i ot on sow fl s from kil ong 4 1 1 i L

D vt sl vy nadivackils T aeen T st on Fors 900, Part VIL
Hiyn: Th mam o codamng. JE-E] for sach Idedd) ingivacial = aqual the total smosnd of Form 500, Part VI, Section A_ re Ua. appicabie colsmn (D) and FE) amounts for that indredual

By Breafkdcsn of W2 and'or 10RE-MESE andior 1083MEL. | [T} and {1=]] Il! Total of ool F} Comp
DO peralion ‘o defermed iy BT i dsrn (B

Teported a5 bl
Ay Harme anc T i Bane 10 Borss & [18) Coree et o e Ferm 990
[h] JOEN B, PRAY, JK. al 450,000, 45,000. T20. 10,907, 0. 506,627, 0.
PRESIDENT/CEO [H . # X [N P 0.
(31 HARGUERITE EIRST ml 241,797, 25, .000. - 7,115, 1,823, 275, B35, 0.
CHIEF REVESUE GFFICER [N . . i 5 5 0.
(3] ROMIET THOMAS m| 222, 288. 19,000, Tal. 6, B56 . T6l. 249,625, [
CHIEF GPERATING OFFICER [ . . . [N 5 '8
(8] ANDRE MAMETHS m| 158, 444. 12,700, . 6,748, 23,044, 200,936, 0.
CHIEF FINASCTAL OFFICER R . B Q. . . 0.
(8] JILL ESKIN-EMITE m| 162,120, &,500. a 6, 4B5. s 175,105, 0.
o W Tom . . N 0. - u 0.
(8] TROYT NASBARIAN m| 147,283, 6,500, Ta0. 6,137, 7,106, 167,736, 0.
WP OF 1T, LOGISTICH & FACILITIES 0. N - 0. [ A 0.
(7] FAREN SMITHRART | 136,054, 9,000. s 5,523, 7,106 157, 683, [N
SR WF, NIMAN 0. 0. 0l 0. 0. 0. 0.

i

L1}

a

o

m

o

1]

L1}

]
Schadula JForm B90) 2009

i iag
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325 Page3

Iirmagion

[Pcrvarie e infoermalion, Eeplanation. o gescriptions reqused for Par | Beas 1a, 10, 1, 43, 4b, 40, Sa. B, Ba B, 7, and B snd Ror Part I Ao compbsts thes na tor sy sddtiosnal avormaion.

Snhadubs J [Fore B90) 2021

L HL RS2 L
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SCHEDULE M Noncash Contributions
(Form 990)
P Complete if the organizations answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.
Department of e Tremury P Attach to Form 990.
Ui Bovare Suvive P Go to www.irs.gov/Form@90 for instructions and the latest information.

OME No. 15450047

2021

Open to Public
Inspoction

Name of the organization Employer identification number

OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC.

32-0033325

(a) (b) (c)

app (= 15 Or TS ropx on
contributed| Form 990, Part VIIL §ne 19

(d)

Check if Number of Noncash contribution Method of determining
noncash contribution amounts

Ast - Works of ant

Art - Histoncal treasures

Art - Fractional interests

Books and publications

54,082,
1,053, 1;1;57%

s

Cars and other vehicles 7 269,440.FMV

Boats and planes

Intefectual property

DN OLLON -

™

Securities - Publicly traded 10 320,904.FMV

-
o

Securities - Closely held stock

-
-

Sacurities - Partnership, LLC, or
trust nterests

12 Securities - Miscelaneous

13  Qualified conservation contribution -
Historic structures

>
o

15 Real estate - Residential 1,627,141.FMV

16 Real estate - Commercial

17 Real estate - Other

18 Collectibles

19 Foodinventory X 46 136,651 . FMV

20 mwmm .........

21 Taxidermy

22 Historical artdacts

Scaentific specimens

Archeological artifacts

23

25 Omer B ( TOYS ) 49|  5,416,892.FMV
2 Omer B ( SCHOOL SUPPLI ) 69|  4,858,217.FMV
z 55

ACE VALUE

5,081.
28 _Ome B _(BABY ITEMS ) 8 151,099.FMV

X
X

Other B ( GIFT CARDS ) X 137 ,08]
X

29 Number of Forms 8283 d by the orgar jon during the tax year for contributions
for which the organization completed Form 8283, Pant V, Donee Acknowledgement ; 29

30a During the year, tid the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 through 28, that it
must hold for at least three years from the date of the nitial contribution, and which tsn't required to be used for
exempt purposes for the entire holding pericd?
b If *Yes," describe the amangement in Part &

o
E

31 Does the orgar jon have a gt P policy that requires the review of any nonstandard contributions? 31 | X
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations 10 solicil, process, or sedl noncash
contributions? 322 X
b If *Yes," describe in Part Il
33 It the organization diin't report an amount In column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked,
describe in Part Il
LHA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, Schedule M (Form 990) 2021
132147 11X
42
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1_OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033335 Page 2
ifﬁgﬁ Supplemental Information. Frovide the information requined by Part |, lines 300, 320, and 33, and whather the organization
& reporting in Pant |, column (), tha rumber of contributions, the number of ibems received, of 3 comBRaton of both, Also complate
this part for any addtional indormation.

PART I, OTHER TYPES OF FROPERTY:

AUCTION ITEMS AND GOODIE BAGS
{A) CHECK IF APPLICABLE = X

({B) WUMBER OF CONTRIBUTIONS = 21

{C) REVENUE EEPORTED ON FORM 990, PART VIII $ 6052,
(D} METHOD OF DETERMINING REVENUE: FMV

PET FOOD

(A) CHECK IF APPLICABLE = X

{B) NUMBER OF CONTRIBUTIONS = 20

{C) REVENUE REPORTED ON FORM 990, PART VIII § 2902.
{D) METHOD OF DETERMINING REVENUE: FMV

SCHEDULE M, PART I, COLUMN (Bj:

AMOUNTS IN COLUMN B FOR LINES € & 15 ARE NUMBER OF ITEMS CONTRIBUTED.

ALL OTHER AMOUNS IN COLUMM B ARE NUMEER OF CONTRIBUTIONS.

AFIEE 19473 Schedule M (Form 950) 2021

43
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SCHEDULE O
(Form: 99:d0)

Departrmen of P Treury
Vageral Purebruss Sanace

Mame of he arganization

Employer
OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325

FOEM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 1A:

THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE SHALL BE ESTABLISHED AS SET FORTH AND PURSUANT TO

ARTICLE VII, SECTION 1, OF THE ASSOCIATION'S BYLAWS. THE WOREK OF THE

COMMITTEE REVOLVES AROUND FOUR MAJOR AREAS:

-PERFORM POLICY WORKE

-ACT AS LIAISON TO THE PRESIDENT/CEQ

=CONDUCT EXECUTIVE SEARCHES

-HANDLE URGENT OR EMERGENCY ISSUES

THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE IS5 COMMISSIONED BY AND RESPONSIBLE TO THE BOARD TO:

-ACT ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD ON ALL EMERGENCY ISSUES RELATED TQ BUSINESS

THAT ARISES BETWEEN BOARD MEETIMGS. THE COMMITTEE CHATIR WILL NOTIFY THE

REMAINING BOARD MEMBERS THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS. THE ISSUE WILL BE ADDED

TQO THE AGENWDA OF THE NEXT MEETING FOR FULL BOARD DISCUSSION.

=CONDUCT THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE ASSESSEMENT OF THE PREEIDENT/CEQ. THE

RESULTS OF THE ASSESSMENT WILL BE REFORTED TO THE FULL BOARD. THE CHAIRMAN

WILL REVIEW THE RESULTS OF THE EVALUATION WITH THE PRESIDENT/CEQ.

-COORDINATE AND REVIEW THE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE CURRENT STRATEGIC

FLAM AND IMCORPORATE ANY RECOMMENDED CHANGES INTQ THE FRESIDENT/CEQ GOALS

FOR THE NEXT EVALUATION YEAR.

-WHEN REQUIRED, ASSUME THE ROLE AS THE EXECUTIVE SEARCH COMMITTEE IN THE

SEARCH FOR A NEW PRESIDENT/CEO.

-OBTAIN APPROVAL FROM THE FULL BOARD BEFORE TERMINATING AN EXISTING

FRESIDENT/CEQ OR HIRING A NMEW PRESIDENT/CEO.

-RESOLVE RN EMERGENCY OR ORGANIZATIOMAL CRISIS (E.G., LOSS OF FUNDING OR

UNEXFECTED LOSS OF PRESIDENT/CEQ].

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Motice, see the Instructions for Farm 990 or 990-EZ. Schadule O (Form 990) 2021
AIN TR
44
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Schedule O (Form 990) 2021 Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number
OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. 32-0033325

-MAKE FUNDING DECISIONS UP TO $500,000. THE DECISION WILL BE ADDED TO THE

AGENDA OF THE NEXT MEETING FOR FULL BOARD DISCUSSION. ANY DECISION GREATER

THAN $500,000 WILL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE FULL BOARD.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:

THE FORM 990 IS REVIEWED BY THE CEO, CDO, COO, CFAO, AND SR. VP OF HR PRIOR

TO SUBMITTING TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR APPROVAL.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

EACH YEAR, ALL BOARD MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO REVIEW AND RECERTIFY THE

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY. IF A POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST ARISES ITS

DISCUSSED BY THE AFFECTED INDIVIDUAL, THE CEQO AND THE BOARD. IT IS ALSO

DISCUSSED PERIODICALLY DURING THE YEAR WHEN THE BOARD MEMBERSHIP IS

REASSESSED.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:

AN EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION STUDY WAS PERFORMED IN MID-2020. THE STUDY LOOKED

AT A NUMBER OF FACTORS INCLUDING JOB CONTENT, ORGANIZATIONAL REVENUE AND

PROFILE, INDUSTRY, AND GEOGRAPHIC REGION. THIS COMPENSATION SURVEY WAS USED

TO DETERMINE THAT CURRENT EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION WAS REASONABLE AND WITHIN

RANGE.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 17, LIST OF STATES RECEIVING COPY OF FORM 990:

AL, AK AZ, AR,CA,CO,CT,DC,DE, FL,GA HI ID, IL, IN,6 IA KS,KY LA ME MD MA MI, MN,6MS
MO,MT,NE,NV ,NH,NJ ,NM, NY,NC,ND,OH,OK,OR,PA,RI,fSC,SD, TN, TX UT, VT VA WA WV, WI,

WY

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

122 1 Schedule O (Form 990) 2021
45
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Schedule O [Form S980) 2021

Pags 2

Marma of the crganization

OFPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC.

rghoyer identification
32-0033325

THE FINANWNCIAL STATEMENTS ARE MADE AVATLABLE ON OFPERATION HOMEFRONT WEBSITE

AND ARE AVAILABLE

UFPON REQUEST.

3EEw N

14290505 131839 058-033730

Schedule O (Form S680) 2021

46
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CliftonLarsonallen LLP
\m CLACOmneCt.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Operation Homefront
San Antonio, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinfon

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Operation Homefront, which comprise the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes 1o the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Operation Homefront as of December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Operation Homefront and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the relevant ethical requirements ralating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion,

Other Matter

The financial statements of Operation Homefront as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020,
were audited by other auditors, whose report dated March 26, 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion
on those financial statements. As discussed in Mote 13 to the financial statements, Operation
Homefront has adjusted its 2020 financial statements to retrospectively apply the change in accounting
for comection of an error. The other auditors reported on the financial statements before the
retrospective adjustment.

As part of our audit of the 2021 financial statements, we also audited the adjustment to the 2020
financial statements to retrospectively apply the change in accounting as described in Note 13. In our
opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged to
audit, review, or apply any procedures to Operation Homefront's 2020 financial statements other than
with respect to the adjustments and, accordingly, we do nol express an opinion or any other form of
assurance on the 2020 financial statements as a whole.

Nexia
(1)
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Board of Directors
Operation Homefront

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Operation Homefront's ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

« Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Operation Homefront's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

« Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,

that raise substantial doubt about Operation Homefront's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

2)
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Board of Directors
Operation Homefront

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

%/Mﬂ% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

San Antonio, Texas
April 19, 2022

e
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

Cash:
Operating
Escrow Funds
Security Deposits
Total Cash
Investments, at Fair Valwe
Confributions Receivable, Net of Discount of $95,287 and §-0-
Employee Retention Credils Receivable - See Nole 5
Confributed Houses Imventory
Coniributed Goods Inventory
Prepaid Expensas
Other Current Assets
Property and Equipment, Net
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounis Payable
Accrued Expenses
Acerued Escrow Accounts
Capital Lease Payable
Total Liabilities

MET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions:
Undesignated
Designated for Thv & Th-\' Transitional Housing & Villages
Designated for Permanent Housing
Designated for Critical Financial Assistance
Tatal Without Donor Restrictions
With Donor Restrictions, Time Restrictions
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilittes and Met Assets

See accompanying Noles fo Financial Statements.
(4}

2021 2020
§ 4825484 £ 4,797344
297 939 309407
26,500 41,500
4,949,923 5,148,251
2,005,520 2,005,317
7,563,181 3,334,142
816,742 -
7,973,270 12,732,616
1,077,935 971,229
280,343 313,718
1,703 1,701
6,127,318 4,422,006

$ 30,804 844

§ 28929070

$§ T0BS516  § 360,567
B23,185 1,012 662
441,439 467,907
160,832 .

2,131,872 1,841,138
7472960 4,149 664

= B93 554

7,682,502 12,384,791
4,802,086 4,106,401
19,957,548 21,534,410
8715424 5,553,524
28,672 872 27 087 934
$ 30,804,944 $ 28,929,070
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2021

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Tatal
SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Contributed Houses % 1,627,141 3 = % 1,627,141
Cantributed Goods, Services And Facilities 16,924,428 - 16,924,428
Contributions 19,183,673 7.204,195 26,387 868
Employee Retention Credit (See Note 5) 814,791 - 814,791
Special Evenls, Nel of Expenses of $222 740 160,144 - 160,144
38710177 7,204,195 45,914,372
Other Revenues:
Investment Eamings, MNet 4,211 . 4,211
Other Revenues 83,001 - 83,091
Total Support and Revenues 38,797,479 7,204,195 46,001,674
EXPENSES
Program Services 38,995,457 - 38,995 457
Management And General 2,071,210 - 2071.210
Fundraising 3,349,969 - 3,349,969
Total Expenses 44 416 636 - 44 416 B35
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (5,619,157) T.204,195 1,585,038
Met Assets Released From Restrictions 4,042,295 4,042 295) -
Met Assels - Beginning of Year 21,534 410 5553524 27 087 934
MET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 19957 548 5 B715424 § 28672872

See accompanying Notes to Financlal Statemeanis.
(5)




OPERATION HOMEFRONT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

¥EAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Contributed Houses
Contributed Goods, Services And Facilities,
As Restated
Contributions
PPP Grant
Special Events, Net of Expenses of $168,839

Other Reveanues:
Investment Earnings, Net
Loss on Disposal of Confributed Houses
Other Revenues
Total Support and Revenues

EXPEMSES
Program Services, As Restated
Management And General
Fundraising
Tolal Expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Net Assels Released From Restrictions
Net Assals - Beginning of Year

MNET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

Sew accompanying Notes fo Financial Statemeanis.

Without Donor ‘With Donaor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
437,297 5 § 4137297
20,691,455 - 20,691,455
16,129,135 3,043,524 19,172,659
1,607,412 - 1,607,412
200,257 - 200,257
42,765,556 3,043,524 45,800,080
19,192 19,192
(142,640) - (142,640)
6,529 - 6,529
42,648,637 3,043,524 45,692,161
41,408,458 41,408,458
1,680,124 - 1,680,124
2 683,183 2,683,183
45,781,765 45,781,765
(3,133.128) 3,043,524 (88,604)
3,661,287 (3,661,287) -
21,006,251 6,171,287 27,177,538
§ 21534410 § 5553534 § 27087934
(&)
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

rogram e
Weleran Pamane  THY and THY
(=] o Fndsl Hzrmaa, Trans, Houmirg Mwraagarrans
Eanndancn Supsport. Orporatcra. for Volomans. A ilages Total ard Cioneonl Fundnaiming Total
S, Tiunsk i Ereonpe
Bonafiy §F 14 5§ T §F LM § TR GEZEIY §F GTMLIOS F LTRSS § O 1MINEA O §F R8I0
Profeusional Serdces 11 LR T4 eaz ELLE v w07 1300 3R WO RoT MR 2508, 100
TGagppiaa 1.5 1962 TRATL 0 T8 Lralal] ALE =) s T, e
Cormmurcaliong 14,164 1ATS aROT4 20580 11,288 BT 848 T8 150,803
Prsibinge il Thipdng 81,718 18,003 20703 BN 7447 368 842 TAM 450 450 84959
Dcupancy GrETd ey IR 107,767 ML LI TRR. bl sl LR
1 qripment: Hantal and Manisnarcs 1804 pral T i 1L13% T B ELLl - F0A%
Priciing and Pubboaton 34758 2,545 161,843 frdi ] 05N 5813 4385 358 80 [Tk
Trovnd A B (LY.L e 1,504 AR5 & 340 14 860 1,367
Coorfemers e i Wewdans 1,984 T4 BT 7108 [ 12,112 3,283 508 15479
Speciic AssRatance i indeadualy Z803 118722 1,226,328 LLER4 ] 1,807 851 5.6 952 ] . 515 303
Miemaruhaps and Do, 280 w2 LR A BT 1.0 2580 k] anr 1M
Il Expatiani 1,063, 135 43,800 T4, FEE T.507,500 AT I 385 T55 8,305 008 23AT, 140
Dot 18823 48T 256,850 530 127 342 06,856 .35 4757 S35 005
Wi olaresas 14845 3 SE ITE 11,04 38 183 118,717 42 T 52 TEQ ITATE
Totnl Exparass § 51675 § XIS § M 144508 5 DS § O 2TITDE B MOGMSAET F O JOTI290 B 1 MOS0 § &4148M

Specil Everty Cowt Mol Inchuded Above:
Proguction Cas
W bz sty
Omer Direct Ceats

Toial

Sae panying Noles o Fin

Bi 553
AR
A
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIOMAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

[PIOgram Senvoes
Wisliran Pamaressl  THY ared THY
Cribal R Frimigl Haorras. Trors. Hounirg oyl
Assviancy Suppori Operabors for Velorans A Visiges Toiad ard Genersl | Fundraising ol

Soalarim | Tovae mnd Erplowss

Bonafita § i § TEESL § A5TOEM § e & Bo0048 § APEdAE §  iEDAN § 1 BAES § RIMANI
Pridasshnal Serdoes MY & nE B0, ESR 310 BET WA 11,500, F53 324 A1 52 ET2 TASTTaR
Supplae T kel 43199 .22 LR L] 12460 Ak BT
Communicaions 13,573 110 L8] nw? AURLLY 033 907 13418 ans 155,507
Pesitngn ared Snipping BF e 118 Frrkr ] &1, 188 2 EM 404 532 4.5 308, 4T FiEdid
Oetuspancy B85 3343 Sl 0s 133 080 37188 ¥ 058 Emas ] SR 1S5
Epaippmnt sl e M iinirs 28 105 0,805 401 1340 18,153 3,803 ] prd ]
Prinking and Puscalions BEAY AR TS o T 440 540 1289 p R b EL R
Travel 0 Iz ELR z.ma LI e anre 0T SRR
Confananci ind Mesting .48 B 6 ESE 328 0] B2 10,958 L] 35,178
Speci Ansatanoe 1 ndsadealy 206 A 8T 1,006, T2 B3 1276 5,900 28 . . 5100808
Mesmibarihapd ine Dues 50 ar 4,181 1297 L1 6,910 e aas 18,347
e Hirad Eapesraas, A Restsiec 1ETTAR 51871 TETILISE M B AT T35 440 2821 18,70 256 TR
Daprmcantion 2215 51 147 kA L LRE-A L] A% ATE 4256 = A% D
Wik plarssaus, 11,855 47 40,130 15,583 4 B &1, 755 14,188 53,148 148,001

Totnl Exparaes 3 £151,7& § 30 5 FAGAITE1 8 ABOSNIE 8§ JAMITE § 4040a4tA § ASE0ARe § O FEE)IE) § S5 TEITES

Special Ewents Cokt Mol inchuded Aboes:

s, 5 .18

Prosdiion. Toam Lok )

Wihath 13 Gasbals 11083

e Dorpat Comim 0.3

Total ] 16 438
Saw W jing Nodas fo Financial Stan i
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Met Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Bad Debt Expense

Realized/Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Investmaents

Contributed Houses

Confributed Goods, Services and Facilities
Confributed Investmenis

In-Kind Expensas

Loss (Gain) on Disposal of Contributed Houses
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

Contributions Receivable
Granls Raceivable
Prepaid Expenses
Inventony

Other Current Assels
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Accrued Escrow Accounts

Met Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Propery and Equiprent
Proceeds from the Sale of Houses
Purchasge of investrmants
Proceeds from sale of invesimenis
MNet Investment Activity
Met Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on Capital Lease Obligations
Paymants on Debt

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities
NET CHAMGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid During the Year for Interest

Property and Equipment Oblained through Capital Lease

Sew sccompanying Noles fo Financial Stalements,

2021 2020

$ 1585038 ] (B2,604)
335,006 456,933
57,861 -

1,395 (19,192}
(1,627,141} (4,137.297)
(16,824 428) (18,581,455)

- (48,898)

23471139 23,506,792

- 142,640

(4,286,900) 4,686,840
(B16,742) )
24,375 13,640
(266,939) (36,875)

(2) (5)

345949 (371,722)
(189,477) 167,360

(26 468) 104,118

1,882 666 5,793,275
{2,035, 368) {1,682,340)

- 215,157

(326, 458) .
324,860 -

- 50,705

(2,036,966) (1,416,478)
(44,028) -

- (197 ,004)

(44,028) {197.004)
{198,328) 4,175,783
5,148,251 968,458

§ 4049023 $ 5148251
3 8,749 5 800
S 204860 § -




NOTE 1

OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Operation Homefront, Inc. {Organization or Operation Homefront), was incorporated in 2002
asCincHouse.com, Inc., an Arizona not-for-profit, for the purpose of providing assistance to
deployed military treops and their families. The Organization changed its name to Operation
Homefront, Inc. in 2006, The Organization receives its funding from community
sponsorships, corporate and individual donations and also participates in numerous
fundraising events throughout the year, The Organization provides emergency financial and
other assistance/senvices to military families and wounded warriors across the United States
through its 2 headguarter offices (San Antonio, TX and McLean, VA) and its 20 field offices
that serve all 50 states.

Operation Homefront provides direct services to military families to alleviate emergency
financial burdens as well as counseling andfor recovery support, Key service areas include;

+ Financial assistance (rent'morigage payments, homelcar repairs, utility/grocery
bills and other essential items);

» Transitional and permanent housing; and

= Recurring family support (back-to-school supplies, holiday meals, holiday toys
and other essential litems).

These key service areas are provided through the contribution of goods, gift cards and other
sarvices which are recognized at fair value and reflected in the accompanying financial
statements as in-kind contributions which are offset by a like amount included as expenses
of the Organization.

Operation Homefront also operates a program called Permanent Homes for Veterans
(formally known as Homes on the Homefront), which receives donated houses from certain
financial institutions. These homes are located throughout the United States and are made
available to eligible military families and veteran candidates. Operation Homefront is tasked
with identifying and placing eligible candidates in those homes, morigage free. Contributions
of these homes are recognized at the estimated fair value as provided by an appraisal less
the present value of the estimated closing costs of transferring these homes to the deserving
candidate when deeded to Operation Homefront.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial stalements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with U. 5. generally accepted accounting principlas.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and deposits held by financial
institutions with maturities of three months or less.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair market value determined by quoted market prices. Gains and
losses(realized and unrealized) are reported as investment eamings, net of expenses in the
accompanying statements of activities.

(0
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NOTE 1

OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Contributions Receivable

Contributions are recorded as receivables and revenue in the year made unless the
contribution is dependent upon the occurrence of a specified fulure and uncertain event to
bind the donor. Contributions are recognized when the conditions upon which they depend
are substantially met or when the possibility that the condition will not be met is remote. An
allowance was not considered necessary at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Conltributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation.
Operation Homefront records contributed property and eguipment as unrestricted support
unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. If a donor
stipulates how long the assets must be used, the contribution is recorded as restricted
support.

Contributed Houses Inventory

Confributed houses inventory consists of in-kind contributions of houses from wvarous
financial institutions received by Operation Homefront for distribution in the Organization's
programs. Revenue for the contributed houses is recognized in circumstances in which
Operation Homefront has sufficientdiscretion over the use and disposition of the houses to
recognize a contribution in conformity with accounting standards. Contributed houses are
valued and recorded as revenue on the statement of activities at the estimated fair value as
of the date contributed, less the present value of the estimated closing costs to Operation
Homefront. The distribution of these houses for Operation Homefront's programs is recorded
as program expenses in the statements of functional expenses.

Contributed Goods Inventory

Conltributed goods inventory consists of in-kind contributions of goods, including gift cards,
children's toys and other household items acquired through major refail donations, for
distribution and use in Operation Homefront's programs. Revenue for the contributed goods
is recognized in circumstances in which Operation Homefront has sufficient discretion over
the use and disposition of the items to recognize acontribution in conformity with accounting
standards. Contributed goods are valued and recorded as revenues on the statement of
activities at the estimated fair value as of the date the goods are contributed. The
distribution of these contributed goods for Operation Homefront's programs are recorded as
program expenses in the statements of functional expenses.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is valued at historical cost or estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Expenditures for betterments greater than $1,000 that materially extend the useful
life of an asset arecapitalized. Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which is generally three to five years for
furniture, equipment, and software, and forty years for buildings.

(1)

72



NOTE 1

OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accrued Escrow Accounts

Operation Homefront's accrued escrow accounts consislts of funds collected from the
military families or veterans for escrowed deposits, real estate taxes, home insurance and
homeowners association fees that are pariicipating in Permanent Homes for Veterans.

et Assets

MNet assets, support and revenues, and expenses are classified based on the exislence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and
changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Met assets for use in operations and not subject
to donor-imposed sltipulations. Grants and contributions for recurring programs are
generally not considered restricted under GAAP, though for internal reporting the
Organization tracks such grants and contributions to verify the disbursament matches the
intent.

Nef Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions
that are more restrictive than Operation Homefront's mission and purpose. Donor
imposed restrictions, that are temporary in nature are released when the restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfiled, or bath.

Revenue Recognition

The Organization recognizes contributions and grants either when a valid promise to give
{generally in writing) is received or as collected in the case of most smaller denomination
gifts. Contributions and grants are reported as without or with donor restriction, depending
on the existence andfor nature of any restrictions, Support that is restricted by the donor is
reported as an increase in net assets without donor restriction if the restriction expires in the
reporting period in which the support is recognized, All other donor- restricled support is
reported as an increase in net assets with donor restriction depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires, the net assels are reclassified to net assets without
donor restriction.

Gifts of houses or other tangible goods are reported as without donor restrictions unless
explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived
assets with explicit restrictions thatspecify how the assels are to be used, and gifts of cash
or other assets that must be used o acquire long-lived assets, are reported as with donor
restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long- lived assets must
be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired
long-lived assets are placed in service.

The Organization does not have any material contract assets or contract liabilities as of
Decamber 31, 2021 and 2020,

(12)
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NOTE 1

OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2021 AND 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee Benefit Plan

The Organization has a 401(k) employee benefit plan covering all employees after three
months of service and are a least 21 years old. Employees may contribute a percentage of
their annual compensation up to the limit allowed by the IRS. The Organization matches up
o 4% of the employees’ contributions. The Organization's contributions to the Plan wera
approximately $237,000 and $231.00, respectively, in the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020,

Income Taxes

Operation Homefront is a tax-exempt organization under Internal Revenue Service Code
Section 501(c)(3). In addition, the Organization is not a “private foundation™ within the
meaning of Section 502(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. Donors of money andf/or property
are enlitted to the maximum charilable contribution deduclion allowed by law. The
Organization is not subject to Texas margin tax. Management is not aware of any tax
positions that would have a significant impact on its financial position. Its federal tax returns
for the |last four years remain subject to examination.

Eunctional Allocation of Expenses

The statements of functional expenses report certain categories of expenses that are
atiributable to one or more program or supporting functions of the Organization, Therefore,
these expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The
expenses that are allocated include all expenses, which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort, except specific assistance to individuals.

Advertising
Advertising, printing and publication costs are expensed as incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements, andthe reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of cash and investments. The Organization places its cash and
investments with financial institutions, and limits the amount of credit exposure, although it
may from time to time have cash balances or investments in excess of that insured by the
FDIC. The Organization periodically assesses the financial condition of the institutions and
believes the risk of loss is minimal. The Organization had cash accounts that exceaded
federally insured limits by approximately $3,793,000 and $4,500,000 at December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

(3
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NOTE 1

OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Concentrations of Credit Risk (continued)

In-kind contributions totaling $10,021,682 and $10,403,B06 were received from one donor
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, which represent 22% and 23% of total
support and revenues. Should these contribution levels decrease, the Organization may be
adversely affected.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued a new accounting pronouncement regarding lease
accounting for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. A lessee will be
requiredto recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for leases with terms of
mare than 12 months, Management does not expect the new standard to have a significant
impact to its financial position, results of cperations and related disclosures.

In September 2020, the FASE issued ASU No, 2020-07 Presentation and Disclosures by
MNoet-for Profit Entities for Confributed Nonfinancial Assels, which requires not-for-profits to
present contributed nonfinancial assels as a separate line item in the statement of activities
and provide additional disclosures about contributions of nonfinancial assets. Contributed
nonfinancial assets include fixed assets (such as land, buildings, and equipment), use of
fixed assets or utilities, materials and supplies, intangible assets, services, and
unconditional promises of those assets, This ASU is effective for perods beginning after
June 15, 2021 with early adoption permitted. The Organization is evaluating the impact on
its financial statemenis.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accompanying consolidaled financial statements to maintain consistency betwean periods
presented. The reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

Subseguent Events
Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 19, 2022, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

On February 18, 2022 and March 17, 2022, the Organization closed on the sale of two
homes for a total estimated gain on sale of approximately $374,000.

On March 24, 2022, the Organization announced receipt of a momentous gift of $20 million
from Mackenzie Scolt, the largest single donation in the Organization's 20-year history,

{14)
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE2 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, the
Organization ulilizes a fair value hierarchy that proritizes the inputs for the wvaluation
technigues used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highestpriority to unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest
priofity to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The threa levals of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 = Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assels or liabilities inactive markets that the Organization has the ability to access.

Leval 2 = Inputs to the valuation methodology include:
- quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets
- quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets
- inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability
- inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data bycorrelation or other means

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement.

The assel or lability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
technigues used need to maximize the use of chbservable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There havebeen no changes in the methodologies used

Cash and Cash Equivalents — alued at its carrying amount due to short-term maturity
of the instrument.

Certificates of Deposit — Valued at its cost plus accrued interest which approximates
fair value.

Mutual Fund — Valued at the daily closing price reported on the active market,

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizablevalue or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the
Crganization believes its valuation methodsare appropriate and consistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptionsto determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the
reparting date.

(15}
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NOTE 2

NOTE 3

MOTE 4

OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's
investments measured at fair value:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Level 1 Lavel 2 Leval 3 Todal
December 31, 2021
Cash and Cash Equivalents £ 2005520 & - 5 - & 2005520
Total Investments, at Fair Value 32005520 5 - % - % 2,005.520
December 31, 2020
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,702,067 % - 3 - %1,702,067
Cerlificates of Deposit 300,581 - - 300,581
Mutual Fund 2,669 - - 2 660
Total Investments, at Fair Value 32005317 3% = % = _% 2005317

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVAEBLE

Contributions receivable are due as follows at December 31:

2021 2020
Due Within One Year £ 5502168 § 3274142
Due in One to Five Years 1,791,300 60,000
Duwe in More Than Five Years 275,000 -
Total Contributions Receivable, Gross 7,658 468 3,334 142
Less Discount at 1.6% {85,287

Total Contributions Recedvable, Net of Discount 5 T.563181 $ 3334142

EMPLOYEE RETENTION CREDIT

Grants from the government are recognized when all conditions of such grants are fulfilled
or there is reasonable assurance that they will be fulfiled. On December 6, 2021, the
Organization complied with the conditions of Employee Retention Credit (ERC) funding as
established by the CARES Act in the amount of $814,791 in compliance with the program.

Grants related to this program are classified as other income and employee retention credit
recaivable, The Organization recognized $814,781 of ERC revenue and grants recelvable
related to performance requirements being met and costs being incurred in compliance with
the program during the year ended December 31, 2021.

(16}
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NOTE S

NOTE &

NOTE 7

OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2021 AND 2020

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31;

2021 2020

Land H B19,387 $ 611,237
Buildings 4,656,186 3,229,828
Computers and Equipment T 672 500,613
Furniture and Fixtures 259,120 251,089
Vehicles 43,611 araan
Software 1,697,650 1,380,332
Software Development in Progress 148,202 103,419

Total Property and Equipment 8,332,828 6,114,339
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (2. 205,510) [1,692.243)

Property and Equipment, Met § 6127318 § 4422006

LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a line of credit with Merrill Lynch, which is secured by their invesiment
account with Merrill Lynch, with interest at LIBOR plus 1.25%. The available credit is based
on various percentages of the assets in their investment account. As of December 31, 2021

and 2020, no borrowings were advanced under the line of credit.

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Met assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following as of December 31, 2021 and

2020:
2021 2020
Subject to the Passage of Time:
Campaign - Ready Reserve Fund £ 3014724 L3 215,000
Campaign - Program Growth Fund 1,298,550 -
Campaign - Future Needs Fund 75,000 -
Future Programs 4,327 150 5,338,524
Total Net Assets With Donor Restrictions $ B715424 3 55653524

(7]
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTES® LEASES

NOTE 9

Operation Homefront leases office space in various cities where its field offices and
headquarters are located under noncancelable operating leases with monthly payments
ranging from 3800 to $18,272 with expiration dates through May 2024, The Organization
also leases warehouse and storage facilities in multiple locations which are used for the
storage of the inventories of in-kind donations. The agreements are month-to-month with
payments ranging from $50 to $2,275. In addition, the Organization leases apartment units
for disabled service members discharged from military service who are transitioning from
military base housing o permanent housing, These agreements have monthly payments
ranging from 31,229 to $3,650 with varying expiration dates through May 2022. For the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, rent expense totaled $592 023 and $690,034,
respectively.

The Crganization also entered into a capital lease for equipment, which expires in March
2024, As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the cost of this leased equipment was $204 860
and 5-0-, respectively and accumulated depreciation was $56,906 and $-0-, respectively.
The aggregate minimum fulure lease payments on noncancelable operating and capital
leases at December 31, 2021, are as follows:

Operaling Capital
Year Ending December 31, Leases Leases
2022 5 271,814 5 74,241
2023 162,297 74,241
2024 105,542 18,560
Total Minimum Lease Paymenis 539,653 167,042
Less Amounts Representing Interest = (6,210)
Present Value of Met Minimum Lease Payments 3 539,653 $ 160,832

GIFTS IN-KIND

Contributed goods, services and facilifies consisted of the following for the years ended
December 31:

2021 2020
Gift Cards 3 555,081 3 435,384
Facilities 115,877 109,320
Goods 11,679,557 13,605,651
Media and Other Services 4,208 487 6,332,947
Vehicles 365 426 208,153
Tolal § 16,924 428 & 20,691 455

(18
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NOTE 10

NOTE 11

NOTE 12

OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

JOINT COSTS

In accordance with accounting standards, Operation Homefront conducts activities that
include a fundraising appeal. Those activities include direct mail campaigns. For the year
ending December 31, 2021, the costs of conducting these activities included a total of
$2,434,497 of joint costs, with $1,022,489 allocated to program expenses and $1,412,008
allocated to fundraising expenses. For the year ending December 31, 2020, the costs of
conducting these activities included a total of $2,497,824 of joint costs, with $1,373,803
allocated to program expenses and $1,124,021 allocated to fundraising expenses.

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

The Organization received funding under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) in the
amount of $1,607,412 as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act
(CARES Act), administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA). The funding
was subject to loans administered by the SBA under the CARES Act.

All proceeds were used for payroll costs and other permitted expenses during 2020. Prior to
year end the Organization received notification from the SBA the loan was forgiven in full;
accordingly, the Organization recognized the proceeds as grant income in 2020,

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions

limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the
following:

2021 2020
Cash $ 4,949,923 $ 5,148,251
Investments 2,005,520 2,005,317
Contributions Receivable, Current 5,592,168 3,274,142
Employee Retention Credits Receivable, Current 816,742 -
Less: Ecrow Funds (297,939) (309,407)
Less: Security Deposits (26,500) (41,500)
Less: Donor Restricted Net Assets (8.715.424) (5,553,524)
Total financial assets available for general
expenditures in the next 12 months 4324 4 $ 4523279

The Organization also has a line of credit which is available in the event of unanticipated
liquidity needs. The Organization believes it has sufficient financial assets available with
normal levels of operations to meet its financial obligations for general expenditures for the
next year.

(19)
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 13 CORRECTION OF ERROR

During the year ended December 31, 2021, management determined that ceriain
contributed media and other services totaling 52,110,000 in 2020 was not recognized. As
such, the Organization restated its 2020 financial statements as noted in the table below.

Criginal Restatement As Restated
Statemant of Activities
Caontributed goods, services and
facilities % 18,581,455 $ 2,110,000 § 20,691,455
Total support and revenues 40,538,637 2,110,000 42,648,637
Program services 39,298,458 2,110,000 41,408,458
Total expenses 43,671,765 2,110,000 45,781,765
Statement of Functional Expenses
In-Kind Expenses:
Critical Assistance § 1,663,988 § 313,466 $ 1977454
Veteran Caragiver Suppor 40,233 11,738 51,87
Field Operations 15,508,527 1,201,628 16,710,155
Permanent Homes for Veterans 5,940,121 448,682 6,438,803
THV and TH-V Transitional Housing
and Villages 282 580 134 486 417,066
Total Program 23,485,449 2,110,000 25,595,440
Taotal 23,506,798 2,110,000 25,616,798

(20)
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Sources of Income Table

Percentage Funding Source

0 % | Government grants (federal, state, county, local)
0 % | Government contracts

14 % | Foundations

18 % | Business

11 9% | Events (include event sponsorships)

11 % | Individual contributions
0 % | Fees/earned income
0 % | Workplace giving campaigns

40 % | In-kind contributions (optional)
6 % | Other

100 % | TOTAL (must equal 1009%0.)
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Major Contributors

Some of Operation Homefront’s major contributors include popular companies such
as The Dollar Tree, Home Depot, Walmart Foundation, Pillsbury, A. James and Alice B.
Clark Foundation, Wounded Warrior Project, and CSX Transportation. Every one of these
donors are part of the Chairman’s Circle which means they have donated more than
$1,000,000 or more to Operation Homefront.

The next section of sponsors is also mainly corporate as well, which includes
Chobani, JPMorgan Chase & Co., Thrive Causemetrics, and Vehicles for Veterans. These
sponsors are part of the President’s circle which means they have contributed at least
$500,000, but not over $1,000,000. No matter how much money sponsors give Operation
Homefront, we are thankful for each and every donation which makes taking care of
Veterans in need that much more possible. What corporate sponsors cannot make up for, we
bring up in-kind contributions, which can be the driving force to reach goals for each fiscal

year.
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In- Kind Contributions

One of the main ways anyone is able to donate to Operation Homefront, is
through our ways to give tab on our website. This allows the user options for
donation, the urgent needs of Operation Homefront today, and volunteering, with
other ways to give as well. These donations are key to providing Veterans and their
families during their time of need.

Within this donation page, there is the option to provide monthly donations or
only set a Veteran up with a one-time payment. Our one-time payment ranges from
$25 to $1,000 with the option to put in more or less. This is similar to our monthly
donations which start at $15/mo and go to $100/mo. The most important option on
this donation page is the idea to make this contribution in memory or in honor of
someone. Allowing family members to donate in memory of a lost brother, sister,
husband, or father. The user is then prompted to set up their information in the boxes
below to benefit Operation Homefront in seeing who is donating to the program and

adding them to an Investor Group.
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Board of Directors List
Our Board Members:

e Uli Correa -Chair
Regional Vice President — Dallas, TX, Central Division, Walmart
Stores US

o« Greg Ham - Vice Chair
Partner, The MWS Group and 24 Entertainment

« Brig. Gen. Linda Medler, USAF, Ret. - Treasurer
President & CEO, L.A. Medler & Associates, LLC

e Col. Tyrone “Woody” Woodyard, USAF, Ret. - Secretary
Vice President, Communications, Rotary and Mission Systems,
Sikorsky, A Lockheed Martin Company

o Steve Adkinson - Board Member
Senior Vice President & Senior Advisor, Merrill Lynch Wealth
Management

o Derek Blake - Board Member
Head of Partnerships, TaxAct, Blucora

« Rod Essig - Board Member
Music Agent, Creative Artists

o JK Huey - Board Member

o Dianna Purvis Jaffin, Ph.D. - Board Member
Science and Resilience Adviser

. Angelo Lombardi - Board Member
President, Sentia Wellness

. Kelly Mayhall - Board Member
President, Southern Division of The Home Depot

« COL. Steven G. Mahon, USA, Ret. - Board Member
Former EVP, General Counsel & Corporate Secretary, SAIC
Brig. Gen. John I. Pray, Jr., USAF, Ret. - Board Member
President and CEO, Operation Homefront
Faith Arnold Schwartz - Board Member
CEO, Housing Finance Strategies, LLC
Ken Slater - Emeritus Board Member
Principal, Tremont Partners, LLC
Terry Smith - Board Member
CEO Rushmore Loan Management Services, LLC
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Form 990 (2020} Fage 2
_ Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains & résponse or note to any lineinthis Part Il . « & &« &« & & & & & & & & & D
1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

OPERATION HOMEFRONT BUILDS STROMG, STABLE, AND SECURE MILITARY FAMILIES S0 THEY CAN THRIVE - NOT SIMPLY STRUGGLE TO GET BY -
IN THE COMMUNITIES THEY HAVE WORKED SO HARD TO PROTECT.

2  Did the arganization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 or 990-EZ7 . . . & &+ & & o« = & s s & = = ® ¥ & = % = COves Flne
If "Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O.

3  Did the arganization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
TEFVECEEY . . . . 4 4 e m x m a w s m . m s w wm a x m wm a x am Oves Hno
If “¥es,” describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization’s program service sccomplishments for aach of its three largest program services, & measured by expenses.
Section S0L{cH3) and 501{c)(4) organizations are required to réport the amaunt of grants and allocations to others, the total
expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

da (Code: b [Expenses 4 34.970,139  including grants of § 24,258,003 ) [Revenue 3 b}
Sew Additicral Data

db (Code: } [Expeisnies § including grants af § B [Rirvings § 1

4c  (Code b {Expeiniiis § incliding grants of § § [Ravanus § )

4d  Other program services (Describe in Schedule 3.)
{Expenses £ Inchuding grants of § } (Revenue § 1

de  Total program service expenses ik 34,970,129

87



10

11

12a

13

lda

15

16

17

18

19

21

Form 990 (2020) Page 3
IEEXT chechiist of Required Schedules

Yes L0
Is the organization described in section 50 1{:;:3] ar 494?(.;(1] {nl‘.htr than a pnutn mmunn}’ If “Yes,” complete Yes
Schedule 4 W .o . 1
Iz the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (.-.ee in!l:ructmns:l? -, 2 | Yes
Did the arganization engage in direct or indirect palitical campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates Mo
for public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Partl « + + + + « s+ s s s & & & 3
Section 501(c)(2) organizations. Did the crganizaticn engage in lobbying ichwhw. or have a section SUl{h}
slection in effect during the tax year? IF "Yes,” complete Scheduie C, Part il . 4 Mo
Is the arganization a section 501{c)(4), 501(c)(5). or 501(c){6} organization that recedves membership dues,
assessments, of similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 If “Yes, © complate Schedule C, Pad i . . 5 -
Did the arganization maintain any donar advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which danors have the right
to pravide advice on the distribution or investrrent of amounts in such funds or Becounte? IF “Yes, :omprete
Schedule DLPart | . . . . . . . . L. L. . . . . .. . . 6 Ne
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including sasemants to preserve opan space, "
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? [f “Yes,” complate Schedule 0, Part i % 7 =
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, histerical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,* 8 Mo
compiete Schedule 0, Pt . . . L L. L. L. L. . . . . . .
Did the arganization report an armount in Pam X, line 21 for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a custodian
for ameunts nat listed in Part X; or provide eredit counseling, debt manngemant. credit repair, or debt negotiation Yaa
services? If “Ves,” complete Schedule O, Part v . . . . . P T T 8
Did the arganization, directly or through & related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, 10 No
permanent endewments, or quasi endowments? If “Yes, ” complete Schedwe D, PartV . . . . . .
If the arganization’s answer ta any of the fellowing questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIIL, IX,
ar X a¢ applicable.
Did the organization report an amount for land, I:unld-n-ui and equipment in Part X, line 107 If ‘Yﬁ, complete v
Schedule D, Partvi. & | | . . 1la | TR
Dnd the arganization report an armount fnr investrnants—other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or mone of its total "
assats reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes,” complete Scheguie 0, Part vii ™ . . . . . . | 11b .
Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its N
tokal assets reported in Part X, line 167 IF “Yes, * complete Schedule D, Part vm'!J . 11c .
Did the arganization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more uF its botal assets reported ¥
in Pan X, line 167 If “Yas,” complete Schedule 0, Partix ™ . . . . ., . 11d | e
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 If “Yes,* cﬂmp.fll.‘l Edwdm'i D Part % %) 11 N
Did the organization’s separate or conselidated financial staterments for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the argaRization’s liability for uncertain tax pasitions under FIN 48 (ASC 780)7 If Yes,” complate Schadule D, Part 3 )| 115 Mo
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial stabements for the tax year? If “Yes, " complete
Schedule D, Parts XTand XIT™) . . . & & & &« &« &« & & & & s s s s s s s s s |l128] Yes
‘Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? 12b N
If *Yes," and if the arganization answered “Ne" to ne 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII Is epbional )
Iz the arganization & school described in section 170{b)( 1)(ANi}? If “res, " complate Schedule E 13 Mo
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? . 14a Mo
Did the organization have aggregabe revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, Fundraksmg
business, investment, and program service activites outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investrnents
walued at $100,000 or mere? If “Yes,” complete Schedule £, Parts Jand IV« v 0+ v 4 4 4 » 146 Mo
Did the arganization report on Part 1X, eolumn (&), line 3, more than 5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
fareign organization? If “Yes,” complate Schedule F, Parts Hand IV « .+ + . 15 Ne
Did the organization report on Part X, celumn (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of mreuite grants or other assistance to
ar for foreign individuals? IF “Yes, * complete Schadule F, Parts [IT and IV . 16 No
Did the arganization report & total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part 1X, 1y | Tes
calumn (A}, lines & and 11e? If "Yes,® complete Schedule G, Parf {see instructions)
D¥d the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event grass Inceme and contributions on Past VI,
lines 1c and 8a? If “Yes, " complete Schedule G, Padll . . . L. . w 18 | Yes
Did the arganization report more than $15,000 of gress income ﬂnm qamlnq sctivities an Part VI, line 9a? IF “Yes, ~ 19 "
complate Schedule G, Partill . . . . .o . .
Did the organization operate cne or mare h-:ls-pitﬂ fn:llrhl‘s? IF i'ﬂ', J:umpl‘llr- Si:hm‘r.rh H o v . 30a Mo
IF "Yes"™ bo line 20w, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return?
Did the organization report more than 5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or domestic 71 Mo
government on Part 1X, column (A), line 17 IF "Yes, " complete Schedwe I, Parts [ and Il . [

Form 990 (2020 |
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Ferrn 990 (2020) Page 4
I checkiist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes Mo
22 Ddd the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or fer domestic individuals on Part 1X, 22 | e
column (A), line 27 If "Yes, " complebe Schedule I, Parts [ and IIT
23 Did the arganization answer “Yes™ to Part VII, Section &, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the org:niul:ions current
and former officers, dlu-f:t-ur:-, trustees, kﬂ lmplwﬂ:, and highest compensated |mplu1r|l:? If “Yes,” complate 13 Yes
Schedule 7 . . . . Ce e . -]
24a [¥d the organization have a tlx-lxl-mpt bnn-d issum mth an wm:nqu principal amount of more thin $100,000 as of
the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 IF "¥es, " answer lines 24b .rbn:uﬂh 24d and
complate Schedule K. If "Ne,"goto line 258 . . . . .« « = . 24a Na
b D¥d the arganization invest any procesds of tax-exempt bonds beyand a ternporary period exception? . . . 24b
¢ D¥d the arganization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at ln-p time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? . . . P .. 2dc
d D¥d the organization act as an “on behalf of° issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . . . 244
25a Section 501(c)({3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) urqlrllzlthnl. Did the arganization engage in an excess benefic
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? IF "Yes,” complete Schedwle L, Part| . . 25a o
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disgualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 980 or ®90-EZ7? If “Yes, " complete | 25b HNo
Schedwe L, Patl . . . « &« & & & & 4 & & & & & a & & & & = = =
26 Dvd the organization report any amount on Part X, line § or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or farmer
afficer, director, trustes, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, ar 35% controlled entity or family 6 Ha
member of any of these persons? If "Yes, ° complete Schedule L, Partill . . T
27 Did the arganization provide a grant or ather assistance to any current or farmer officer, director, trustee, key
employes, creatar or founder, substantial contributor, or employes thereof, a grant selection committes member, or to | 25 Ha
a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereaf) or family member of any of these pfemns‘-‘ If "res.. cnm.n.l'm
Scheduwle LPartll . . & « + & & & & & & s s .
28 Was the erganization a party te a business transaction with ane of the fulluwlng parties (see Schedule L, Part [V
instructions for applicable filing threshaolds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or formar cfficer, director, trustes, lwr -mplum, creabor or Fwndtr oriub:tint il wn‘mbl.-tnr" If "Yes.~
complete Schedule L, Pact iV . . . P N 28
a Na
b A farily member of any individual described in line 28a7 If “Yes, " compilete Schedule L, Pad IV .
28b Ha
¢ A 35% controlled entity of ene or more individuals md.fur organizations described in lines 28a or 2867 If © 'r-u-;
complote Schedule L, Part iV . . . e .. 28¢ N
29 [id the arganization receive more than $25,000 in nan-cash contributions? If "Yes, " complete Schedule M . . % 29 | Yes
30 Did the arganization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or ather similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributiene? IF “Fes,” complete Schedule M . . . ce e e e e 30 No
31 [4d the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease uptrih:ms" If “Yes,” complete Schedwle N, Part | a1 o
32 Did the arganization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? IF “Yes, " complate
Schedule N, PAITH o+« 4 v+ 0 4w a4 a e e e e e e 32 No
33 [¥d the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the crganization under Regulations sections
301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 IF "Yes,” complete Schedwle R, Part ! « & +« &+ & &« & & & & & 33 wa
34 Was the onganization related to alw Lax- extmp-t or taxable entity? If '"ra-s, :nmprere Schedule R, Part hl, I, or IV, and
PartV, line 1 . . . .. 24 Mo
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)7 35a L]
b If "ves' to line 354, did the organization receive any payment from ar engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512{b}{13)? If "Ves, " complete Schedule &, Part ¥, line 2 sk
36 Section 501(c){3) organizations. Did the crganization make any l:nnsﬁln tu an w-mpt non- chinhhlt r!h'h-d
organization? If “Yes, " complete Schedule R, Padt ¥, line 2 . . - 36 Ne
37 Déd the arganization conduct mare than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related srganization and that
Is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purpeses? IF "Yes, " complete Scheduwie R, Part W 37 Ho
38 [¥d the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Pas VI, lings 11b and 197 Mote.
All Farm %%0 filers are required to complate Schedule . . . . . e s 38 | e
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax ﬂnmpﬁanu
Check if Schedule O containg a response or note to any linginthisParty . . + & « & & & & & & O
Yes No
1a Enter the number reperted in Box 3 of Form 1086, Enter -0« If not applicable . . 1a 48
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable . ib [i]
© [ the organization comply with backug wllhhddlng rules far r!p-nrtibll DI‘g"ﬂ'llﬂti ko vendors and reportable gaming
{gambling) winnings to prize winners? . « = & & & s & & w ic es
Form 980 (20207
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Form 990 (2020} Page 5
“ Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)
2a Enter the number of employees reported an Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and
Tax Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with ar within the year covered by
thismetum & & &« & & & & 4 s & & e 4 s & & s s ia 1308
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the crganization file all reguired federal employment tax returns? b Yes
Hote. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file [see instructions)
3a Did the arganization have unrelated business gross income of 51,000 or more during the year? . . . 3a Mo
b If “Yes,” has it filed a Ferm %90-T for this year?lf "Ne” to ne 3b. provide an explanation in Schedule O . . . ab
d4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, & | 4a Mo
financial account in a foreign country (Such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . .
b If "ves,” enter the name of the foreign country: =
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEMN Form 114, Repart of Foreign Bank and Financial Ascounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prahibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . 5a Mo
b Did any taxable party notify the arganization that it was o is @ party te a prefibited tax shelter transaction? 5k Na
¢ If "¥es,” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8888-TF . . . . . .+ + +« « &« + . 5S¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are narmally greater than $100,000, and did the organization Ga Mo
salicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . . .
b If “ves,” did the organization inclede with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts were
nok tax deductible? . . . . . 4 4 6 4 e 4 s s w4 s s s s s s s s 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170({c).
a Did the organization recelve a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services| 7a Mo
providedtothe payor? . & o & & & & & 4 4w ke s e w4 s e s
b If "Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . .« . . 7b
Did the arganization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to file
Form8262F . . . & & & & & & & & & & & & s w4 & & & s s w & Tc | Yes
d If "Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 6282 filed during the year . . . | 79 | 1
e Did the organization recelve any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?
Te Mo
F Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . T Mo
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual progerty, did the arganization file Farm 8899 as
required? . . . . . . . 4 & 4 4 d s w a a m w a = a oa 7q
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form
I098-CF & & « & & & & & & & & % v = m & w8 w % o % 4 % 4 & u Th | Yes
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a dener advised fund maintained by the &
sponsoring organization have gxcess business holdings at any time during the year? . . « & & &
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining doner advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966 . . . . . . . . 9a
Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . . . b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Par VI, lire 12 . . . 10a
Gross receiphts, included on Farm 990, Part Vill, line 12, for gublic uses of dub facilities 10k
11  Section 501(c){12) erganizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or sharehelders . . . . . . . . . iia
Grogs income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to ather Sources
against amounts due or received from them.) . . . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4247(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. [s the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a
b If “Yes,” enter the armount of tax-exempt interest recelved or accrued during the year, 176
13 Section 501(c){29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.,
a [Is the arganization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? & . & &« &« & & = & 13a
Hote. See the instructions for additional information the organization musk report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the erganization is required te maintain By the states in
which the organization is licensed to issue gualified healthplans . . . . 13b
¢ Enter the amount of reserves onhand  « & o 0 0 0 0w e e e 13c
14a Did the arganization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . . . . . 14a Mo
b If “ves,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments?IF “No, * provide an explanation in Schedwe 0 . . 14b
15 Is the organization subject bo the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or excess
parachute payment(s] during the vear? . . . . . . 4 4 4w« w x x x x x x w 15 Ho
If “Yes,” see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 s the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? . . 16 Mo
If *¥es,* complebe Farm 4720, Schedule O.
Form 990 (2020)
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Form 990 (2020) Page &
Governance, Management, and Disclosure For sach “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for @ "No” response fo lines
Sa, 8b, or 108 below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedwle 0. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O containg a response or note to any line in this PartVl . . . « s m E
Section A, Emming Body and Hanlprnant
Yes No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing bady at the end of the tax year | 1a 21
If there are material differences in vating rights among members of the governing
body, or if the governing bedy delegated broad autherity to an executive commities or
similar committes, explain in Schedule O,
b Enter the number of voting memberss included in line 1a, above, who are independent
ib 20
2 [vd any officer, director, trustee, or key employees have a famlly mlamnshlp or a business relationship with any cther
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . . .« . . « s 8 = 5 8w 2 Na
3 Did the arganization delegate contral over management duties r.u:tnmnly perfarmed by ar under the direct s.uperv.-lsum 3 He
of officers, directors or trustess, or key employess to & managerment company or ather person?
4 [¥d the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? . 4 Ha
5 Ddd the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the crganization’s assats? 5 Ha
6 Did the arganization hawve members or stockholders? . . . . . . 6 Na
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or cther persans who had the power to elect or Ippnlnt ORE or Mmone
membaers of the govemning body? . . . s s w Ta Na
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to [ur $ubj¢¢t to appfmral b-'r} members, stockholders, or Th HNa
persans other than the governing bady? . . . . . . P -
8 D the organization conternporanecusly document the meetings held or written actions undertaken durlng the year by
the following:
a Thegoverningbody? « + « & & & = & & &2 5w & & 4 s w & w w a4 Ba | Yes
b Each committes with authority te act on behalf of the governing body? . . . .+ + .+ + « « + & 8b | Yes
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employes listed in Part VIl, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? If "Yes, " provide the names and addresses in Scmdu.l'll Q. . s 9 Na
Section B. Policies (This Section B reguests information about policles not required by the J’rlrema.l R-Eﬂ.-m.re Code.)
Yes Mo
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . . . « < « « &« &+ & 10a HNo
b If “Yes,* did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b
ila Has the crganization provided a complate l:-:p'r 'nf th-r- F:lrm m te all mambers of its quwmlnq ady before filing the
form? « « & & & & a4 & s s s s a s s s s s 11a | Yes
b Describe in Schedule O the process, If any, used by the arganization to review this Form 990.
12a [¥d the organization hawve a written conflict of interest policy® If “Ne," go to line 13 . . f f 1%a | Yes
b ‘Were officers, dlrl-ctnrs-, or I:n.l:bnls-_, and key em plnryﬂ: reqmrld to disclose lnnulll'.' interests that could give rise to
canflicts? . . s s w . s e - 12b | Yes
¢ Did the arganization regularllp and mn:l!unm moniter and enfarce mmnhallce with the nahn-? If “¥es, * describe in
Schedule O how this was dane . . e ow 12c | Yes
13  Did the arganization have & written whistleblower pdbqr'-‘ e e e e e e 13 | ves
14 [vd the organization have a written document retention and destructien paliey? . . . . . .+ « .« . 14 | Yes
15 [dd the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and appreval by independaent
persans, comparability data, and contemparanecus substantiaticn of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CED, Executive Director, or top management official . . . . . . . . .+ . . 15a | Yes
b Other officers or key employees of the organizatien . . . . . . & s & 15b | Yes
IF "Yes™ bo line 152 or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see lnsb'uctlunsl
16a Ded the arganization invest in, contribube asdets to, oF p.lmcup.lu ina jo-nt vernture o Similar arrlngemant with &
taxable entity during the year? . . . & & & & a 16a Mo
b If "Yes,” did the organization follow a written pnl icy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its partl:lpa'bon
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take :I:eps o ufaguard the arganization’s exempt
status with respect to such arrangements? . - 16b
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is reguired to be filedk
AL, AK AT AR, CA,CO,CT DE, DC,FL,GA,HL,ID,IL
JINGTA  KS, KY LA, ME, MD, MA , M, MN , M5, MO, MT,
ME, NV ,NH NI, NM NY , NC,ND,OH, OK,OR, PA Rl
SC,5D, TN, T, UT VT, VA, WA WV, WL, WY, PR
18 Section 6104 requires an erganizatien to make its Form 1023 (or 1024-A If applicable), 990, and 980-T (S01{c}{3)s
only) available for public inspection, Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
B cwn website [ arothers website B Upan request [ Other (explain in Schedue 0
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and If so, how) the arganization made its governing documents, conflict of interest
palicy, and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone numbaer of the persan who possesses the organization's books and records:
FOPERATION HOMEFRONT INC 1355 CENTRAL PARKWAY S 5TE 100 SAN ANTONIO, TX 78232 (210) 655-7756
Form 980 (20207

91



Form 990 (2020} Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees,
and Independent Contractors
Chack if Schedule O contains a response or nobe to any line in this Pat VIl . T
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest l:nmpenuated Ernprnreen
1a Comglete this table for all persons required to ke listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax
year.
# List all of the erganization's current officers, directors, trustees [whether individuals or organizations ), regardless of amount
of campensation. Enter -0- in celumns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
® List all of the arganization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of “key employese.”
® List the organization’s five current highest compensated ernployees (other than an officer, director, trustee or key employes)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Ferm W-2 and/er Bax 7 of Form 1099-M15C) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.
# List all of the gorganization’s former officers, key employees, or highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
» List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustes of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See instructions for the arder in which ta |t the persons above.
[ coeck this beox if neither the arganization nar any related srganization compensated any current officer, directar, ar trustes.
(a) (B) . (c) (o) (E) (F)
Name and title Average Position {do not check maore Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per than one box, unless persan compansation compansation amount of other
week (list i% bath an officer and a from the from related carmpansatian
any hours director) trustes) organization arganizations fram the
for related p— - (W=2/10959=- {W=2/ 1055 organization and
organizations | % 3 | 3 3 g a 2 MISC) MISC) related
balow dotted | & = 5 E % ? organizations
line) B E = E
= E 3‘1
E | ] 2
E =
. E‘;‘ E
L i
&
Sew Additional Data Tabla
Form 80 (2020} |
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Farm 990 (2020) Page B
_ Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees [confinued)
(a) (B) - (c) (D) (E} (F}

Name and title Average Position (do not check more Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per than ane box, unlets persan compensation compensation arnount of other
week [zt is bath an officer and & fram the from related compensation
any hours director/trustes ) organization arganizations from the
for related [—— T (W-271055- (W-2/1059- organization and

arganizations | % 3 | = |2 |% a P MISC) MISC) related
below dotted | B 5 | & E D% ; organizations
lire) Bz E =4 (%
TE| = £a
- E E g
i’_ = i E’
q =
» = o
b 1
a
Seq Addtional Data Tabbs
ib Sub-Tetal . . . . . .+ .+ .+ . . . . . . . . R
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part Vil, Section & . . . . |
d Total (add limes Aband 1) . . . . . . . . . . . > 1,821,533 [ 0
2 Tetal number of individueals (including but not limited to those listed above) wha received maore than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization & 13
Yes No
3  Did the arganization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? IF "Yes, " complete Schedwle ] for such fndividual « .« &« & & &« & s = s a » Hao
4 For any individual listed on ling La, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007 IF "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
individual . . s = oa s = oa s s - . s s o omom = s x = m ow o= Yes
5  Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated crganization or individual for
services rendered to the organization?lf “Yes,” compiete Schedule J for suchperson . . .+ . .+ .+ . Na
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that recelved mare than $100,000 of compensation
from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year,
(AF {ch
Namwe and business address Description af services Compensation
MARKETEAM LLC DIRECT RESPONSE/PRINTIRG 1,584,085
1200 ABERNATHY ROAD WE STE 1600
ATLANTA, G 30328
INFOGROUP MEDLA SOLUTIONS [N DIRECT MAILING SEAVICES 242 542
B0 BOX 3241
OMAHA, NE £8106
THREESPOT MEDLA LLC 'WEBSITE SERVICES 154 500
BO6 TTH 5T NW 201
WASHINGTON, DL 200401
SOUTHWEST PUBLISHING INC DIRECT MAILING SEAVICES 148,973
4000 SE ADAMS 5T
TOFEKA, KS BE&605
THOMPSOM HABIE & DENISON INC DIRECT MAILING SERVICES 143,545
80 HAYDEM AVENUE SUITE 300
LEKINGTON, MA_ 02421
2 Tetal number of independent contractors (including but not limited te those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization & 5
Form 990 {20200 |
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Forrm 90 (2020)

Statement of Revenue

Chack i Sohaduls D ContEInS & redpanis oF Hole 1o aay Ine in s Pedvil . . . . . s s s s = a [m]
(3] (m} (5] (L]
Total raviss Ratabed of Unrelated Bevanue
sxampt business waciuded from
Turcsicn LT i under Becbosd
ren e 512 - 514

Federabed campalirn . . ia

Hambership duss ., . b

Fundraiing svents . .

Reliti? & gRtataid

Geswnirant grasts |contriutiond)

-\l.ﬂ.ﬂ-fr

B e Couto b, (RS grants,
and wimdar smounts nat induded
aterea

Horesah contritubiom induded in

L 8RR 1H ] ’_'

Contributions. Gifts, Grants

and Diher Sim
L-3

b Todalk &dd less Ba-11 © . . o .

1,607,807

T LE 55

Prosgrany Sefvce Revenie
[-%

T Al othar prograes Srvice Db,

@ Total. &34 hnes 2a-3. . . . . ®

wmilir smourts] . . . . - .

SRopalties . . . . . . . - .

3 Investment incoms (inchuding dividends, inberest, and other

4 Incoma from investmest of ti-eempt bord protesds B

9T

[i] Rieal

i) Parsona

b Lswe: rentsl

da Grows renss Ha
RN L

« PRantal incama

or [lass) e
o

o bkt rantal incame o flesi) . . . .

(i) Securitas

(i} OtSar

Fa Gronid st
from wakes. of
ety plhe
thar sesntany

7a a7,

JUSEET

Lisn: roat or
B e b 7 .10
iy

157,797

£ Ganoor o] T -1%H

d Wat galnoer faed) . . . . . .

EFLE

i Grows ncoms from Aursirsiing seents
[net induding § ol
conbrisations reparted oo b LE),
Son Part IV b LB & & o &

© Nek ingome o {loss] from fundraising

=
BLess: dirett eaperdes . < . L PR
LU0

200,25

COther Revenue

Ba G inoome from gaming sclvilies.
Sea Pant iV, liba 19 . . . -

blLess: dret guperses . . . b

« Nek income o (loss] from gaming activites . . »

HQaGiroa sales of imoentary, e
refurrs and Allwanoes . o iba

b Less: cost of goods sobd . 106

Misopilaneous laverae

:Hﬂlmmlu‘lm} from sabes of invenbery . L3

Business Code

L1d [ HCELLANBOUS

QOO

b rEES

13 Total revesus. Ses inatrotions . .

LETS

INIETS :.J
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Form 950 (2020)

Fage 10

Staterment of Functional Expenses

Baction 500{c}{3) amd S01{c)(4) organizakions must comabete all columes.

Chack if Schedule O contains a rsponds or note to any line in this Part 1%

All pther organizabens must complebs column (&),

Do nal include amounts reperted en lines b,
b, Bb, 9b, and 10b of Part Vill.

&
Total mxpenses

(8]
Program sersioe
o T

Har g et
ganeral enparias

ol

1]
Fundraing
e

1 Gramts and other assistance to domestic organizations and
domestic povernments. Ses Pari W, ine 21 . . . .

2 Granty and other aidistands to demestic indniduale, Ses
Pat WV, line22 . . & « & &« a = a1 =

3 Grasts and other aEsistance Lo foneign onganizaticns,

foreign
goremmants, and hﬂ:gn individuals. 5!-! Part I, lines 15

ard 16, . s s % = B 8 B % & 3
MH!MH#’H“MM R

§ Compensation of currert officers, drectors, trustess, and
ey employ®®s « . s s = & = 4 8 4 s

& Compensation not induded abewe, to digualified persons (a8

defined under section 4958(f{1)} and persons described in
section 4958(c)(I¥B) . . . . . . . .

Dﬁhlruhnunldwlm‘l........

Parsion plan sccruals and contributions (incleds section S0L
[k} and 403(b) emgloyer contributions) . . . .

9 Osheremploves benefits . . . . . . .
10 Payrellteass . . . . . . - 4 - . .
11 Fees for services [non-amployeas):

aManagement . . . . . &

bilegal . . . . . . . . .

eAcounting . - . - & 2 o+ = & s =

dlabbyi™g . . . . - 0 0 4 . .

& Frofessional fundralsing services. Ses Part IV, line 17

T Invesbrment mansgerent fees . . . . . .

@ Otheer (If bime 119 amount exceeds 10% of ke 25, colsmn
[A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O)

12 Advertising and prometion . . . .

13 Office sxpenids . < & & o« s =

14 Informationtechaalogy = .+« - « - «

15 Rovaltes . .

16 Ocupdidy = +« « =« = &+ = + 2 & =
1Y Tl & & & & & & & w4 a w oa s

18 Paymants of tranvel or entertainmant expandes for any
federal, state, or local public officials .

Conferences, convertions, and mestings . . . .
Interest . . . . . . = ¢ s o+ s
Payments to affillates . . - . . . .
Depreciation, degistion, and amortizaticn , .

Insurance . . .

L

EEEEES

Ohar @xparses. [DEMiDe axparses mot covensd above (List
misoelaneous expenses in line 24e. If line 24 amaurt
exceeds 10% of lire 25, column (&) amount, list bne 2de
axpEnias on Schedus 0.)

a MISCELLAMEOUS

24,158,001

24,158,003

1,801,552

1,329,197

136,044

156,185,

5,589,277

4,755,665

773,547

19,655

230,847

268, 453

%

12,480

51,150

475,153

B4, 551

91,615

00,90

AH0,0TS

TRIF

B4, 560

182,924

58,918

14,937

29,055

4,800

19,554

0,555

16,681

2,153,454

1,375,495

297,676

580,033

LR

16,217

3,512

bE}

1,764, 25%

1,407,077

A5, 065

547

FHLLES

TI.0x

na.01%

50,6871

13,892

6,014

10,747

3,20

10,058

1,001

456,950

452,674

4,75

146,080

B1, 757

14,187

b HEHBERSHIF & DUES

18,347

6,929

1,767

9,851

© IN-KIND

17,414

2,118

15,376

& Al cther expenses

25 Todal funclicnal axpanses, Add line | through 14e

18,1089, AT

HF0 LS

1609 b

TAM. 7Y

8 Joint costs. Complete this kne only If the crpanization
reported in column (B} jeint costs from a com bined
echazational campagn and Fundrading solcitaticn,

Chack ke & B if following 500 987 [4SC 958.720),

2497 814

1,373,803

2,124,031

Farm 990 (20201
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Farm 990 (2020) Page 11
IEETE calonce Sheet
Check if Schedule O containg a response or note bo any line in this Part 1X . . O
1A (B)
Begnining of year End of year
1 Cash-non-interest-bearing . 821.118| 1 4,888,244
2 Savings and temporary cash In'.'mmants « & = & @ w = = u 147,338 2 158,007
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net . . . . . . so00%82| 2 3338142
4 Accounts receivable, M . . . . 4 4 0 4 4 4w a s 4
5 Leoans and ether payables to any current or former officer, directer, trustee,
kay emgloyes, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% controlled s
entity or family member of any of thesepersons . . . .« « .
& Loans and ether receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined undtr
section 4358{F 1)), and persons described in section 4958(c){3)(B) . 8
w| 7 Motes and loans receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . 7
L
E 8 Inventories for sale or use . . . . ]
_:'E 9  Prepaid expenses and deferred charges . . . . . H2T.I56| @ 378
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or ather
basis. Complete Pad V| of Schedule D 10a 114339
b Less: accumulated depreciation 10b 1692243 2,658,680| 10c 4422008
11 Investments—publicly traded securities . 1987832 11 2005317
12 Investments—other securites. See Par IV, line 11 12
13 Investments—program-related, See Part IV, line 11 13
14 Intangible assets . . . . . . . 14
15 Other assets. See ParilV, bire 1l . . . . . . . . . 15,254,003| 15 13,805,046
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) mzisazz| 16 28,828,570
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . . . 1477081 17 127478
18 (Grants payable . . . 18
19 Dwferred revenue 18
20 Tax-exempt bond labilites . . s = a . » 20
g 21 Escrow or custodial accasunt lability. L‘.nmplete Pan v of Schedule D 363.7AE( 21 467,807
=|22 Loans and ather payables to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key
= ermployee, creator or founder, substantial contributer, or 35% controlled entity
E or family member of any of these persons . .+ « « . & . . 27
=123 Secured mertgages and notes payable to unrelabed third parties 187.004| 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables bo related third parties, 25
and other labilities not included on lines 17 - 24).
Complete Part X of Schedule D
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 throwgh 25 2037884 28 17400636
E Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here & B and
= complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33,
S| 27 Net assets without donor restrictions . . . . . . . . 1006251 27 21,534,410
E 28 Net assets with denor restrictions 6171.287| 28 5,553,524
g Grganizations that do not follow FASBE ASC 958, check here & O and
- complete lines 29 through 33,
8|29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . . . . 29
-E 30 Padd-in or capital surplus, or land, bullding ar equipment fund 3o
L1311  Retained earnings, endowment, sccumulated incame, of other funds 31
; 32 Totalnmetassetsorfundbalances . & & & &+ s s+ s s s ITATT.R3E| A2 27,087 934
Z |33 Total liabilities and net assetsfund balances . . . + .« .« & . 29215422 33 28,828,570
Farz 990 (20201
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Form 950 (2020)
IEZE Reconcilliation of Net Assets

Page 12

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthisPart Xl . . . & + & & o« & .

|

LT I - TR I U T T

10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32, column (B))

Total revenus (must equal Part VIll, column (A), line 12) . . . .« « « « « &« « &

39,257,822

Total expenses (must equal Pad IX, column (A), ling 25) - . « « &« & &« ¢ & & & =

39,339,707

Revenue |ess expenses, Subtract line 2 from limel . . . . .+« .+ . & 4 4 4 4 .

-82,185

Met assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Pan X, line 32, column (A)) . .

27,177,538

Met unrealized gains {losses) on investments

-7.419

Donated services and use of facilities

Invastmant expences

Prior period adjustments . . . & & & & & & & & s ow s s

| s A e | R R

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0) . . . . .« . . .

o

[
=]

27,087,934

IEETT Financial Statements and Reporting

Check If Schedule O contains a response or noke to any line in this Pad XII .

4]

Accounting method used to prepare the Form S%0: D Cash E Accrual D Cther

If the organization changed its methed of accounting from a prier year or checked "Other,” explain in
Schedule O.

‘Were the organization’'s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?

If "Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

O Sepatate basis O consalidated basis [ #sth consclidated and separate basis

Were the srganizatien's financial statements audited by an independent accountant?

If “ves,” check & box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were sudited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:

E Separate basis D Consalidated basis D Both consclidated and separate basis

If “¥es,” to line 2a or 2b, does the crganization have a committes that assumes responsibility for oversight
of the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in Schedule O,

As a result of a federal award, was the organizatien reguired to undergo an awdit or audits as set forth in the Single
Audit Act and OMB Circular A=1337

If “¥es,” did the organization undergo the required audit or awdits? If the grganization did not undergo the reguired
audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits.

Yes

2a

b

Yes

L]

3a

Mo

3b

Form 980 (2020%

Additional Data

Software ID:
Software Version:
EIN: 32-0033325
Name: OPERATION HOMEFRONT INC

Form %0 (2020}

Form 990, Part 111, Line 4a:

CPERATION HOMEFRONT ASSISTS MILITARY FAMILIES COPING WITH & VARIETY CF FINANCIAL CHALLENGES. THE MOST COMMON TYPES OF MEED ARE FOR SHORT-TERM
BELIEF CONSISTING OF RENT/MOATGAGE ASSISTANCE, HOMEACAR REPAIAS, FOOD, UTILITIES, AND TRANSITIONAL HOUSING; LONG TERM RESILIERCY CONSISTING OF
PERMANENT MORTGAGE-FREE HOMES AND CAREGIVER SUPPORT, AND RECURRING FAMILY SUPPORT CONSISTING OF HOLIDAY MEALS, HOLIDAY TOWS, BACK-TO-SCHOOL

ITEMS, BARY SHOWER AMND MOMEFRONT CELEBRATIONS THAT ARE DESIGNED TO SUSTAIN, UPLIFT AND TRANESFORM.
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Form 990, Part VII - Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees,

and Independent Contractors

(&)
Name and Title

(B}
Ayverage
haurs per
week (list
any hours

(<)

Position [do not check mone

than one box, unless

person s both an officer

and a director/trustes)

for related
arganizatians
below dotted
line)

&Es”i
S| |
Sl fE
£

LR

LY TT
o TTTN|

paE sl

(o)
Reportable
compensation
fram the
grganization
(W- 2/1099-
MISC)

(E)
Reportable
compensation
fram relabed
organizations
(W- 2/1099-
MISC)

(F}
Estimated
armount of ather
compensation
from the
organization and
ralatad
erganizations

ARGELD LOMBARDL

WICE CHALRMAN

BOE MOGOWAN

RECTOR

JOEN 1| PRAY IR

PRESIDENT/CEG

40,00

447,318

MHANA PURNIS JAFFIN

SECRETARY

1.00)

MARTY HAUSER

1.00

ED DELGADD

HRECTOR

FRANK PARAS

HRECTOR

STEWEM MAMON L0
il i S il B Rt B IR X o 1]
DIRECTOR
GREG HAM 1.09
sessmnnnnneen [y 0 o

DIRECTOR
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Form 990, Part VII - Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees,

and Independent Contractors

(A) (B) (€} (D) (E) (F}

Name and Title Average Paositden (de nat check more Reportable Reportable Estimatad
hours per than one box, unless compensakion compensation | ameount of other
waek [list parson is both an officer from the fram relabed compensation
any hours and a director/trustee) arganization arganizations from the
for related — [(W- 2/1099- [W- 2/1098- | arganization and

x
arganzations 2 g2l= g ,? i‘i 3 MISC) MISC) ralated
below dotted | 2 5 | B g |22 3 organizations
line) 2 E s =
TE|Z 2 2
b =
2l (i 2
g T
HHEE:
P .t (5]
H E
-9
IK MUY 1.0d
.............................................................................. X ¥ L]
TREASURER
LANRA FREDRICKS L
e I X L]
HRECTOR
LAURIE GALLO Lo . .
e
BAIAN ARNOLD 1.00
...................................................................... rrEEE W a
DMRECTOR
LEE BANTER 1.
P ———————————————————— x b 4 L]
CHATRMAN
LINDA MEDLER 1.00
R —— e X L]
DHRECTOR
ROBERT GLANNETTA 1.0 .
............................................................................... by
MRECTOR
STEVEM ADKINSON
LERETTT ,' n
] a
X a

HRECTOR
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Form 990, Part VII - Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees,
and Independent Contractors

(A) (B} (c) (o) (E} (F)

MNarne and Tide Average Position (do not check morne Repartable Reportable Estimated
hours per than one box, unless compensation compensation | amount of other
worak: [list parson is both an officer from the from related compansation
any hours and a direckar/trustes) arganization Grganizatons fram the
far related T (W- 2/109%9- (W- 2/1099- arganization and

= T
ofganizations = al= 2 ? 3 E' MISC) MISC) related
below dotted | £ 2 | 2 2 ﬂ'—ﬁ' i organizations
line) b E = 'ﬁ 2a
2215 | [E[F2
= = 'i =
=
£l2 :
3 B
T
&
ROOD ESSIG
................................. ® o | o
DIRECTOR
MARGUERITE KIRST 40.00
...................... 3 257,307 a| ]
coo
ROBEAT THOMAS
................................. X 226,331 | o
Cod
ANDEE HAWKIME 40.00
................................... el i 165,215 | ]
CFAD
HILL ESKIN-SMITH 40.00
Bl LY ® 160,788 a| ]
WP OF CORPORATE & FOUNDATI
¥ STERNBERS 40.00
enrnrnpmg|  TTPEERaRRas ® 155,434 | o
VP OF MARKETING
KAREN SMITHHART 40.00
— L L ® 133,958 al o
WP OF HUMAN RESOURCES
TEOY KASDARLAN
® 150,813 | o
WP QF [T & GENERAL SERVICES
JAKE ADAMS 44.00
e - AR AR l !14.!5" ,n D
M , SOFTWARE DEVELCPER
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Iaﬂlu GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - |

DLN: 93493102011361

QME No, 15450047
SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support
(Form 990 or Complete if the organization is a section 501{c)(3) organization or a section 202 0
YHIEL) 4947 (a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
* Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ,

Diopartmeent of the Treasury
Lotamal Resaous-Sanice.

* Go to www, irs,gov/ Form@80 for instructions and the latest information, Open to Public

Inspection

MName of the organization
CPERATION HOMEFRONT INC

Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only ane box.)

1 [ #church, convention of churches, or assaciation of churches described in section 170{b)(1){A){i}.

2 [ #school described in section 370(b}{1)(AMiIT). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)

3 [ A hespital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b){L)(A(iii).

4 [0 A medical research arganization operated in conjunciion with a hospital described in section 170(b){1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's
name, city, and state:

5 [J #norganization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in section 170
(b 1)(A)iv). [Complete Part I1.)

[0 A federal, state, or local governmaent or governmaental unit described in section 170(b){1)(A)(v).

B An erganization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b)(L){A)(wi). (Complete Part 11}

D A commaunity trust described in section 170(b){1)}(A)(wi). (Complete Part IT.)

[0 An sgricultural research organization described in 170(b}(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college or university or a
nan-land grant college of agriculture. See instructions. Enber the narme, city, and state of the college or university:

10 [ Anerganization that nermally receives: (1) more than 33173% of its suppert frem contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts
from activities related to its exempt functions—subject bo certain exceptions, and {2) ne mare than 331/3% of its suppert froam gross
irvestment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June
30, 1975, See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part IIL.)

11 [7] Anerganization srganized and eperated exclusively bo test for public safety. See section 509(a}(4).

12 [ Anerganization erganized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, te perform the functions of, of te carry out the purposes of one or
mare publicly supported arganizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 508(a)(2). Ses section 509(a)(3). Check the box
in lines 12a through 124 that describes the type of supporting organization and comiplete lines 12e, 12f, and 123.

a [ Typel Asupporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving the supported
grganization{s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting organization. You must
complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b [0 Twpe IL. A supporting erganization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having contral or
management of the supporting erganization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported grganization(s). You
must complete Part IV, Sections & and C.

€ [J Type Il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated In connection with, and functionally integrated with, its
supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part 1V, Sections A, D, and E,

d [ Type III non-functionally integrated. A sugporting organization cperated in connection with its supported erganization(s) that is not
functionally integrated. The arganization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness requirement (sea
instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [] <Cheeck this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type 1, Type I, Type [II functionally

Employer identification number

32-0033325

integrated, or Type [l non-functienally integrated supporting erganization.

F  Enter the number of supported organizations .
9 Provide the follawing information about the supported organization(s).

{1} Name of supported

organization

(i) EIN (iii) Type of
arganization
{described an lines
1- 10 abave {see

Instructions))

{iw} Is the organization listed
in your governing decumaent?

{v) Amount of
monetary suppart
{see instructions)

Yes

{wi) Amount of
other support (see
instructions)

Taotal

Far Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for

Form 990 or 990-EZ.

Cat. No. 112B85F

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
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Schedule A (Form 90 or 990-EZ) 2020 Page 2

IEESETH Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b){1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vI)
(Complate only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part I11.

If the organization failed to qualify under the tests listed beélow, pléase complite Part 111}
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year

{or fiscal year beginning in) & (a) 2016 (b} 2017 {c) 2018 (d) 2019 e} 2020 () Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
rembership fees received, (Do not 45,244,698 9,815,536 45,825,491 48 573,242 43,498 823 222,957,790

include any “unusual grant.”) .

2 Tax revenues lavied for the

organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furmished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge..

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 45,244 698 35,815,536 45,825,451 48 573,242 43,458 823 222,953,750
& The portian of tetal contributions by
each person (other than a
governmiental unit or publicly
supparted organization) incleded an 84,415,733
lime 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown an line 11, column
..

[ rr;ln::llll:":uqlppmt Subtract ine 5 138,542,057

Section B. Total Support
Calendar year
M &) 2016 b) 2017 &) 2018 d) 2019 @) 2020 1) Tabal
(or fiscal year beginning in) (a) (k) (e) (d) (&) [4}]
7 Armounts fram line 4. . 45,244, 53E 39,815,538 45,825,451 48,573,243 43,498,823| 222,957,790
8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties 313,653 13,843 7159 42,763 26,976 164,393
and income from similar sources

9 Netincome from unrelated
business activities, whather or not
the business is regularty carried on

10 Gther income. Do nat include gain

or loss from the sale of capital -4, 150 41,795 48, 473 &0, 0046 6,529 172,653
assets (Explain in Part V1), .
11 Inntnl support, Add lines 7 thraugh 223,794,835
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. [see instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . [12 ] 2,450,644
13 PFirst 5 years. If the Form %90 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization, check
thisbox and StoP heN® . + « « & & 4 & & & s 4 & ¢ & & 5 & & s & 8 & 5 8 & 8 % s 5 5 s v a8 4 5 a5 s P
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2020 (line 6, column (f) divided by lime 11, celumn (R} . . . . . . . . . 14 62,040 %
15 FPublic support percentage for 2019 Schedule A, Part I, line 24 . . . . . . . . . . .. . 15 &0.070 %
16a 33 1/3% support test—2020. If the arganization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization gualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .o .. »
b 33 1/3% support test—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/2% or more, check this
box and stop here, The arganization qualifies as a publicly supported organdzation . . . . . . . . o o o o o 0 0 0. e

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2020. [f the crganization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14
is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the “facts-and-cincumstances™ test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part VI how the arganization meets the “facts-and-cireumsetances” test. The arganization qualifies as & publicly supperted
OFGARIZALION . . . . . . . . L . o . i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e oed
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2019. If the srganizatien did not check a bnx an Hne 13, 16a, 16k, ar 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop hare.
Explain in Part VI how the grganization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly

supported organiZation & . . . . . L L L L 4 o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e a e e e e e e m e e s .. e D
18 Private foundation. [¥ the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box II‘Iﬂ HE
instructions ., . . . . . 5 5 % & % & & & & & & 8 & & @ S 5 & & & & 8§ & & § & 8§ % § & & & 8§ & & & & 8§ b & i L3 D
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 Page 3
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

{Complete only if you ¢hecked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part I1. If
the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.}

Section A. Public Support

(o ﬁmf:':;":;;;::ng in) [a] 2015 (b) 2017 {c] 2018 {d} 2019 () 2020 {f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, centributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
Inchude any “unusual grants.”) .

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services
perfarmed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exermpt purpase

3 Groas receipts from activities that are
niot an wnrelated trade or business
under section 513 , . !

4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either pald
to er expended on its behalf, |, .

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit te
the crganization without charge

6 Total Add lines 1 through 5

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included an lines 2 and 3
recelved from other than disqualified
persans that excesd the greater of
55,000 or 1% of the amount an line
13 for the year.

€ Add lines 7a and Th. .

8 Public support. {Subtract line 7¢
fromm line 6.)

Section B. Total Support

tor ,,mf;:'}";:nm'{“ iny > {a) 2016 {b) 2017 (e} 2018 {d) 2019 {e) 2020 {F) Teta

Armounts from line &, |,

10a Gross incorne from interest,
dividends, payments recefved on
securities loans, rents, royalties and
income from similar sources, .

b Unrelated business taxable incame
{less section 511 taxes) from
businesses acquired after June 30,
1975.

€ Add lines 10a and 105,

11 Met income from unrelated buiness
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carried on.

12 Other incarme. Do nat include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain In Part V1) . .

13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10¢,

11, and 12.). .
14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the crganization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organizaticn,
check this box and stop here. . . . . . . . . . . .. L e L e e S e I
Section C. Computation of Public Suppnrt Pemenl:ag!
15  Public support percentage for 2020 (line B, celumn () divided by line 13, esduma (f)) . . . . . . . . . 15
18 Public support percentage fram 2019 Schedule A, Part 1L e 15. . . . . . . . . . . e 16
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2020 (line 10c, column (F) divided by line 13, column (). . . . . . 17
18 [Investment income percentage from 2019 Schedule A, Part IIL, Bne 17, . . . . . . . 18
19a 331/3% support tests—2020. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and |Il'll 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization , . . . . ., . e
b 33 1/3% support tests—2019, If the organizaticn did not check a box on line 14 or line 193, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3% and line 18 is
mat mare than 33 1/1%, check this bax and stop here, The organization qualifies as a publicly supperted organization . . . . O

20 private foundation. If the crganization did not check a bax on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions . . . . O

Schedule & (Form 990 or 990-F71 2020
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Schedule A (Form 950 or 990-EZ) 2020
Supporting Organizations

Page 4

(Complete only If yau checked a box on line 12 of Part 1. If you checked box 12a, of Part I, complete Sections A and B. If you checked
bex 12k, of Part [, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12¢, of Part I, complete Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box

12d, of Part | complete Sections A4 and B and complete Part V.

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

3a

5a

10a

Yes

Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing documents?
If “Ne, * describve in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by class or purpose,

describe the designation. IF histere and continuing relationship, explain.

Did the erganization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status under section 509
{a){1) or (2)? If "Yes, " explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported organization was described

in section 50 al1) or (2).

Did the arganization have a supparted organization described in section S01(c){4), (5), or (6)7 If “Yes,* answer lines b and

3z balow,

Did the erganization confirm that each supported erganization gualified under section 501(c)(4), (5}, or (5) and satisfied
the pub_lh: suppart tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “res, " describe in Part VI when and how the organization made the

determination,

3b

Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c}(2){B) purposes?

IFf “Yes, * explain in Part VT what controls the organization put in place bo ensure such use.

Was any supported arganization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? If “Yes” and if you

checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

Did the erganization have ultimate contral and discretion in deciding whether te make grants to the ferelgn supported

organization? [F “Yes, ” describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion despite being controlied or

supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the erganization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination under sections
501(e){3) and S09(a)(1) or (2)7 If "res,  axplain in Part VT what controls the argamization used to ensure that all suppaort

to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170{c)(2)(B) purposes.

Did the arganization add, substitube, or rermeve any supported arganizations during the tax year? If *¥es, * answer lines 5b
and 5c below (if appiicable). Alse, provide detall in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN numbers of the supported
arganizations added, substituted, or removed; (i)} the reasons for each such action; (iWi} the authority under the

organization's organizing document autharizing such action; and (iv) how the sction was accomplished [such a5 by
amendment fo the arganizing document).

Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of & class already designated in the

arganization’s arganizing decument?

5b

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's contral?

Did the erganization provide suppert (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to anyene other
than (i} its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited by one or more of its
supparted erganizations, or (i) other supporting erganizations that alés support ar benefit ane or mare of the filing

organization’s supported crganizations? If *¥es, © provide detall in Part WL

Did the erganization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor (defined in
saction 4958{c}3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with regard to a

substantial contributor? IF "Yes, " compilete Part I of Schedule L [Form 990 or $50-EZ) .

Diid the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 77 If "Yes, "

compilete Part [ of Schedule L (Farm 990 or 990-EZ).

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or mare disqualified persons, as
defined in section 4546 (other than foundation managers and organizations described in section S09{a){1) or (2))? If “Yes,~

provide detail in Part VIL

Did one or mare disgualified persons (as defined in Ene 9a) heold a controlling interest in any entity in which the supparting

arganization had an interest? If “Yes, ° prowide detall in Part VI.

Did a disgualified person (% defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or dérive any persenal benefit from, assels in|

which the supporting organzation also had an interest? If “Yes, ® provide detall in Part WI.

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 4943(f} (regarding
cartain Type I supporting erganizations, and all Typa I1I non-functionally integrated supporting organizations)? If “Yes, ~

answar line 10b below.

10a

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedwe O, Forrm 4720, to determing whather

the orgamization had excess business holdings ).

10k

Schedule & [Form 990 or 990-FF) 2020 |
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 Page 5
Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes | No

11 Has the crganization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persans?

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in lines 11k and 11c below, the
gowerning body of a supported crganization?

iia

b Afarnily member of a person described in 11a abowve? 11b
A 35% controlled entity of a person described in line 11a or 11b above? If "Yes™ to 1la, 11b, or 1Ic, provide detail in Part | 11c
¥I

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations

Yes | Ne

1 Did the officers, directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported crganizations have the power to regularly
sppoint or elect at least & majority of the organization’s directors or trustess at all times during the tax year? If “Ne,
describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the erganization’s
activities, If the organization had more than one supparted organization, describe how the powers to appeint and/or
remowve directors or brustées were alfocated among the supported arganizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any,
applied to such powers duning the Lax year.

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported organization(s) that
operated, supervised, or contralled the supporting arganization? IF "Yee,  axplain in Part VI how providing such banafi
carmed out the purpeses of the supported organization(s) that sperated, supervised or controlied the supporting
erganization,

Section C. Type 11 Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors or trustees of
each of the organization’s supported arganizatien{s)? [f "Ne. © describe in Part VT how control or management of the
supparting organization was vested in the same persens that controlied or managed the supported enganization|s). 1

Section D. All Type III Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the arganization srovide ko each of its supparted erganizations, by the last day of tha fifth manth of the argnniurjm'shel
tax year, (i} & written notice desecribing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax year, (i) & copy of t
Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of natification, and (i) copies of the organization's governing
documents in effect an the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i} appointed or elected by the supported arganization
{5} or {ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No, ” explain in Part VI how the organization
maintaimed a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization|s).

E By reason of the relationship described in line 2 above, did the organization’s supported erganizations have a significant
voice in the srganization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s incame o assets at all times
during the tax year? If “Yes, * describe in Part VI the role the erganization’s supported organizations played in this regard. 3

Section E. Type 111 Functionally-Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the crganization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions):
a [] Tha organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.

b [0 The arganization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

£ [] The erganizatien supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmant entity (see Instructions)

2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

Yes | No

a D substantially all ef the erganizatien’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of the
supparted organization(s) ko which the grganization was responsive? [f "Yes, ” then in Part VI identify those supported
organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, how the grganization was
responsive fo those supported organizations, and how the organization determined that these activities constituted
substantially 2l of its activities, 1a

b D¥d the activities described in line Ia constitube activitkes that, but for the organizatien’s invelverment, one or more of the
arganization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? [F "Yes, " explain in Part VI the reasons for the
organization’s position that its supported organization|s) would have engaged in these activitias but for the crganization’s
ivalvenment. TS

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

a [¥d the organization have the power to regularly appeint or elect a majiority of the officers, directors, or trustess of sach of | 3a

the supported organizations?If "Yes”™ or “No” provide details in Part V1.

b D¥id the arganization exercise & substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs and activities of each of its
supparted organizations? IF "Yes,” describe in Part V1. the role played by the organization in this regard. ab

Schedule A (Form 990 or $90-E2) 020 |
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 Page 6
Type 111 Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
i Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Now, 20, 1970 (explain in Part V1), See
__instructions. All ather Type I11 nen-functisnally integrated supperting organizations must complete Sections A through E.
Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A} Price Yead "’:'lﬂ:::::“’
1 Met short-term capital gain 1
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2
3 Qther gross income (see instructions) 3
4 Add lines 1 through 3 4
5 Depreciation and depletion 5
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection of gross [
income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of property held for
preduction of income (see instructions)
7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6 and 7 from line 4) 8
Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A} Price Yoar (8] Cunment Year
[aplaandalh
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see instructions for short
tax year or assets held for part of year): 1
a Average monthly value of securities la
b Average monthly cash balances ib
€ Fair market value of ather non-exempt-use assets 1e
d Total (add lines la, 1b, and 1) id
& Discount claimed for blockage or ather factors
{explain in detall in Part ¥I):
2 Acguisition indebtedness apglicable to non-exempt use assets 2
3 Subtract line 2 frem line 1d 3
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enber 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount, see
instructions), 4
5 MNet value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 fram line 3) 5
& Multiply line § by 0.035 B
7 Recoveries of prisr-year distributions 7
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6} a8
Section € - Distributable Amount Current Year
1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column &) i
2 Enter B5% of line 1 2
3  Minimum asset amaunt for prior year (from Section 8, line 8, Column A) 3
4  Enter greater of line 2 or line 3 a
5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5
& Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to emergency ]
temporary reduction {See instructians)
7 [ <heck here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally-integrated Type 111 supporting arganization (see

instructions)

Schedule 8 (Form 990 or 990-F73 I070 |
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FPage T

Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509{a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

(see instructions)

Section D - Distributions Currant Year
1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 Amounts paid to perfarm activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported organizations, in 2

excess of income fram activity
3  Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4 Amounts paid to acouire exempt-use assets 4
5 Qualified set-aside amounts {prior TRS approval reguired - provide details in Part VT 5
6 Other distributions {describe in Part VI). See instructions &
7 Total I distributions. Add lines 1 through &. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported arganizations to which the organization is responsive (provide 8

details in Part WI). See instructions
9 Distributable amount for 2020 from Section C, line & 9
10 Line 8 amount divided by Line 9 amount 10

Section E - Distribution Allocations W Underdit buticns .

Excess Distributions

Pre-2020 Amount for 2020

1 Distributable amount for 2020 from Section C, line &

2 Underdistrivutions, if any, for years pricr to 2020
(reasonable cause required-- explain in Part VI,
See instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, If any, te 2020:
a From 2015 . + + &+ & &

b From 2016, . . . . .

€ From Z007. . . . . .

d From20i8. . . . . .

& From 2019,

f Total of lines 3a through &

g Apgplied to underdistributions of prior years

b Applied to 2020 distributable amount

i Carryover from 2015 not applied (see
inatructiong)

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

4 Distributions for 2020 from Section D, line 7:
5

a Applied to underdistributions of priar years

b &Applied to 2020 distributable amount

c Remander. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prier to
2020, if any. Subtract lines 3g and da from line 2.
If the amount is greater than zere, explain in Part VI,
See (nstruckions.

6 Remaining underdstnbutions for 2020, Subtract
lines 3h and 4 from line 1. If the amount is greater
than zero, expiain in Part W1, See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover te 2021, Add lines
3j and de.

B Breskdown af line 7:

Exgess from 2016, . . . .

Excess fram 2017,

Excess from 2019,

a
b
¢ Excess from 2018, .
d
@

Excess from 2020,

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2020)
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Fage B
[Tl Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part [1, line 10; Part [1, ine 174 or 170; Part I01, line 12; Part IV,

ection A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢c, 1la, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1;
Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line le; Part

Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V', Section E, lines Z, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional infermation. (See
instructions).

Facts And Circumstances Test

990 Schedule A, Supplemental Information
Return Reference

Explanation

SCHEDULE A, PART II, LINE 10, MISCELLANEQUS INCOME - 2016 AMOUNT: § -56,105. 2017 AMOUNT: % 40,815, 2018 AMOUNT: § 47,628
EXPLANATION OF OTHER . 2019 AMOUNT: § 78,536, 2020 AMOUNT: § 6,269, LATE FEES - 2016 AMOUNT: § 1,955, 2017 AMOU
INCOME: NT: %9380, 2018 AMOUNT: § B435. 2019 AMOUNT: % 470. 2020 AMODUNT: § 260.
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SCHEDULE D OMB Mo, 1545-0047
Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements 202
* Complete il the arganization answered “Yes,” an Form 990, 0 0
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11, 11d, 1le, 11f, 12a, or 12b.
Dcpantment af tae Treasury * Attach to Form 990, Open to Public
Intermad Revenie Sarvice * Go to W irs, gov/ Form 880 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

CPERATION HOMEFRONT [NC

32-0033325
m Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line &.
{a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and ather accounts

Total number 8t end of year . . . . . . . L

Aggregate value of contributions be (during year)

#Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
Aggregate value at end of year . . . . . .

oo W e

Did the organization inform all deners and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds are the
organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal central? . . . . . . . . . . . . O ves O He

] Did the organization inform all grantess, donors, and donor sadvisors in writing that grant funds can be used only for
charitable purpeses and not far the benefit of the donor or donar adviser, or for any ather purpc-se conferring imperrmissible

private benefiz? . . . . . [ ves [ Mo

IEZNEl cConservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yas" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apaly).
O Preservation of land for public use [e.g., recreation or education) [0  ereservation of an histerically impartant Land area

O protection of natural habitat O  rPreservation of a certified historic structurs

O Preservation of apen space
2  Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

easement on the last day of the tax year. | Held at the End of the Year
a Total number of conservation BRSEMERNS . . . . . L L L L L L L L L w e w . w 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . D e e e e e e 2b
¢ Number of conserdation sasements on a certified historic structure included in{a) . . . . . e
d Number of conservation sasements included in (e} acquired afver 7/25/06, and not on a histarie 2d

structure Msted in the National Register .

3  Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
tax year

4  Number of states where property subject bo conservation easement Is located &

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the peri&d < manitering, inspection, handling aof violations,

and enforcemaent of the conservation sasements it holds? . . . S [ ves O we
6 Staff and valunteer haurs devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation sasements during the year
"
7 Amount of expenses inourred in monitaring, inspecting, handling of viclations, and enforcing conservation sasements during the year
ki
B Does each conservation easement nepnrttd an line Z{ﬂ] abave ntu:hr the requiremnents af section 170(h ) (41(B)(i)
and section 170(h{4)(BH(N)7 . e - « e RO [ ves O e

9  In Part XIII, degseribe how the arganization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the crganization’s financial stabements that describes
the organization’s accounting for conservation sasements

S L #itd Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets,

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a [Ifthe crganization elected, as permitted under FASE ASC %58, not to report in its revenue statemant and balance sheet works of art,
histarical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in
Part XIII, the text of the footnate to its financial statements that describes these items.

b IFthe organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 956, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,

histarical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibiton, education, or research n furtherance of public service, provide the
fallewing amounts relating te these items:

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, PartWIIL, lPed . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .

(li)Assets included in Form 990, PartX . . . e R

2 Ifthe organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
fedlewing amounts reguired to be reported under FASE ASC 958 relating to thesa [tems:

a PRevenueincluded on Form 990, PartVIILlime 2. . . . . . . . . . .« - v o v v o v s e e .
b Assets included in Form S50, Part X . . . . . A &
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, Cat. No. 522830 Schedule D (Form 990} 2020
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Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3  Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection
items (check all that apaly):
3 [0 public exkibitian 4 [ Lsaner exchange programs
b
O sehalarty research * O other.
€ [0 #reservation for future generations
4  Provide a description of the erganization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in
Part X111
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures or other similar

Page 2

assets bo be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection?, . O ves im™
Escrow and Custodial Arrangements, - -
Complete if the organization answered "Yas" on Farm 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Farm 990, Part
X, line 21,
1a Is the crganization an agent, trustee, custedian or ather intermediary for contributions or ather assets not
included on Form 990, Part X7 . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e e e O ves Neo
b If "Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table: Amount
C Beginming BEIBRCE . . . . . . L L . L oi . s i e e e e e e e lc
d Additions during the WEBM . . . . & . . v o u v e e e e e e e 1d
® Distributions during The YEAr . - . . . . . . . .4 e e e e e e e e ie
POoEndingBalance . . . . v v e e e e e e e e e e i
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, Bne 21, for escrow or custodial account lability? . . . M ves O me

.. ¥

IF "¥es,” explain the arrangemant in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part XIIT . .

Endowment Funds.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part TV, line 10,
(&) Cument yoar {b) Price yoar {£) Two years back |{d) Thres years back| (&) Four years back
la Beginning of year balance . . . .
b Contributions . . .
¢ Net investment sarnings, gains, and losses
d Grants or scholarshigs
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs . . .
f Administrative expenses . . . .
9 Endofyearbalance « . .« .« &
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a}] heid as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment l-__ o
b Plr“"liﬂll"lt endowment ’ PP TS
Term endowment B )
The percentages on lings 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a  Are there endowrnent funds not in the possession of the arganization that are held and administered for the
erganization by: Yes | No
(i} Unrelated grganizations . . . . + & « & o« + & s 4 s s s 3a(i)
(i) Related arganizations . . . ¢+ . . & & 4 a4 4 = a = Jalii)
b IF"Yes" on Ja(il), are the related crganizations listed as required on Schedule RT . .« « « + &« 4 3b
L Dascribe in Part XII] the intended uses of the organization's endowmant funds.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, ling 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (@) Cost or cther bases (b} Cost or other basis (other) | {c) Accumulated deprecastion (d}) Bock value
{inwastmant)

1a Land . 611,237 611,237

b Buildings 3,229,528 95,981 3,133,847

¢ Leasehold improvements

d Equipment 538,434 535,502 2,932

e Other . . . . . 1,734,840 1,060,760 74,080
Total. Add lines 1a through le. {Column [d) must egqual Form 990, Part X, column (B, fine I0¢c).) . - 4,472 006

Schadule D (Form 9901 2020 |
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Page 3

[FEETH investments—Other Securities,

a a e on Form

(&) Dascriptisn of dacuriy or catagsry
(irvchiding name of seowriy)

Fi 3, i !
(€] Hethas of vabation:
Tast or end-of-year market value

(1) Firancial derivatives
2] Olosaby-bald aguity = tarets
(2)Othar

(Bl

el

[CH

(E)

(F}

[

[

[

Takal, (Cphamn (P) masr sjesd G B8, Faer i, opd () dne 11 ¥

— r—

Complite If the Grjanization answened "Yes' o0 Porm 990, Part IV, liné 11¢, See Form 390, Part X, liné 13,

{a) Cuscription of Fveitment

Tb) Bosk value

[ Muthod of vakeation;
LA OF a0 -l pear market
g

(]

2

4]

)

in

(L]}

(L]

(]

Takal, (Cphamen (D) masr sgesd Gwre B Pt I, opd (B) S 320

Other Assots,

Compists if the organization answered “Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. Ses Ferm 990, Part X, bns 15,

i

R f) Dezoriotien [B) Book value _____
{aji-1ano Goses o547
{3)CONTRIELTED HOUSES INVENTORY 1ZEIL1IE
:;;ﬂmu 1,701
(8]
[E ]
[L]]
[L]]
(1o}

= 13605 048

TH&IM’&EMEMMM& mr.agmu; s a
Other Liabilities,

Compiete if the organization answered “Yes' on Form 950, Part IV, ling 11e or 11f.5ee Form 90, Part X, line 25,

(@) Descristan of hatalty

(b)) Besi valus

{1} Federal scome taes

[ET]

(&)

18]

i

(L))

Takal, [Cokeren () s s Foee G0, Pat X, ol () et 351

2., Liakilty for uncertain tax poditiora. [n Park ﬂ_ll. provda the text of the foginste 1o the ogasizabon’s firancial statementi Ehat report the
organieatnn's babdity for uncertain tax pesitions under FIN 48 (ASC 740} Chec herg @ the tewxt of the fotnote has beer prowided in Part X0 D

Jchedule O (Form i) 30 |

111



Schacule D (Form 890) 2020 Fage 4

ETEETH Reconciliotion of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return,
Compasts if the crganaation answered "Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 123,

Tolal rivanue, Qiing, dnd Sthiy Suspar per sudioed Ninknoal statesrants . - . . =« & i 43,582,161
Amourts included o line 1 Bt not on Fars 90, Part VIIL, lea 12:
@ Nt enrealized gaing (losses) on investmenss . . . . 23 7,419
b Conated services and use of fFacilties « . < . o+ = s 4 FT] 4,332,265
& HReszvwrmaclprioryeadgrants . . . . . . . - . . . 1
d ChherDeserippin Pet ¥l - . 0 ¢ 2 0 r 2 a x ox s d
@ Addines Tatvoughd . . 0 . 4 0« a0 x w4 m a s 4 a s 4,724,845
3 Subtrmot line e from el . . . Coe e e e e e 3 19,257, M5
4 Amounts included on Form #90, Part VIIL, lrl 13 Mnﬂwlml
& Investmant sxpenses nok inchuded on Form 950, Part VIIL bne 75 | | aa | 207
b Oher Describein Part¥IL] .« . 0 . & 4 s = 4 a
€ Addinesdmanddb . . . . .. - Ce e e e e 207
Total revenus, Add s 3 and dc. n;'l'hu musk sqal lvarm G941, hn': e ldf = o o . ] 9,297 402

m Reconcilintion of Expenses per Audited Financisl Statements With I#pmﬂ per Return,
Compdete |f the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 13a.

1 Tola! expenses and losses per adited fing~clal StafemniE &« = 0 + 2 0 0 & @ a4 1 43,671,765
x Amounts included on line 1 ot not on Forre 950, Part TG, bna 25:
s [onsted mrvices and use of facilties .+ . o+« . 4 b s &, 133, 265
b Prioryearadustments . . . . 2 0 0 & 4 a1 oa s
L3 Dahar loddad - s " . . " a N P s a . - s e
d Rher(DescritsinPart ®EL) . . o . . 4 . - 4 . & . ad
® AddinesTatvoughdd » « + = &« 2 = 0 ¢ = 4 o ® a4 x = a4 e 4,132,3%5
3 Subtraect ine Zefrom sl . . 2 . ¢ & 2 4 & = 4 & = & a4 s & s w 3 39,339,500
Amaurty included o For= #00, Part 1K, ina 35, but ne® an ima 1:
8 Investment expenses nat Inchuded on Form 990, Part VIIL bre b . . | 4a | 207
b Other(Descrigin Part XI0.) = o &+ & = & & & a4 o & a
€ Addinesdaanddb . . . . s o8 s o = s & 8 = a & = de a7
Total axpenses Mdhlllundh[ﬁvmumilluﬂnm PatLbralf] . . . . . . £ 19,009, 107

Supplemental Information

Prowide the descriptions requined for Part 11, lines 3, 5, and 9: Part [IL, lives 18 and 4; Part IV, linss b and 2hc Part V, lne &; Part X, line 2 Part
K1, linws 24 and 4B: and Part K11, lines 2d asd 45 Alse complete this par to provide iy additisral irfermation.

I Return Relerence Explanation ]
et Adaitanal Data Tabie

Schedule D (Form 880) 2030

Schadule D (Form 990) 2020 Page 5
Supplemental Information (continued)
Return Reference Explanation
Schedule D (Form 9901 2020
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Additional Data

Software I1D:
Software Version:
EIM: 32-0033325
Mame; OPERATION HOMEFRONT INC

Supplemental Information

Return Reference Explanatian

PART IV, LINE 28: THROUGH &N AGREEMENT WITH OPERATION HOMEFRONT, HENDRICKS PROPERTY MAMAGEMENT LLC
COLLECTS

SECURITY DEPOSITS FROM CLIENTS PARTICIPATING [N THE PERMANENT HOMES FOR VETERANS PROGRAM,
HEMDRICKS ALSO COLLECTS FUNDS FROM THE CLIENTS EACH MONTH IN ORDER TO PAY PROPERTY TAXES A
ND INSURANCE COSTS WHILE THE CLIENTS ARE OCCUPYING THE HOMES, BUT BEFORE THEY ARE DEEDED T
Q THE CLIENT. HENDRICKS RE[MBURSES THE CLIENTS FOR SECURITY DEPQSITS AND OPERATION HOMEFRO
NT FOR PROPERTY TAXES AND OTHER COSTS PAID. THESE SECURITY DEPOSITS AND ESCROW ACCOUNTS AR
E MAINTAINED BY OPERATION HOMEFRONT. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 12/31/2020, THEIR BALANCES WERE %4
1,500 AND $309,407 RESPECTIVELY.
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“e'lile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - | DLN: 3493102011361

SCHEDULE & Supplemental Information Regarding OME No. 1545-0047
(Ferm 990 or 990-EZ)
Fundraising or Gaming Activities 2 02 ﬂ
L= et if the srgasieati d “¥ea™ an Form #80, Part IV, lnes 17, 18, or 19, or if the
e e e S b e
lzernal Revenus Servwe B G b v irigow, Form 390 far instructions and the latest infarmation. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

OPERATION HOMEFRONT INC
32-0033325

XY Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 9390, Part IV, line 17,
Form 990-E2 filers are not required to complete this part.

1 Indicate whether the crganization raised funds through any of the fallowing activities. Check all that apply.

a Mail salicitatians e Solicitation of non-government granks
b E Internet and email salicitations F D Solicitation of government grants

[ ®hone solicitations g [ Special fundraising events
d In-person solicitations

Z2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual {including officers, directors, trustees
or key employees listed in Farm 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? m‘,“ D No

If "Yes,® list the 10 h ghest paid individuals or entities ”ul‘d’l‘.li!-!l‘!-:l pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is

b
to be compensated at least $5,000 by the organization,
(i) Narme and sddress of (i) Acsivity (i} Dig {iv) Gross receipts {v) Amount paid ta (wi}) Amount paid to
indiwidual fundraiser have from ackivity {or retained by) {or retained by)
ar entity {fundraiser) custody of fundraiser listed in arganization
conirgl of col. (i)
contributions?
Yas Mo
IDIRECT
MARKETEAM RESPONSE/PRINTING
S ey ATHYROAD NE Mo 4,854,047 1,954,085 2,869,962

ATLANTA, GA 30328

IDIRECT MAILING
THOMPSON HABIE & [EERVICES

DEMISON INC E
B0 HAYDEN AVENUE 5TE 300 Ho 14,55 47123 106,442

LEXINGTON, MA 02421

Total o . 4,997,592 2,021,208 2,976,384

3 List all stakes in which the arganization i3 regatered of licensed to selict contributions oF has been netified it is exempt frarm registration o
licensing.

. FL, @A, HI, I, IL, IN, 1A, KS, KY, LA, ME, MD, MA, MI, MN, M5, M0, MT, NE, NV, NH, NI, NM, NY, NC, KD, OH,

AL, Ak, AZ, AR, C , O
5 ,UT, T, WA, WA, WY, W1, WY, PR

0K, OR, PA, RI, 5C,

B
C
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Sechedule G (Farm 990 or 990-EZ2) 2020

Page 2

Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or réported more
than $15,000 of fundraising event centributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with
gross receipts greater than $5,000.

[a)}Event #1 {b) Event #2 {c)Other avents (d) Total events
(add col. (a) through
MCOY GOLF cal. {e))
{event type] _ TOURNAMENTS {total number)
[avent type)
g
=
&
2
[+ 4
1 Gross receipts . . ' 197, ey 172,096 369,095
2 Leas: Contributions . N
3 Gross income (line 1 minus
line 2) . . . . . 197, 0y 172,094 369,096
4 Cash prizes B 7711 Zﬂd 77,318
5 Moncash prizes . s
w
§ 6 Rentffaclitycests . . . . 18,874 18,879
§ 7 Food and baverages 13,500 1,533 14,033
o] 8 Entertainment P 25de 134 25,227
@
5 9 Other direct expenses 10,54 zz,satl 33,382
10 Dvirect expense summary. Add lines 4 throeugh 9 in column (d) “ A 168,815
11 Met income summary, Subtract ling 10 from line 3, column (d) . & . v . . s . . e 200,257

|[EXXEEEE] Gaming. Complete if the organization answered "Yes® on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported
on Farm 990-EZ, line 6a.

mere than $15,000

-]
= (b} Pull tabs/Instant f {d} Total gaming [add
E (a) Bingo bingoy/progressive bingo (c) Other gaming ool.(a) through col {c))
g
1 Gross revenue . .
Ll
L la cashprizes . . . . .
§ 3 MNoncash prizes s x
g 4 Rentffacility costs .
& .
5 Other direct expenses . .
O Yes . B |00 ves % |0 Yes k.
6 Volunteer labor . . . 0 He [ Ne O nNe
7 Direct expense sumrmary. Add lines 2 thraugh 5 in column (d) B . >
8 _Met gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line L, columngd). . . . . . >
9  Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:
a Is the organization licensed te conduct garming activities in each of these states? . . B B Oves One
b IF"Ne,” explain
10a Waere any of the crganization’s gaming licenses reveked, suspended or terminated during the tax year? . o Oves e
b If*¥es,” explain:
Schedule G (Form 990 or $90-EX) 2020 |
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‘Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 Page 3
11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? Oves e
12  1Is the erganization a granter, beneficiary or trustee of a trust or a member of a parmershun or ather entlw
formad to administer charitable gaming? . - R Oves Cne
13  Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a The organization’s fagility . . . . . . . . . . . . ... L 13a %
b An outside facility . . . L . . . 13b £
14  Enter the name ard address of the person whe prepares the organization’s nm-r-m'spi-:hil events beoks and records:
Name #
Address #
15a Does the organization have a contract with a third pirt'r from whom the organization receives gaming
revenue’? - P L L e Oves ne
b If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revence received by the organization b § and the
amaunt of gaming revenue retained by the third party = $
€ IF"Yes,” enter name and address of the third party:
Hafme P oo it s
Address P
16 Gaming manager Infermation:
Nama B
Gaming manager compensation = §
Description of services provided I
O pirector/officer O employes O 1ndependent contractar
17 Mandatory distributions:
a s the grganization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming license? . . . . . . o . .« o .« . « DOves Oue
b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law distributed to other exempt organizations or spent
in the organization's own exempt activities during the tax year §
I Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2B, colurmns (i) and [v]); and Part
I, lines 9, 99, 10b, 15k, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information, See instructions,
Return Reference ] Explanation
Schegdyle ¢ {Form 900 or §90-£2) 2020 |
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efile GRAFHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS l.lf-llﬂl Biata = | — 233493102011 Jﬁll
Mote: To capturs the full of this d t, b aglect landicaps made (127 2 B.5") when printing, |
Schedule T OMB Mo I545-R04T
{Form 990) Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations,
Governments and Individuals in the United States 202 n
Carnplete i the organizatios snewered "Ves,” on Form 990, Part IV, line 21 or I3,
= fatech 1o Form 90,
B Go to v frgow Form @8 for the latest infermaion.
[ L b
Wawap of D g s Ealany Ereplayer aljuary
CFERATION HOMEFRONT [HC J3-0002335
General Information an Grants and Assistance
i Diows the crganzation masman records b dubnfer bate the amcunt of the grants or sddislacscs, B grasteas’ algisdity for B grasts o aenfecce, and
the eelecticn criteria wped io saward the granitx or assigtance? . , . . .o . . o= - . on - E Ve D Mo
Dascrice in Part [ the organization’s procedures lor monitoring the wpe of grant fusdy in the Linited $3ates.
m Grants and ther o Dorverst Garrernmeents, Compheoe (T e crpan Tabon answered es on Farm 990, Part [V, I 21, 167 87 reciperk
Erait recetoed mone than 35,000, Part 11 can e d_pguud Hm-uc-a AR |5 Nesded.
{a) Nare anad sddress of iB) BN {} 1RC section {d) Ameeant of cash | (&) Brount off ngn- | [T Method of valuabion [} Description of [h} Purpase of grarg
EPANTIEL (o apeicable) grant (214 (a0l FMV, aopraical, NOACAEN MEEEANCE O BERATIACH
BF QEvErnIan assistanoe ather)
[£4]
LE4]
i
L0
LEH
(61
L]
8
(e
{10}
{11}
ilzp
T Erter totad numser of section S0I(cI{3] and governement coganizabions isted in theline Ltabie, = «» + 2« 0 0 =2 0 a4 o a o x ox ax o w o« B
¥ Erter towd numier of pther crganizatiors Bsbed intheling L@ . o « + & & 0 4 & 0 4 = 1 4 a8 x a1 w1 1 a & v a a®
P Aot tar Farm L L Schedobe | {Farm §30) 2630 |
Schadule | (Pores §90) 2035 Page 3
Grants and (qher Asslstance 1o Domestic Individuale. Complate o the orges st on Badwered "Yed" o8 Feem #3840, Paa IV, ine 32,

Part 111 car ba du  addiEans e
(&) Typs of gract or Maistance Hurmbar af ) Hetkad of valuation {Bosk,
woizienld cadk grant FARZIAA AR FHV, appr B nl}-r_;

() Ameurt of ) Ameunt of 1) Deseription of Sancash FESHIINGE
(3] ASSESTANCE O CLIDNTS LLEE 100,588 1. 156, TE0) P FOO0, TOWS, FURNITURE, COMPUTERS AND

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT, CLOTHING, DECOEATIVE
ITEMS, SCHOOL SLFPLIES, GIFT CARDS, VEHICLES,
AND COMCERT/SPOSTS TICKETS

23

LEH]

L

51

18

L]

Provide the information required in Fart 1, line 2; Part [, columin (B); and any other additional information.

Explanation

FLIND'S ARE HOT RARD TO THE OLIENTS DIRECTLY. THEY ARE PAID TD THE LEMDING [MSTITUTION/LESSOACREDITOS UPDA REVIEW OF THE BILLS ARD FINAMNCIAL
STATEMENTS. THIS Wiy WE ALWAYS Khodidi THE FUNES ARE USED FOR THE INTEKDED PURPOSE OMLY.

Raturn Relerancs
FAAT [ LIME 2!

Suhecdule d Cleoon SO0 2080
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DLN: 93493102011361 |

Schedule 1 Compensation Information OME Ma. 1545-0047
Form 990
i L For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees 2 2
* Complete i the arganization answered “Yes"” on Form 990, Part IV, line 23,
* Attach to Form 990, ’
Ukepartment of the Tieman * Go to www.lrs.gov,/Form@90 for instructions and the latest information. Open to Public
el Revenie Saree Inspection
Kame of the erganization Employer identification number
OFERATION HOMEFRONT 1MC
32-0033325
m Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | Mo
1la Check the approplate box{es) if the organization provided any of the fallewing te or for a person listed on Farm
%0, Part VII, Section &, line 1a, Complete Part [11 te provide any relevant information regarding these items,
O  First=class or charter travel O  Housing allowance or residence for personal use
O  Travel for companions O Fayments for business use of personal residence
O Tax idemnification and gross-up payments O Health or social chut dues or initiation fees
O Discretionary spending account O rerscnal services {@.g., maid, chauffewr, chef)
b If any of the boxes on Line 1a are checked, did the arganization follow a writhen policy regarding payment ar
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "Ne,” complete Part 111 to explain ib
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expensas incurred by all 2
directars, trustees, officers, including the CEO/Executive Directar, regarding the items checked on Line 1a? .
3  Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the
arganization's CEQ/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methads
used by a related crganization to establish compensation of the CEQ/Executive Director, but explain in Part [I1,
O Compensation committes Wrritten employment contrack
O Independent compensation consultant B4 Compensation surwey or study
O Form 990 of other organizations ] Approval by the board or compensation committes
4  During the year, did any person lisked on Farm 990, Part VII, Section &, line 1a, with respect to the filing organization ar a
related arganization:
a Recelve a severance payment or change-of-control payment? . . . . e 4a Ne
b Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nengualified retirement plan?‘ . 4 4w e w a 4b Ne
¢ Participate in, or recelve payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? . . . . . . . . dc Ne
If "Yes" to any of lines da-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for gach ftem in Part I11.
Only 501{c){3), S501{c){4), and 501{c){29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
L For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line la, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent an the revenues of:
a  The organization? . _ . . . . . L . ... ... 5a Mo
b Any related organization? . . e e e e 5b Mo
If *¥es,” on line 5a or 5b, dli:flb! In F'i"t ]I:
& For persons listed on Farm 990, Part VII, Sectian A, line La, did the organization pay or accrue amy
compensation contingent on the net earnings of:
a The organization? . Ba No
b Any related crganization? . . . P e P Gb No
If “Yes,” on line $a or &b, describe in Fa"t ]I:
F For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line La, did the organization pr\uwdn any nonfixed
payments not described in lines 5 and 67 If "Yes,” describe in Part [II. . . i s s s 7 No
a8 Were any amounts reported on Form 950, Part V11, paid or accured pursuant to a contract that was
subject to the initial contract exceplion described in Regulations section 53.4958- 4[:}[3}1‘ If "¥Yes,” describe
im Part III . . s s s . . : = = = = = s
8 Na
¥ IF"Yes" on line §, did the urcam:itlnn also fellow the rebuttable prﬁumpt-un pderl described in Fl.-tqulatluni seckion
51 4058-6(c)7 . . Lo g
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Sehidube 1 [Feem S50 2000

Fage 2

Officars, Directors, Trustess, Key Bmployess, and High Camp d

play Ui duplcate caples o a30ibenal Saa0s s needed,

!u-mM. Part ]

For a@ct indvidual whese co=ge abos Fush B neparied on Schedui ), repsn cnwnnnnnmuummuﬂ 08 row 1) and Tram relabed Seganizatoss, described in the
imatructions, on row (], Do not Ink sry indridusly Eaat are not babed on

. Thae sum of |=;||zhﬁhmrmimuﬂﬂlamﬂd’ﬂ1ﬂm Frart WL, Swction &, line 1, & o n mmourgs for bt indaddual,
(A} Hare med Tk {8 Browkdewe of W-2 andfor 1085 HISC cormpenaation {€) Retrm=mrt asd (0] Montazabsia [E) Total of cslumes | [F) Compaasation in
i [ = other defered [l i) cobamn (B} resorted
(i} Basn i) Bonws & inceriree i I; : oy o popu
LT Faers #9340
;um-:mnlumom i ] ] ] ] 478 w
. {ii) o o =
ED:;.\MI“H ST i) T 24,000 o D o FETE T o
{ii) e ™ - -
Eu‘"g_ﬁi*' Froms i) FIERTE] §3.600 o [ [ I =
) o |7 e | T e | T e | T e | T ¢ | T ¢
BT AN i3 162,213 4000 ] ] ] 164 218 &
i) ® ] ] ] ] ] =
eorcmomants [0 LT Y - R [N .- R S,
FLiHDAT] i) o o r o o o =
e I 180,33 .08 o o ] AR s
[ 0 ] ] ] ] o @
o O 17 GENERAL L] ujugd . . : et :
SERVICES il o N : : : :

Sehidube 1 [Feem 9500 2000

Fage 3

Supplemental Infermation

Privei tha alfoirmatsn, as
Relurm Relerencs

PSR, B i il

i for Paet 0, bnes 14, 1b, 3.

4k, e Sa,

Ea, Bb. 7. and B aad for Part 1L Ao comslete B
Explanation

Faf Eifty A0S Bonel Bliormaten.

Sahedale 1 (Form G801 IO
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ﬁ&:ﬂgtf . Noncash Contributions

Depanmen of the Teeawary »Go to wwwirs.qev/ Form @0 for the latest information.

[riemal Reverme Service

DLN: 93493102011361|

OMEBE No. 1545-0047

eComplete if the organizations answered "Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, lines 28 or 30.
» Attach te Form 990,

[F I R N

-3 - B

12
13

14

15
i6
17
is
i9
20
21
22
23
4
25
6
7
28

Mame of the erganization
OPERATION HOMEFRONT 1NC

312-0033325

2020

Open to Public
Inspection
Employer identification number

Types of Property

{a} () (e}

Form 990, Part VIIL, line
ig

(d)
Check if (Number of contributions or|  Mencash contribution Hethad of determining
applicable items contributed amaunks reported on noncash contributicn amounts

Art=Worksofart . . . .

Art—Historical treasures .

Art—Fractional interests PR

Books and publications .

Clathing and househald

13,605 651|FMV

Cars and other vehicles . .

Boats and planes . . . .

Intellectual property . . .

Securities—Publicly traded .

Securities—Closely held stock .

Securities—Partnership, LLC,
of trust imberests . . . .

Securities—Miscellaneous . .

Qualified conservation
centrifution—Histeric
structures . . . . .

Qualified conservation
contribution—Other . . .

Real estate—Residential . X 19 4,137, 297|FHy

Real estate—Commercial . .

Resl estate—DOther . . .

Collectibles . . . . .«

Food inventory . . .

Drugs and medical supplies .

Taxidermy . . . . .« .

Historical artifacts . . . .

Scientific speciment . .

Archeclogical artifacts . . .

Other e [ GIFT CARDS X 3,976 435, 364|FHIV

Otherme |

Othere |

Other s |

9

30a

EL
32a

Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions
for which the erganization completed Form B283, Part IV, Denee Acknowledgement 29

During the year, did the organization receive by centribution any preperty reported in Part I, lines 1 through 28, that it
must hald for at least three years from the date of the inital contribution, and which sn't required to be used for exempt
purpeses for the entire holding peried? . . . .« & & & s 4 s s 4 s s s s s s

If "¥es,” describe the arrangement in Part IT.

Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard contributions?

Dwoes the organization hire or use third parties or related ocrganizations to soliclt, process, or sell noncash
contfibuthong? . . . . « 4 4 & & & s a4 2 o & & @ a a m w w w w w o=

If “¥es,” describe In Part I1.
If the organization didn't report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) Is checked,
describe in Part [I.

Yes

30a

ELY

Yes

32a

Mo

Cat Mo 81297 00000 Schedule M (Form $900 (20200 |
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Schadule M {Form 980} {2020] Page 2
mpphmentil Information. Provide the information reguired by Part I, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether the organization

is reporting in Part I, column (B), the number of contributions, the number of items received, or a combination of both, Also

cornplete this part for any additional infarmation.

| Return Reference Explanation |
efile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - DLN: 93493102011361
QMB Mo, 1545-0047
SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ
(Form 990 or 990- Complete te provide information for responses to specific questions on 2 O 20
EZ) Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
* Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open to Public
Dxepanmen of the Treasary * Go to www.irs.gov/Ferm920 for the latest information. Inspection
fesmmal BE thaorgamizat on Employer identification number
DPERATION HOMEFRONT INC
32-0033325
990 Schedule O, Supplemental Information
Return Explanation
Reference
FORM &80, |THE FORM 580 IS5 REVIEWED BY CEO, CDO, CO0, CFAD & 5R. VP OF HR PRIOR TO SUBMITTIMG TO THE BOARD OF
PART W1, DIRECTORS FOR APPROVAL.
SECTION B,
LINE 118

990 Schedule 0, Supplemental Information

Return Explanation
Reference
FORM 980, |EACH YEAR, ALL BOARD MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO REVIEW AND RECERTIFY THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
PART VI, POLICY. IT IS ALS0O ADDRESSED MID-YEAR IN THE BOARD ASSESSMENT.
SECTION B,
LINE 12C

990 Schedule O, Supplemental Information

Return Explanation
Reference

FORM 830, | INDEPENDENT BOARD OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, AND TRUSTEES ARE NOT COMPENSATED. AN EMPLOYEE COMPE

PART W1, NSATION STUDY WAS PERFORMED IM MID-2020. THE STUDY LOOKED AT A NUMBER OF FACTORS INCLUDIMNG

SECTION B, |JOB CONTENT, ORGAMNIZATIOMAL REVENUE AND PROFILE, INDUSTRY, AND GEQGRAPHIC REGION, THIS €O

LIME 15 MPEMSATION SURVEY WAS USED TO DETERMINE THAT CURRENT EMPLOYEE COMPEMNSATION WAS REASONABLE
AND WITHIN RANGE

990 Schedule Q, Supplemental Information

Return Explanation
Reference

FORM 200, DOCUMENTS MADE AVAILABLE ON OPERATION HOMEFRONT WEBSITE AND ARE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST
PART W1,
SECTIONC,
LINE 19

990 Schedule O, Supplemental Information

Return Explanation
Reference
FORM 830, | THE PROCESS HAS NOT CHANGED FROM THE PRIOR YEAR.
PART I,
LINE 2C:
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List of Names and Qualifications of Key Staff

Uli Correa works as the department chair at Operation Homefront

Linda Medler works as the treasurer at Operation Homefront

Greg Ham is the vice department chair at Operation Homefront

Tyrone Woodyard is the secretary at Operation Homefront

Steve Adkinson works as a board member at Operation Homefront
Derek Blake works as a board member at Operation Homefront

Rod Essig works at Operation Homefront as a board member and is a
music agent.

JK Huey works as a board member at Operation Homefront

Dianna Purvis Jaffin is a board member at Operation Homefront who is
also the Science and Resilience Adviser

Angelo Lombardi works as a board member inside Operation Homefront
Kelly Mayhall works as a board member at Operation Homefront

Steven G. Mahon works as a board member at Operation Homefront
John I. Pray Jr. works as a board member at Operation Homefront who is
also the President and CEO of Operation Homefront.

Faith Arnold Schwartz works as a board member at Operation Homefront
Ken Slater works as a board member at Operation Homefront

Terry Smith works as a board member at Operation Homefront

Andre Hawkins works as the Chief Financial and Administrative Officer
at Operation Homefront

Margi Kirst works as the Chief Revenue Officer at Operation Homefront
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Robert D. Thomas works as the Chief Operation Officer at Operation
Homefront

Karen Smithhart works as the Senior VP of Resources at Operation
Homefront

Scott Arcuri works as the VP of Field Operations at Operation
Homefront

Tony Barnett works as the VP of Marketing at Operation Homefront
Gracie Broll works as the VP of Transitional and Permanent Housing at
Operation Homefront

Jill Eskin- Smith works as the VP of Corporate & Foundation
Partnerships at Operation Homefront

Troy Kasbarian works as the VP of IT, Logistics & Facilities at
Operation Homefront

Scott Wood works as the VP of Individual Giving & Campaigns at
Operation Homefront

Susan Ziesman works as the VP of Integrated Public Relations at

Operation Homefront
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LEADERSHIP

Brig Gen John I. Pray, Jr., Andre Hawkins — Margi Kirst —
USAF' Retired — CPA, Chief Financial & Chief Revenue Officer

A P raraan (W4 v
President & CEO Adminestrative Office:

Brig Gen Robert D. Karen Smithhart — Colonel Scott Arcuri,
Thomas, USAF, Retired — Senlor VP of Human USAF, Retired —
Chief Operat ng Officer Resources VP of Feid Operations

Tony Barnett — Gracie Broll — Jill Eskin-Smith —
VP of Marketing VP of Transitional and VP of Corporate &
Permanent Housing Foundation Partnerships

Troy Kasbarian — Scott Wood — Susan Ziesman —
VP of IT, Logistics & VP of Individual Giving & VP of Integrated Public

Facilities Campaigns Relations
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IN THIS REPORT: UNITED WE STAND

Whien expectations for a Deter 2021 gave way 10 o persistent
plotiad cortnued and COVID-19
variants, strugoing miltary famies cast e hopes on
Operation Homatront, and we found ways 10 continue %0
novate, grow, and give them the best-in-class programe
they harve sarmed and 30 richly Geserve.

rqwﬂmwmmmmm
Arvabel, begonkg  Op . P

Homes for Veterans program was e opportunity of n
Mot Lisewise, whan Navy vetemn Dandes Ajy's dream
d.mmmmmunmm
Op 3 ) Homes for Velersm
mmmmmu-mm

This ruport tells the story of how Opemtion Homelront haa
Grown 1o serve tens of thousands of miltary familes sach
Y, thanks 10 Cur DAMNEN, CENOn, ANd volurvisen who aiso
stand reacly 10 Serve, As Wi anter our 20° year, we contirue
Our IPEoriatt work 10 SUPPOrt this visry special wnd desenving
group of our fellow citizers in ther fme of neod

Il MISSION: =

Operation Homedont busids strong. stable,
and secure miltary familes 50 they can
Prive = not Smply struggie 10 gt by In the
communities ~OUAR communfles ~ ey have
wirkadt 50 hard 1o pectect.

anmmu
Meloon, Vieginia, Oy Y

VALUES:

Do What's Right: Our actions must sways reflect the
best intersets of e miltary tamdse we seok 1O serve.

Gratitude: As & conaut by which Ammeecans ane
abie to ahow their nppreciation for al that our miltary
community Joos on cur Deball, we must refect

this appreciation and be grateful 20 8l who heip us

Provicies supportve “m
10 méitary famies acrosa the nation with 21
locations serving ol 50 states.

Il VISION AND CORE BELIEF:

To be the provider of chalos for short-teem

To help our miltary aersbes in thak times
©of peed for all they have done for us In our
ration's time of need.

©sh our

Perform with Excellence: Our tho0ps and thewr
farniies work tirsleasly to protect the freedoms we
orgoy daly, and they deservo our very besat efiors 10
oot them, To 00 50, we must stay 100usad 0N our
mission, be accountable, and strive 20 excoad Mwir
oxpectations.

on
mmmmmmm
NAVIdual's CONTDUton to Qur collective mission.

POrwer
Mm-mmmwm-wuy
trunt-based

Oparation Mometront was founded
10 support the famiies of service
members depioyed in the aftermath
of 911

Dollar Tree's parinamhip with
Opecation Homaefront began. Dobar
Tree and it customarns have since
donated over $164 melion

Back-t0-School Brigade kicked
off, distributing 8,177 backpacks.
In 2021, over 39,000 miltary
children acroas the nation received
backpacks Tled with school
supplos through the program

The Transitional Housing - Villages
program opened its fest vilage

and welcomed its fiest familly In

San Antonio, Teous

The rauvgurs’ Miltary Child of the
Yoor® Awards recogniznd the service
and sacrifice ol our nation’s younges!
heroes from each branch for thok
scholarship, volunteensm, leadership
extracurmioulsr involvernent, and other
oriteria while facing the challenges of
miltary famay Me

‘ |
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m In =3 rsugural year, Holiday Meals foe
Military doltvered naarly 7,000 meals to

miltary tarniben

A second location for Transitional
Housing - Villages opanad In the
Washington, D.C., area.

An rstiative with The Home Depot
Foundation 1o repar, rehab, and
ool onmes of wonced heroes
started. Snco ihe partnership began,
The Home Depot Foundation has
donated over $16 milon.

JPMorgan Chase & Co, Degan
provideg homes 1o owr Permanent
Homes for Veterans crogram. To
Gate, JPMorgan Chase has donated
over 500 hormes 10 the program,
totaling reary $80 milion in deeded
value 10 mitary familes.

50,000" mwal served In our Molldey
Meals for Military progrm

In Septomber, the Permanent
Homes for Veterans program
swarded & 100" morigage-free
hama 10 & miitary famity

m The fiest Comenstone Award hanoeed an

Indivicual for helping us transform how we
deliver on cur promise fo miltary familes.

m The 500” tarrily 1 e Permanemt

Homes for Velorans program recand
a deed to a morigages-free home

The fent of three military families
artored the Transitional Homes for
Veoterans program, made possible by
2 $4.2 mision grant from the A, James
& Alce B, Clark Foundation to
sxpand our etforts 10 provide housng
for military farmlien Sransitioning to
civilian e, In 2021, the 21" famiy
andered the program and the seventh
tamity graduated

The Holiday Meals for Military crogram
reached a milestone of over 100,000 mistary
farrdbos served

The frst voteran farmdy gracumed fom
"% Transitional Homes for
program. The family worked hard 1o
complete he program sarly and DOugHE Thelr
own home,

The Critical Financial Assistance program
meactod waiftly 1o needs generaled by

he COVID-19 crisl, fulfiling ovwr 1,500
pardemic-relaled requests for help acrosa
29 states and Puerto Rico and totaling
mearty $1 milion.

m The Siater Family Foundation rmade

ftures of Arnerca's miltary familen.
Owr 650" tamily corrpleted
P “ for

progren and wi be deeded thelr
morigage-ree homa in earfy 2022

Oparation Homedant prograens will ht
notable milestones

The Critical Financial Assistance
program wil fultl its $0, 000" request
Since 2011, the program wil have
provided over $35 milkon in assistance to
mltary tamies

The Transttional Housing -
Program will provide rend. and utiity-free
housing to our 700" transitioning family

Back-10-Schook-Brigade wil delyer

ftn 00, 000" backpack Sled with school
Supples 10 a miltary child, saving famiies
over $55 milon in back-to-school
expanses.

The 676" meltary famidy wil graduate
fram owr Permanent Homes for
Veterans program, surpassing
$100 milion in deeded home equity
o miltary famites
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FROM THE PRESIDENT AND CED

“THE TITLE OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT -
UNITED WE STAND - REFLECTS OUR
PLAN TO LAUNCH OUR $100 MILLION,
THREE-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE
CAMPAIGN THAT WILL ALLOW US TO
SECURE THE FUTURES OF THE MILITARY
FAMILIES WE SEEK TO SERVE ... NOW
AND FOR DECADES TO COME."
—JOHM 1, PRAY, JR,, OPERATION HOMEFRONT

PAEMIOENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
URIG. GEN. USAF, RETIRED

“OUR CAMPAIGN IS OFF TO A FAST
START DUE TO THE CONFIDENCE
OUR MANY PARTNERS AND DONORS
HAVE IN OUR ABILITY TO FULFILL OUR
IMPORTANT MISSION."

~ANGELO LOMBARDL, BOARD CHAIAMAN

*

o

While 2021 began wih encouragng news of a COVID-19
vaockne and the hope of reopening communites acres
OuF NAtON, the PaNdemsc persistod, and marny Amercans
xporienced further (isruption and economic hardship
our miltiry farmiles among Them, | am proud 10 sepont
o saff, board members, volurtesrs, and donom
met these contrued challenges with determination
ad resolve. Using owr core volues - Do What's Right,
Gratude, Performn with Excellence, and Respect
Others - 10 guade ua, we charped forward bolstered by
an unwavering commiiment o oo mission to helping
o miltry famlles have The opportunty % Bhrive,
not simply struggie %0 get by, In the communities ~
OUA communitios ~ hay have worked 80 hard 10 protect
As you road his repornt, | am confident you will agree
the results and milestones wo achioved a3 & team aro
N orly worth calebrnting, but worth using a8 & solkd
fourdiation for further growth In e yuirs abeacd]

| am proud 10 report: We exceeded the 40,000%
roquests mark for owr Critical Financiy Assatance
program, totalng nearty $33 milion inrelef funding; we
wwarded our 640™ mongage-fres home, fotaling over
$96 milion in ceeded value Twough cur Permanent
Homes for Veterans program; we welcomed our 26*
miitary tarmedy into our fledging Traraitional Homes for

Vetorans program, saving them $350,000 in morigage
comtx; and we housed o B50™ miltary family in o
Transitional Howaing - Vilages, saving them over
$7 milhon in reert and utiities. All our programs share i
COMMON PUrPOSE: 1O anture the short-term Anancial
haraships focing our tamiies do not become long
torm Miruggies that derall any hopes of & stronger,
more stabie, and moce secure Ltue

These stelar accomplashments would not be posstie
without the extrmordinary efforts of our talknted staf!
and our amazing volurteers. Appreciating the nood
10 adapt oue program delivery to continue to provide
the wide range of impactful programs 10 owr military
familes in thelr communitios, our hesdguarions and
fisicd stafts continued % work remotely while oo
voluntoers wert above and beyond to give more
than 51,000 hours and to load nearly B0% of our
Back-10-School Brigade and Holday Meals for
Miltary distnbutions

The title of ths annual report - United We Stand -
reflocts our plan 1o launch cur $100 millon, three-
your comprehensve Campagn that wit afow us %
secwre the Ntures of the military families we seek 10
serve . now and for decades t0 come. It represents 4
cal to action 1o all those who share our commitment
10 this very special and deserving group of owr fallow
citizens, Join us an wo colbrate o 20 year and
prepare for the next 20 years - standing united for
our miltary tamiles.

With gratitude,

John |, Pray, M
President and Chie! Execstive Oficer
Brig. Gen. USAF, retired
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FROM THE BOARD CHAIRMAN

2021 was a difficult year. The
nlinang pandem and resulting national ang
nternational turbulence anties continued
10 piace a Mamendous atzain on all Amerncans, Yet

despite the challenges that sidelined many other
n Home! tamily
used on and commitied 10
ne their inancal

nonpr

the emive
has been able to stay

Abig “thank you" goes 1o & our corporate, Soundabion

ve, for

st individdual denors, large and senall, who
20 years mow, enthusastically supported Operation
Homefrorts important work and therelyy sustained
ow abiity to delver Me-changing programs 1o tens
J nds of mintary tambles o yoar Over the
past 12 months, we. Celtversd more than 39,000

backpacks 1o miltary kics, served mone than 17,000
heped nearty 1,000
om thelr

meals to miktary fam

aftan e

way 4
»na A baby 0 thek tamiy.

Pew And expecting moms
od ones, prepar

VWhether a méltary famidy bonefits from ouwr raratons o

permanent housing programs. our financal assistance
POgam, or our holday meals o Backpack s
sach touchoont with Opembion Homedont reminds
T that we are exceedingly grateful for afl they have
done 10 protect Bw freedoms we enioy daldy, | am
espoeciafly proud that, In o very unsetiing social and
VCONOIMIT o orrment, B8 percenrt of our expendtures
Wl toweed Cur programs. Moreover, I'm proud That we
coninue 1o be trusiod and respected, as demonstratod
Dy our 100 ratings by majr Charlty rating sgencies

We will not res! on owr fsurels & we understand there
s much work stll 1o do 10 Bex
wil seok our assstance n the
Yin oveearching DUFPose I mind.

20 the futures of Moo

miitary famiies W
coming years, ¥

OO O ambitious

wiinued liryeg the grou
s milion United We
campaign and plan 10 laund
fundraising effort in earnty
fast start due 10 the ce

comprebensive
major three-your
022. Our carmpaign is off 1o 2
JOCO X MATy PArers Bnd

% have 0 our abilty 10 Tl our IMPOriant mission.

I, along with my feliow board emembers, Delleve £ s

much to serve ol of us
we can be proud of all we have o
fact remains that many mitary famides will
10 struggle a5 they Sansition back Mo thelr chilan

o mitary tamiles

mmunities, The good rews i that we am positioned

goo
10 continue our iImportart work, and, | am procd % sary

wo will be Bhere 1O Peip them

Many tharks,

Ny 9 o

u—.‘\g A .—J.,...\M
)

Angelo Lombard

Chairman, Board of Directors
a Wellness

2021 BOARD MEMBERS N
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Serecy Vice Pramsere A Sarvor
AT MR | et P
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Oaren Blake
Pt of Parratips. Taadcs,
oo

fad Banig
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Agwy
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B CRITICAL FINANCIAL B TRANSITIONAL HOMES

ASSISTANCE FOR VETERANS
Since 2011, we have provided Since 2018, we have defrayed over
mny$33M In critical financial 3450.000 In mortgage costs while
assistance, fulfiling nearly housing 2] military families. 7 families
50.000 requests. completed the program and purchased

their own homes.,

In 2021, Operation Homedont wis able 10 UM nearty In 2021, the Transtionad Homes o Vielernns program
2,120 REQUESTS Yyom miktary famiion, provicing over heiped 5§ FAMILIES gracuate and
$2.3 MILLION In firancial assistance 21 FAMILIES save over $230,000 in housing costs

I RELIEF PROVIDED IN 2021

KEY:

@ Teetons Momes for

» « $303 000 Veturana kcatonm

@ Tawnora Maang

ieu Snarveg somance preveind vy Voagm rocurra

1 00% OF SURVEY RESPONDENTS AGREED °

OR STRONGLY AGREED THE CRITICAL FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE THEY RECEIVED HELPED THEM FEEL
STRONGER, MORE STABLE, AND MORE SECURE,

B TRANSITIONAL HOUSING -
VILLAGES
Since 2008, we have defrayed over 87"
in rent and utility costs, and provided
over 6.000 months of rent-free

housing to military families.

Our Tranalional Housng « Villages provided
341 MONTHS of rescency 1o 183 FAMILY MEMBERS
helping themn save nearty $470,000 in 2021

m 1f
A
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A Force Stat Sgt. Cresstian Gerhawt followed family
trdition when he enlsted, and he was proud to serve
our country, Aller alx years of service in Italy, Niger, and
the United States, Christian and his wife, China wanted
10 sattio in Florda with ther family and finally pursus ther
college degrens, Owring 8 home was & dream neither of
thom considensd a posatilty

VWhen they saw our Trarstional Homes for Veterans
progam, Christian and China appited, scarcely hoping that
ey windd Do acoepied and on A D 10 Homecwnerahip
The program allowod Bw coupio 10 live rent-free in a home
n Ruskin, Flodda, for 2% yoars 80 they could educe
Thelr debe, enter coliege, seitle their chidiren in schodls
and acihves, and work on learming the skl of buyng
and mantaning & homae, In just two yoors, the Gerarts
achieved fnanciad stabilty, vgroved thar Creci! scoms,
and saved] anough Moy for & down payrment on A three-
DAcEOOM, TwO-Dath home Neartyy i Ruskin

Tharks to the A, James & Alice B. Clark Foundation's
contnuing commiiment %0 the Transitonal Homes for
Vieterars program, {formiles B e Gerharts are roslizing
thair dream of home owneeship, The Garharts were one of
five famiies to graduate from the THY program in 2021
begnning o year of celebration Sor thewr family. Christian
and wife Chira welcomed ther thisd child, he graduated
from coliege ... and now they are going 1o be homeowners
In thaw “lorever community.”

Since 2018, Tranaitonal Homes $or Veterans has defayed
over $450,000 in housing costs whils housing 21 riltary
famiies. Seven faméles have successiully completed he
progeam and purchased ther own homos

“THANK YOU (TO OPERATION HOMEFRONT) FOR SUPPORTING US AND MAKING
OUR TRANSITION TO CIVILIAN LIFE MUCH SMOOTHER AND MORE MANAGEABLE."

STAFF SAT. CHRISTIAM OERMART, U.6. AIR FORCE VETERAN

FULFILL OVER 55,000
REQUESTS FOR FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE, PROVIDING

NEARLY $40M IN ASSISTANCE

HOUSE 100 FAMILIES IN OUR
TRANSITIONAL HOMES FOR
VETERANS PROGRAM

HOUSE 780 FAMILIES IN
OUR TRANSITIONAL HOUSING -
VILLAGES, DEFRAYING
$8.5M IN HOUSING COSTS
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B PERMANENT HOMES FOR VETERANS I VETERAN CAREGIVER SUPPORT

Since 2012, over 700 military families have been welcomed into the Since 2008, our Veteran Caregiver Support
PennmmlNotmiorVahms(PHV)progrﬂn.Oﬂhou.mnﬂyBSUmihury families program has assisted nearly 4.000:.-%
have received mortgage-free deeds, a value of over SQGM in home equity. through its network of support groups.

I 2021, the Vietersn Caregiver S
2,500 CAREGIVERS rationmwic h s retwork of
75 SUPPORT GROUPS st onirw forums. Open 1o al
Caregvens o ost-9'11 wounded, njured, or N sorvice

members, VCS nosted 12 CAREGIVERS a 1 VIRTUAL

RETREAY Bt provided madie, occaton, and self-cane

1 DAOQIAT Asialed
Ouwr PHY program accepted 8 VETERAN FAMBLIES w0
and graduated 33 FAMILIES irto mortgage-free homen,

raarty $6.4 MILLION i deeded home equity

B SINCE INCEPTION

Koy,
@ M boma ccoupied by miltary Sty ) YWY Same Seoded 4o reiltary ey

® VO3S wppont pecp

96[}/0 OF SURVEY RESPONDENTS AGREED OR
STRONGLY AGREED THAT THE PERMANENT HOMES
FOR VETERANS PROGRAM HELPED THEM FEEL
STRONGER, MORE STABLE, AND MORE SECURE.
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GRADUATE OUR 700™ FAMILY,
FROM OUR PEAMANENT HOMES
FOR VETERANS PROGRAM,
PASSING OVER $100M IN
DEEDED HOME EQUITY

HOST OUR 700™ CAREGIVER
AT A VCS RETREAT

“THIS PROGRAM HAS GIVEN US STRUCTURE AND FINANCIAL SECURITY.
IT WILL IMPACT OUR FAMILY FOR GENERATIONS TO COME."

~SAT. BAYAN EDWARDS, ARMY VETERAN

Hosting a dozen tamily members for Thankaghing was
the gravy on 100 of & year flled with blsssings, say Ay
velocn Brysn Echenrds and his wite, Annabel, who moved
nio thelr Permanent Homes for Veterars house in Laurd,
Marylang, this fal. Walking 0 the newly DUt iowehome,
provided thvough the genermsity of PulteGroup, Inc.s
Bt 1o Horor program, wis surresl for the couple, who say
the Rully furnisied Bome wan Idomed procesly 10 theer tisto

Bryan, who began ha miltary caroer in e National Goard
belore enfiating in the Ammy, was injured in a firofight in
Adghanistan in 2010, He wan shot wide running 10 secure
cover for his squed. He received a Purple Hoart and was
medicaly retred. He Iives with PTSD, traumatic brain
Hjury, and otfar combad injures

Before being accepted in the Permanent Momes for
Vilerans program, Bryan and Acvabel were Iiving with
her parents so they coukd save money 10 buy a home.
Now, they are embracing the fnancial ecucation that is a
part of the program, and Bryan s enjoying a new job that
alows him 10 Spana more Ume in thek new home, The job
- with PueCroup, Inc, ~ is also & result of the program.
*It's a1 & QOASING.™ I Sk

The Laured, Mandand, house s one of three of
PulteGroup, Inc.'s Bult fo Homor homes awarded to
Operation Hometront

The Edwards tamidy was one of eight veteran familes
accopted o e Permanest Momes for Vederans
program in 2021, gracuatng 33 famiies into Mongeage-
froe homes, receiving a combined $6.4 millon in deeded
home equty

Since 2012, nearty 850 familes have received mortgage
froa homes through Permanent Homes for Vetenns,
totaling moee than $96 milion In home equity.
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I BACK-TO-SCHOOL I HOLIDAY PROGRAMS I HOMEFRONT

BRIGADE CELEBRATIONS
Since the Back-to-School Brigade (BTSB) Since 2010, we have served aver We have honored nearly 9.000 military
program boomhm.m465.nou 145.000 farnilies — WBUU.UOU spouses at Homefront Celebrations and
backpacks have been distributed to individual family members — through our awarded 34 ttend: with demic
millitary children, saving families over Holiday Meals for Military (HMFM) and scholarships since 2009,

350" In expenses.

Holiday Toy Drive programs.

Homehore Celetratons recognaed 173
In 2021, our Molicay Meals for Miltary peogram served MILITARY SPOUSES n 2021 for e remarkabie
# 2021, our Back-to-School Brigade over 17,000 FAMILIES — nearly 70,000 INDIVIDUAL
provided over 39,000 MILITARY CHILDREN FAMILY MEMBERS. Holday Toy Drives distributed foys
wih backpacks and school supples to over 1,000 MELITARY CHILDREN n 2021

sorvice, Virtued ovents Swaled! spOuBes % Guest
poakers, specil surprses, and Peiped them
Brow thewr community

B MILITARY CHILD BN STAR-SPANGLED BABIES
OF THE YEAR®
SLTEIUTEHANNT | W e strtd nd orted v 95% a0 93%
iy s e IO O N SR P OF SURVEY RESPONDENTS
through the Star-Spangled Babies®
AT BT anronce = AGREED OR STRONGLY AGREED
Emma Remiey Nyah Gray program © 2008. THAT THE HMFM AND BTSB
ot Pt b frswesnnd PROGRAMS (RESPECTIVELY)
MARINE CORPS:  NATIONAL GUARD: I 2001, 0w Sten Sromgiid Bibled® HELPED THEM FEEL STRONGER,
Eleanor Daved im0 Puliafico program showorod 981 MILITARY MORE STABLE, AND MORE SECURE
VY : PARENTS with support and essential - 5
lh.:&‘n‘Bandy Js‘:’:‘ft: :‘2:’?;." baby tems they needed 10 welcome ther

newest famdy mesmbens.

__
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As 8 parortt of three school-age chiden, Army veteoan
Orando Andrews fol gratohd for the conated backpacks
stuffed with school supples. Voluntoering at a Back-4o-
Schoct Brigade (BTSE) event macks him fesl doubly blessed

Oriando served soven yoars In the Army, working a8 #
Faraportation specialist, Dunng  14-manth deployrment as
part of Operation irag) Freedom. he sufferod head and back
Inpuries whan Ms unit wiss ambushed. He was meckcally
retired and ives with symptoms relating to raumatc bran
Ingury, PTSD, ardd neurclogical dscrdens. The irjures it
Pis abdty %0 work ms an [T techrician

He s his wife, Detorah, have five chilcien anc were
exciied to loamn about Operation Homedont from a fellow
voloran. Most recertly, the famidy attended a BTSE drive
Py event in Mormigomerny, Alabama.

s & big heip 10 do 8 0Ne-SA0D Shop for sChod! suppien.
Usually, you g0 0ne place 10 get Dackpacks and others 1o
oot suppiion,” he sakd

In 2021, CSX renewed fts commitment 1o Opestion
Hometront through its Pride in Service nitative, by
announcing a two-year gift 1o our mission. Addtionally,
CSX partnered with Opemtion Homebont %0 ciatebute
1,400 backpacia and essertial school supphes 1o miltary
chileen In Jackasonvile, Flordda: Clarksvile, Ternessos;
anxd Fayetiovie, North Carcling, &8 8 part of our annusl
Back-%0-School Brgade

“At CSX serving those who serve is it the core of our
mession and we are proud 10 hefp delver school supples
1o miltary chilcren, aasing al least one polantal strees
for their tamiles,” saic Bryan Tucker, vice president of
corporate comemenications s C8X

*IT WAS LIKE A BURDEN WAS LIFTED OFF OUR SHOULDERS."
~ARMY VETERAN ORLANDO ANDREWS, BTS8 MONTOOMERY ATTENDEE

PROVIDE OUR 550,000™
BACKPACK, SAVING MILITARY
FAMILIES $65M

SERVE OUR 180,000™
HOLIDAY MEAL, SAVING
MILITARY FAMILIES S$OM

HONOR 9,300
MILITARY SPOUSES

CELEBRATE 21,300 NEW AND
EXPECTANT PARENTS
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OUR S100 MILLION CAMPAIGN TO SECURE THEIR FUTURES

OUR GOAL I

United Wo Stand is our $100 millon compreheraive
CHTONON 10 generate the eoursss that wil alow us 1o
SoCurd the Atures of our ity farmnidies for years 10 come.

WE KNOW WHAT WORKS I

Operation Hometront & one of the langest national charties
Gedicaled 10 sanving mitary famles. We have A proven
track rocord of helping them overcome thesr francial
challongos. After two decades of mnavation, rigorous
ovahation, and Ihoughtfud  pdaptation, OUr ErOgIMS
contnue 10 meet the changrg needs of owr mikary
famdos. Simply paat, we know what works,

We know sven lemponry Snancial satbacks can shalier
Groams and dernd Ltures —and wo e expernced ot
heiping meltivy familes got back on a stronger more
sable, and more secure path. %o do 8o, we ofler o wide
nnge Mghly valued refel, seslency, and mecuring Ty
SUpport programa 50 miltary familes natonwide.

Wo also know that miltary famies who am financialy
wcure have a bDetter chare of Beiving n
communiins after irnstioning from service, Too often
recuming fmancial hardships provent mitary familes
from ganing and'or maintaming the standard of ving
thay and thelr loved ones 80 richly deserve, Our
Crticsl Financial Aasistance program, which couplos
mnediate relied 10 the em of payrment of Overcue
bDills with Caseworker suppon and financial counseing
provides the foundation miltary familes can use 1o avert
future finarciad Crises and gain long-term finarcia health,

Swir

WE BELIEVE STRONG MILITARY
FAMILIES CONTRIBUTE GREATLY TO
BUILDING STRONG COMMUNITIES...
AND THESE STRONG COMMUNITIES,

IN TURN, BUILD A STRONGER AMERICA.

THE NEED CONTINUES N

It 5 a nmtioral tragecty when a miltary tamily, who
has worked teslesaly 10 protect the freedoms we, a8
Americana, anjoy daly has 10 axperiance the demoralizing
realization that a short-term fnancal hardahip wel
8 long-termn struggle that deralk any hope of &
brighter future. Whie many Ameriocans struggle, mtary
familes often have addational burders not faced by cther
segments of cur society

n

Wile Operation Homefront & alie 10 help 1ons of Troasancs
Of reiitary Tarilen o) ynae, Wwo miss OpOrUnites 50 help
more due 10 mted mecurces. Themdore, (rowing Our
fnancal resources i omical 1o Owr abity 1O delver the
SuUpport they 50 deaporately need

OUR MISSION IS CRITICAL N

ncreasing the Snancial soff-suficency of famiies s crtioal
10 Palping them Decarming stronget, mons stable, and mon
SO, ECONOMIC-related lresson an o wel-docurmented
fak factor for tarmdly natabilty, family dysfunction, and
chid sbuse andd negiect, Financlal distress can lead 10
destructive effects including increased family confiot and
vidlence, low sell -estoem, anger, depresaion, and abuse of
Nooho! nnd drugs

One of Operation HOomelront's magor rwestons recently
CONCtnd A third-panty assesament of our work and the
mpact of owr mission. The study found that the work we
g0 n haiping misary farmdes become fnancially secure
a directly related 10 onsuring stabity and growth in other
aroan of ok hves
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OUR CAMPAIGN IS BUILT UPON THREE PILLARS

- WE:Nmawh-mtmmnmnnmwwvmwm.mnvwmpnclammmcmmm
happon. This is about you and mone than 19 million vetsramn and active-cuty senvice members and ther famies who have
pedged 10 protect and delend our Constiution and the Seedoms we enjoy daldy. Thelr cournge. Ther honoo Thelr commitment.
But we are ol Acranicans, and we aro ol iIn this Sogether

- UNITED: Whore there s unity, there is strongth. This & about Amencans coming together, with the firm bellef Shat our
ity lerdien deserve, and have eamod not Only our Uimast espect, DUt Our active spport

S$75 MILLION

- STAND: This is an active stance and means we &% ready 10 stand up 1or this viry deserving group of our Telow ‘OPERAT]”O CWMNENT)

Amercara in e Sme of need, because they have served all of us In our nation’s time of reed

PLANNING PHASE

12/2020-2/2022 2022-2025 2025

ACTIVE PHASE CLOSE

+

Il 20 YEARS OF SERVING AMERICA'S MILITARY FAMILIES IS $26 MILLION

KEY:

Nake! Prograrma
ol s 30 amarnar > e e shate
0000 « 200900
@ Tarmtorw Wouves br WAwra

TL Tenone Housng - Vilage
Pesdury Prigrans

) Pt s b e

(CAPITAL COMPONENT)

$100
MILLION
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Tan yoors after arriving in the United States as & mfuges from wae-toen Liberia, Dandse Ajmt anlsted in the U.S. Navy, It was & way she coukd mpay the nation that gave her a
future. “The Navy gave me a tamily,” Dandee sald. She planned 1o serve 20 yoars, but medical refirement cut short her career goal. Candee tacad the difficult transition 1o caviian
e with har huaband, Olamide, and thelr two young children.

THEIR STORY I

Dandes entisted i 2000 and served for 12 years before
fivromyalga, PTSD, and chronic migrnine headaches
snded her career, During her mitary senvice, she worked
as o damage controdman and was grateful for e
BDDOrtive miltary comeundty. "1 had never had S0Moone
0 care how | was doing. and that motivated me to do
better,” she ssd.

When Dandee enlistod, she was Aving out of har car
whilo attending coliege and working two jobs. Jomng
the military, she reasoned, would provide housing and
aliow her to show her grattude 10 the United States
for taking her in as a refugee

Whin Dandes began the transition to civiban Me
e Ayl family Ived ot the Operation Homeleont
Transitional Housing « VWiage in San Diego. Thera, 100,
she found a supportve famiy that helped her imoegrate
into her mew community with confidence. Olavide
samed certification as an airfdine mechanic and landed
A job in Texas, Whie at the Village, the Alays leamed
about the Tramaitionsd Homea for Veterans peogram
and n house that would be avaliable in Fort Woreth, near
Clamide's job

Dandee, Olamide, thewr G-yearold son. also ramed
Olamide, and daughter Abigat, 2, moved into the
new home in October. *Every night | wake up and
walk around tha house. | can't believe I'm living n
this house,” said Dandee, Shw is grateful 10 be living
in the reni-free home so her famdy can save money
townrd the purchase of ther own home. *There's no
way this has bappened because of luch.” she sald. *Its
because of kindness and genercsity. We don't take
any kincness for granted or misuse i1 We see it a3 an
opportunity to better oursedves. *

_

OUR IMPACT I

Madison Dilon, manager of the Transitionsl Momes for
Velerans program, understancs the many chalenges
facing miktary famiies iraraiScning 10 chilan e, For
many of tham, having their own home and a sense of
community fecls unattenable

In 2021, Mackaon faciitated the purchase of eght THY
homes, brnging the number of houses In Operation
Homefront's flagsiip housing perogram %0 21, Among
the houses was the nowly bullt hame the Agy! family
moved o, wiich Operation Homefront was sble 1o
purchase thanks to Pitsbury

Dandee credita the program for heiping hee family
along the path foward homeowrmeship. Not only wit
the Alayis be able 10 Sudd savings and reduce dedl
while tampornrily living rent-Sro0, they also wil recehve
financinl ecucation, training n home matenance,
and support services, “We will know how 1t feels 10 be
8 homegwner and what we wil need and want for a
home that, by the grace of God, we will purchase in
Texas.” she said. "It feels ke o weight has boen pulied
OIf ouwr shoniciers. ™

UNITED WE STAND I

Plisbury has partnersd wih Operation Homefront
since 2020, supporting miitary famiies theough the
Tranaticnal Housing for Veterans snd Crtical Firancial
Assistance programa, and supporting residents of the
Tranaticnal MHousing - VWlages with product donatioes
and comyrunity dnnen

I ok, Pilsbury’s Fwvestment has erabled Operation
Homefroet 10 purchase four THY homes; the Alay! tamily
was one of three that moved imo these homes in 2021
For the Ajayis, Plisbury s holping bufid stabiity so they
can realine their draam of owning their own home. Dandes
B oapociaily grateful for the security for her chidren
because she experanced homelossames & & child and
o8 8 young acult

“Pisbury belloven what mattors most Is made at home
g evory lamily Geserves B space O sham moments
logether. To put that Delef o action, we e continuing
our support of Operation Hoemnelroet in locul communities,
i ety Jorker, marketing commmunications assistant
manager for Plisbury. “We are thrilied to have welcomed
home the Aayt famdly and can't wait 10 contings Our
oforts in the Dalas-Fort Worth area.”

“PILLSBURY BELIEVES WHAT MATTERS MOST IS
MADE AT HOME... EVERY FAMILY DESERVES
A SPACE TO SHARE MOMENTS TOGETHER."”

~JENNY JONKER, MARKETING COMMUNMCATIONS ASSISTANT MANAGER, PiLLEBURY
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“THANK YOU TO OPERATION HOMEFRONT AND THE DONORS FOR [THE] HEART AND MONEY
TO BUILD THIS HOUSE. THEY DON'T EVEN KNOW ME, AND THEY DID THIS FOR ME."

~PETTY OFFICER 2ND CLASS DANDEE AJAYL, NAVY YETERAN
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC. 31, 2021

et summarasd fnancial information for the year ended on Dec. 31, 2020
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OPERATION HOMEFRONT, INC. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DEC. 31, 2021, AND 2020

Assets 2021
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Sinc

noed us Mmoat, we are able o meet ther noeda, thanks to owr community of partners, donors, and volunioern.

B08'S DISCOUNT FURNITURE

For the thied year, Bob's Discount Furmniture
pedectod Opertion Homefront o8 & partner
for Café Codectiors v 8 Cause, From
October 1 to Decomber 31, ¢ wrs and
Oyees wore encouraged o dorale
cnine or in-store at ore of 150 Cales
noross the country. Al Cafd Colechorns
for 8 Case doralions colleciad were
matched, dolar for dollar, up 10 $75.000
by Bob's Descount Furniture. In Noverndee,
Bob's Discourt Fumitue and the Green
Bay Packers tsamed up with Operation
Homedront %0 delver new mattresses o
mitary famies i Wasconan Former
Greon Bay Packen Evan Smsh and Jamvott
Bush were on hand 1o support the special
Colveries and suepse milltary lamies.
Since 2019, Bobs haa conated over
$127.000, in cosh and in-kind %0 Operation
Homaetron!

CARMAX

CaMax and Operstion  Homefromt
aunched a new partnershp in 2021 %o
suppont miltary and vetoran familes
An initlal git of $100,000 was made
In support of Operation Homedront's
masion, and empioyees volunteered
o Back-to-School Brgade events in
Cafornia, Colorado, and Nevada, In
CarMax thanked
through I8s “Max tacke™ iy
CarMax employess submstted
5600 lotters of approciation, n
of thekr employees’ response, CarMax
Qave an acdtional $50,.0¢ CarMax,
along with the Portland Trail Blazerns
partnerod with Operation Homefront o
9% now bicycs and helrmets 10 ocal
mdlitary children in Qregon

Noverniber,

CHOBANI
In 2018, Chobani launched its firmt
charftable peoduct. Mero Batch, and
ot Ou 10 raiae $1 milion for Operation

Homefr
has donated nearly $2.5 mition In cash
and In-kingd % Operation Homefront. in
Fobruary 2021, as mions of Texam
gled Decauas of & massive winter
dedcatec  $100,000

sward Operation Homwfeon's eflorts
1o heip miltary familes In the state
through our Criticel Financial Assistance
wogram.  Chobani  emmplioyees  also
volunteered at Moliday Moals for Miktary
events and Back-to-School Brigade
ovents 0oroes the © Ty and served as
pdges for our prestigious Miitary Child
of the Yoar™ Awarcs, We am gratefd 1o
Chobani for s steac¥ast commtment 10

Snce launch, the

MDY

. Chotian

o

*doing well by doing 900d.”

oo 2002, Operation Homefront has served America’s milltary famiies in their time of need becauss they have served al of us in OUr NALION'S 1ime of need. When milltary Tamiies

DRIVEN BRANDS

In the summer of 2021, e Drven
Brands Chartable Foundation continued
s wodition of hosting chartable god
unaments with two of t brands
Masco and Mainske, and raised over
$75,000. This tourmament, held virtualy
because of e ongoing pandemic, mwited
partcipants 10 play golf on thei own and
record scomes on an app. Adcitionally
the Fourndation rased nearty
through its Proud to Serve Those W
Serve campaign with Meneke, through
which fmanchise ownerns made donations
for each ol change they exacuted
Snce the partnership began in 2018
the Oriven Brands Chantable Foundation
has donated over $400,000 od
Operntion Homaelfronts Critical Fnancal
ASSSIANCe progrvm

N suppont

_
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MERITAGE HOMES

Mertage Homes has pirthersd  wih
Operation Momefront  since 2013
dorating new, mongage-ee homes 5o our
Pormanent Homes for Veterans program
In 2021, Meritage Homes dorated its 14
home, weicoming Navy vetersn Garfiela
Johnson and ha famdy 10 the Tampa,
Florida, area. Garflold served 11 yoars o8
an arcraft structunsl mechanic in the Navy
unitdl & noar fatal socident on the Might deck
resuting n medical retrement ended Ns
ity camer sarty, As the Johnaon famiy
drove up to el new house, Meritage
emplayoes ined the street waving Sags
and holding “Welcome Home™ signs. This
dorated homa wil aliow the Johnson
family %0 be closer to famidy and provice
them with e oppotunity 10 establah
hemasives in their Now Comymunity,

PROCTER & GAMBLE

Foe moen than 100 years, PG and its
beands have made miitary support
0 top priority. Since 2016, PAG, its
miltary division, and it brands have
generously iInvested cash and in-kind 10
support Operation Homedrom, In 2021,
PAG celebirated 308 new and sxpectant
maoms ot Star-Spangled Babies showens

in Noeth Carcling, Georgla, Texas,
Colorndo, and Washington. Duwing
Mitary Appreciation Month in May,

ey alsd honcred 200 miltary families
from Hil Air Force Base, in Utah, This
special drive-through evert was a part
of Operation Homedront s Holiday Meals
for Miitary program and was made
passible thanks to PSG, Kent's Market,
and Associated Food Stores

WALMART.C

I Octobee, Operation Homebort was
seleciod by Wakmart as fs charty of
choice for B onfew round-uD CamPaGN
In October, customens who shopped on
Waimart.com coukd round-up thew puchase
10 2w redrest dollar 1o suppont Operstion
Homefront. In ket Tour weeks, Wiimant's
campaign ramed over $815,000 In 2021
Opecation Homefront anc Hire Heroes USA
wore awirced o nearty $1 miion grwt from
the Waimart Foundaton %0 provide much:
Neecded carmer and financil masistance 1o
velorara of coltr and those hving in rurdl
communitios, As part of the grant, both
omganizations deveicped DEl councile
and nterralip programs 10 incroase the
diversity of leaders In the nonproft space
Walmart and the Walman Foundation have
proudly supported Operston Homatront's
mission siece 2006

“IF THERE IS ANY GROUP OF PEOPLE THAT DESERVES OUR HELP, IT IS OUR SERVING
MEMBERS OF THE MILITARY, THEIR FAMILIES, AND VETERANS. | AM NOT AWARE
OF ANY ORGANIZATION IN THE UNITED STATES THAT DOES A BETTER JOB OF
FULFILLING CONSTITUENTS' NEEDS THAN OPERATION HOMEFRONT.”

—KEN SLATER, TREMONT LLC, SLATER FAMILY FOUNDATION
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Follow-Up To Do Guide

Dear Brig Gen John I. Pray Jr. at Operation Homefront,

This proposal is mostly completed and is ready to be sent to the funder for
acceptance. | want to ask that you read over the entire proposal and sign or fill out
anything that may be unclear or missing. The next step in the proposal is to send it
off to Veterans United Foundation and wait for a response back from them
detailing whether they have accepted Operation Homefront as their grant recipient.

The main concern | have before sending this document to the funder is the
lack of a typed anti-discrimination statement that is adopted by the board of
directors. There are many reasons why having an anti-discrimination statement
would increase foot-traffic through your website. First, when people are looking
for a new job or looking to supply money to this operation. They want to work
with a non-profit that treats everyone fairly, regardless of race, gender, national
origin, or other identifying characteristics. This policy helps your non-profit state
clearly what its values. If you are lacking in this policy, there is reasoning for
many candidates not to feel comfortable with applying for a job at Operation
Homefront or giving money.

The Veterans United Foundation can be reached at vuf@veteransunited.com

or through their website at www.enhancelives.com, which can be found by

opening Google and typing the funder name into the search bar. If you have further
guestions or just want to get to know me, | can be reached by email at
chritz@uccs.edu or by phone at 314-566-1505.

Sincerely,

Cannon Hritz
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